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in sharing the results achieved by our Group in 2019, 
we would like to underline how the strategy imple-
mented in previous years has enabled us to best meet 
the challenges of an increasingly complex global con-
text, which has been particularly tough for all opera-
tors in the sector. 

Despite the fact that during the course of the year an 
international scenario of growing uncertainty and a 
general crisis in the reference end-markets emerged, 
the Group’s growth in North America in all sectors 
in which it operates and the growing Vitality Index 
(20.1% compared to 15.0% in 2018) confirms the 
Group’s strength. 

The Group closed 2019 with a drop in volumes in the 
EMEAI and APAC areas and, to a lesser extent, a drop 
in margins, confirming its market positioning and 
ability to generate operating cash and increasing in-
vestments in Research and Development.

The awareness of competing in an increasingly de-
manding market, in which increasingly aggressive 
competitors operate, has led us in recent years to in-
vest heavily and consistently in Research and Devel-
opment, in order to provide the end customer with a 
unique and increasingly broad portfolio of high-tech 
products. Over the last two years we have invested 
heavily in human resources, significantly expanding 
the R&D team, which reached almost 500 units in 
2019, in the knowledge that our people’s talent is one 
of our greatest strengths. Research and Development 
expenses in 2019 amounted to €64.7 million, reaching 
10.6% on revenues, in line with the Group’s strategic 
objectives in terms of innovation.

Dear Shareholders,
These investments in R&D have led, in particular, to 
the development of an innovative line of Mobile Com-
puters for industrial use capable of supporting vari-
ous applications in different areas, which have had a 
positive impact on results and which account for more 
than half of the turnover generated by new products 
in 2019.

Analysing the results by geographical area and sector, 
we must first of all stress how difficulties associated 
with the automotive sector has impacted the results, 
especially in EMEAI. Among the causes of these diffi-
culties are US tariffs and the latest stringent Europe-
an regulation on emissions, which came into force in 
September 2018. Germany, one of the main European 
countries in which the Datalogic Group operates, was 
particularly involved in the trade war initiated by the 
United States, in relation to which, sanctions against 
the automotive industry were added. 

Despite the general crisis in the automotive sector, 
combined with a slowdown in the packaging industry, 
the company was able to contain the decline in the 
Manufacturing sector in the EMEAI area, limiting it to 
1.6%. 

On the other hand, the Transportation & Logistics sec-
tor recorded an overall growth of 9.5%, with a very posi-
tive performance in EMEAI and North America. Positive 
results also came from the Healthcare sector, driven by 
sales not only in EMEAI, but also in North America.

The Retail sector, which accounts for almost 47% of 
Datalogic’s turnover, has on the other hand recorded 
a slowdown in EMEAI, due to significant roll-outs of 
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The Group will continue its growth 
strategy, focused on constant 
commitment to innovation and the 
development of new products, on 
maximising profitability, including 
through a careful cost control policy, 
and on maintaining financial and 
capital strength.
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retail scanners in the previous two years. On the other 
hand, Retail results in America and APAC are growing. 

The decline in results in APAC is mainly due to difficul-
ties in China in the Consumer Electronics and Manu-
facturing segments. 2019 was a year of great difficulty 
for the Chinese economy, penalised and challenged by 
the trade war with the United States along with a se-
ries of internal problems. 

In consolidating our production capacity in APAC and 
ensuring greater flexibility and coverage in Asian mar-
kets, at the beginning of the year we celebrated 10 
years of having a presence in Vietnam – which to date 
remains our most important production site – with a 
ceremony attended by the main stakeholders and rep-
resentatives of local institutions. We also inaugurated 
a new sales office in Japan, accompanied by a new 
website in Japanese for improved and direct commu-
nication with our customers. 

While the APAC area suffered a slowdown as a result of 
the double-digit decline in China, the North American 
market, the US market in particular, recorded growth 
of 6.6%, which affected all four reference sectors. The 
solidity acquired over the years has allowed us to im-
prove our competitive positioning in one of our main 
reference markets, America, where, despite the pres-
ence of much larger competitors, we have been able 
to exploit the competitive advantage represented by 
the finest expertise placed at the service of innovation 
and technological development.

Within this international framework, our ability to 
offer innovative technologies to operators in the 

sectors in which we operate – Retail, Transportation 
& Logistics, Manufacturing and Healthcare – has 
allowed us to continue to present ourselves as the 
only company capable of meeting customer needs 
both in the automatic data capture (ADC) and indus-
trial automation (IA) markets, along the entire value 
chain. 

The revision of our offer strategy envisages maintain-
ing leadership in fixed retail scanners (FRS) and sta-
tionary industrial scanners (SIS), with investments 
in the new generation of scanners for the Retail and 
Manufacturing and Transportation & Logistics sec-
tors. We also intend to gain new market shares in 
the handheld scanner market, especially in those 
geographical areas where we have less penetra-
tion such as APAC and North America, as well as 
increasing our share in the mobile computers mar-
ket in which we have invested heavily and which has 
considerable potential within all of the application 
sectors in which we operate. 

The picture of uncertainty in the second half of 2019 
is likely to continue into 2020. In fact, starting from 
January, the global macroeconomic trend was aggra-
vated by the spread of Covid-19, which initially affect-
ed China and then expanded to other countries in the 
APAC area, until it reached Europe (Italy in particular) 
and the American continent. Such circumstances, the 
nature and extent of which are extraordinary, will in-
evitably create both direct and indirect repercussions 
on global economic activity. The general climate of 
uncertainty in the markets is already evident, the 
evolution and effects of which are not currently pre-
dictable. 
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The impact of Covid-19 on Group results will depend 
on the extent to which the virus will spread within 
the markets in which the Group operates through the 
design, distribution and sale of its products and the 
macroeconomic effects that the virus will have in the 
affected countries. We are confident that the Group’s 
diversification into different markets and geographi-
cal areas, as well as its limited exposure to the Ital-
ian market, will help mitigate the negative effects of 
Covid-19 in specific areas of the world. 

Despite the current context of uncertainty, the Group 
will continue its growth strategy, focused on constant 
commitment to innovation and the development of 
new products, on maximising profitability, including 
through a careful cost control policy, and on maintain-
ing financial and capital strength.

I am sure that Datalogic is ready to take up and 
overcome this challenge, thanks to the value of 
its people, the thousands of customers who place 
their trust in us for the development of their busi-
ness, the partners, distributors, suppliers and all 
the employees around the world who allow the 
Group to grow and continue along the path of ex-
pansion and innovation every day. I would like to 
thank all those who support this journey and all the 
stakeholders and investors who make our success 
possible, just as our founder and Chairman envis-
aged 48 years ago.

Valentina Volta 
Chief Executive Officer





Highlights
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Our Company

Mission
To provide Customers in Retail, Manufacturing, Trans-
portation & Logistics and Healthcare the best quality 
and efficiency in data collection and process automation, 
thanks to superior technology, innovative products, ex-
cellent solutions, and extremely talented people.

Vision
A world identified, detected, inspected, marked and 
verified by Datalogic.

Datalogic operates at a global level in the sectors of 
automatic data capture and process automation. The 
Group, which boasts a record-breaking 48-year history, 
with cutting-edge technologies, today specialises in the 
design and production of bar code readers, mobile com-
puters, RFID devices, detection, measurement and safe-
ty sensors, vision and laser marking systems. The Com-
pany is unique in the sector, in that it guarantees a wide 
and specialised offer in the field of automatic data collec-
tion and process automation along the entire value chain 
of the main industrial sectors: Retail, Transportation & 
Logistics, Manufacturing and Healthcare. Half of the bar 

code scanning systems used in supermarkets and retail 
outlets around the world are Datalogic’s. In the same 
way, Datalogic products are used by major airports, cou-
riers and postal systems, major industries, and hospitals.
The Datalogic Group employs approximately 3,000 peo-
ple worldwide, spread over 28 countries, with production 
facilities and repair centres in Italy, the United States, 
Brazil, Slovakia, Hungary, Australia and Vietnam, and 
11 research centres located in Italy, Germany, the United 
States, China and Vietnam, with a portfolio of over 1,200 
patents acquired and another 350 being acquired in var-
ious jurisdictions. 

1972 2001

2017

2012
2015

1998
1997

2002
2011

FOUNDATION  
■ Established 

in Bologna

LISTING 
■ Listed on the 

STAR segment of 
the Italian Stock 
Exchange

INNOVATION 
■ Asset Acquisition 

from Multiware 
Photonics SA

■ Partnership with 
CAEN RFID S.r.l.

YEARS OF EXPANSION   
■ Acquisition of Escort 

Memory Systems
■ Acquisition of IDWare 

mobile Computing & 
Communications

NEW ACQUISITIONS    
■ Minec AB
■ LAservall S.p.A.
■ Informatics Inc.
■ PSC Inc.
■ Datasensor S.p.A.
■ Evolution Robotic Retail Inc. 
■ Accu-Sort System Inc. 
■ PPT Vision Inc.

NEW STRATEGY   
■ Set up new One Datalogic 
■ New organization by 

Verticals
■ Acquisition of Soredi 

Touch Systems GMBH
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International Footprint

11 R&D Centers, 3 DL Labs10 Manufacturing & Repair Sites Direct presence in 28 countries

Eugene, Oregon

Telford, Pennsylvania

Ho Chi Minh City

Donnas
München

EUROPE

Bologna
Quinto di Treviso

Shenzhen

Plano,Texas
Minneapolis, Minnesota

Pasadena, California

Values

EFFICIENCY
Treat company expenses as you 
would your own

FOCUSING ON RESULTS
Deliver what you promise

REALISM
Face reality and fix what is wrong

NO SHORT CUTS
Don’t compromise on strategy, culture or 
achieving results

OWNERSHIP
Feel and act as an owner of Datalogic
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Our Strategy

 � To grow above the market 
average, while increasing 
profit margins.

 � To remain a product 
Company, while focusing 
on integrated solutions 
to meet the needs of end 
customers in the Retail, 
Transportation & Logistics, 
Manufacturing and 
Healthcare sectors.

 � Consolidate our market 
position in EMEA and 
become a strong player 
in the North American 
market.

 � Increase our position in 
APAC, with a growing 
presence in China.

 � A wide range of products, 
capable of meeting both 
automatic data collection 
and process automation 
needs by providing 
solutions along the 
entire value chain of our 
customers.

Objective Scope of work Advantage



Stock market data

Datalogic S.p.A. has been listed on the Borsa Italiana 
since 2001 - STAR segment of the MTA, Italy’s screen-
based stock market, which comprises medium-sized 
companies with market capitalisations of between 
€40 million and €1 billion, committed to meeting 
standards of excellence.

HYDRA S.P.A.

64.8%
FREE-FLOAT

33.2%

TREASURY 
SHARES

2.0%

During 2019, the share reported a negative perfor-
mance of 17.3%. The share reached a maximum value 
of €24.95 per share on 25 January 2019 and a mini-
mum value of €12.04 on 28 August 2019. The average 
daily volumes exchanged in 2019 were approximately 
105,000 shares, up from an average of 83,000 in the 
previous year.

ANNUAL TREND: DATALOGIC SHARE PERFORMANCE/VOLUMES 

STOCK MARKET DATA 2019

SEGMENT STAR - MTA

BLOOMBERG CODE DAL.IM

REUTERS CODE DAL.MI

NUMBER OF SHARES 58,446,491 (including n. 1,148,337 treasury shares) 

2019 MAX 24.95 EUROS (at 25th January 2019)

2019 MIN 12.04 EUROS (at 28th August 2019)

CAPITALIZATION 985.99 MIL EUROS at 31st December 2019
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Market trends
Retail
Datalogic is the only automatic data capture manu-
facturer able to offer solutions that cover the entire 
Retail sector, from distribution centres, to outlets of all 
sizes, to home delivery, along the entire value chain. 
Although the Retail sector was down 4.4% in 2019 
compared to the previous year, the Group consolidat-
ed its global leadership in the retail scanner segment. 
The slowdown is mainly related to a decline in the sector 
in EMEAI, attributable to the typical cyclicality of fixed 
retail scanner implementations for check-out applica-

tions. After the significant roll-outs in the two previous 
years at the main European retailers, a slowdown is to 
be considered as normal. Improving results should be 
highlighted in North America, Latin America and Asia 
Pacific, confirming the potential of these large markets. 
Datalogic has been a leader in the Retail market since 
1974, when one of our retail scanners scanned the 
world’s first bar code placed on a consumer good in an 
Ohio supermarket. Today we are the absolute lead-
er in the fixed retail scanner market with a 38.8% 
market share, of which 3.5% has been achieved 
in the last two years (Source VDC). Our leadership 
is complemented by a significant share in handheld 
scanners and stationary industrial scanners for auto-
mation applications in distribution centres. 
Finally, our new Mobile Computer offering,  and in par-
ticular the new Android PDAs, represents the most im-
portant growth potential for Datalogic in the Retail sector. 
Our estimate of the Total Available Market for Datalogic 
in this industry is in excess of €3 billion globally, with the 
USA and EMEA representing the most important regions, 
along with China, which is on the verge of global leader-
ship thanks to a very high growth rate (Source: Osserva-
torio eCommerce B2c of the Politecnico di Milano).
At the heart of international retailers’ strategies are 
technologies and solutions that allow them to man-
age the increasingly blurred boundary between physi-
cal and virtual commerce. 
More and more advanced omni-channel models have 
been identified, on the one hand the explosion of e-com-
merce, to which all the big “brick and mortar” retailers 
are now dedicated, and on the other the large invest-
ments in traditional retail outlets to ensure that shop-
ping becomes an ever more engaging and content-rich 
customer experience, capable of transcending beyond 
the simple economic transaction. Brands need scenic 

We meet the needs of retailers 
globally, from the distribution 
centres, through check-out, 
to the customer’s home.



and multi-sensory locations: those who have given up 
buying online, which is simple, quick and possible in 
just a few clicks, in return expect a real, meaningful and 
personalised shopping experience. The main interna-
tional players, in addition to providing themselves with 
advanced logistics solutions, which allow for a stream-
lined and extensive warehouse management, are exper-
imenting with new products and solutions that enable 
new services such as: click&collect, drive&collect, on-
line verification, in real time, of the availability and exact 
position within the shelves of the products in the store 
or in the warehouse, assisted selling, self scanning and 
self check-out, the intelligent trolley (connected to the 
IA), the interactive window and smart dressing rooms.
Thanks to its wide range of products and solutions, 
Datalogic is able to satisfy all retail needs, from the 
most traditional to the newest trends, acting as a key 
player along the entire value chain. Our product portfo-
lio includes products and solutions for both the food and 
non-food sectors: retail scanners (from the most compact 
presentation scanners to bi-optic scanners), wired and 
wireless handheld scanners, mobile computers for store 
automation, inventories and outdoor mobility applications, 
stationary industrial scanners for distribution centre au-
tomation, and more vertical solutions such as self-shop-
ping, loss prevention and those based on RFID technology. 
In 2019 Datalogic launched the Memor™10 PDA, 
equipped with Wireless Charging technology and 
the Android™ 8.1 (Oreo) operating system, a relia-

ble companion for all those who work in the Retail 
environment: inventory, price control, assisted sell-
ing, are just some of the applications that make the 
Memor™10 top-of-the-range. 
2019 also saw the introduction to the market of the 
new Magellan 1500i presentation scanner, one of the 
best solutions available on the market for cash point 
applications especially for small and medium surfac-
es and non-food environments. The Magellan 1500i is 
a product that thanks to its small size, great flexibility as 
regards installation and excellent scanning performance, 
allows for maximum versatility of use even when the 
available space at the cash point is extremely reduced.
In addition to traditional linear and matrix codes, the 
Magellan 1500i can read Digimarc® codes. Datalogic 
was the first manufacturer of identification systems 
able to support this technology, which in practice al-
lows bar codes to be generated on the entire product 
package, but invisible to the human eye, drastically 
simplifying and accelerating the reading phase and also 
guaranteeing authenticity and product traceability. 
The next step for Datalogic will be the development 
of more and more “frictionless” check-out devices, in 
other words, making checkout transactions faster and 
smoother, thanks to the development of Vision and 
Machine Learning technologies. 
In fact, Datalogic intends to continue to meet all the chal-
lenges faced by retail, to protect and increase its leadership 
and be ready to embrace new developments in the sector.

Distribution Center  |  Warehouse 
Store Management  |  Check-out POS
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allowed us to become the reference point for traceability in 
the industrial sector. With the different applications of Facto-
ry Automation, Datalogic adds to its leadership in stationary 
scanners one of the most comprehensive offerings on the 
market ranging from sensors to safety systems, from laser 
marking to vision systems. Finally, the range of industrial 
handheld guns and Mobile Computers, focused in particular 
on intra-logistics solutions, should be noted.
The development of Industry 4.0 remains key to the new ap-
plication needs that see Datalogic in first place thanks to the 
completeness of its product range. There is a strong growth 
in all traceability applications, with increasing demands for 

Market trends
Manufacturing
Since the summer months of last year, global growth in the 
manufacturing industry has slowed, penalised by the pro-
gressive deterioration of the national and international op-
erating environment. The slowdown phase is common for 
all the major European players, and is largely linked to the 
difficulties in the automotive sector, following the entry into 
force of new regulations on the approval of vehicles, which 
has generated tensions in the plants.
In China, for the first time after a long period of sustained 
development, we have witnessed a slowdown in the growth 
rate of important sectors for us, such as consumer elec-
tronics, where the sector driven by smart phones seems to 
have reached maturity, although there is hope that new 5G 
technology may be the key to trigger another period of sig-
nificant growth. As regards the Chinese domestic market, 
although GDP growth in 2019 was 6.1%, signs of a gradual 
slowdown have begun to emerge. The manufacturing in-
dustry is still the key sector for the country and the “Made 
in China 2025” ten-year plan, formulated on the “Industry 
4.0” German model, was intended to favour the manufac-
turing sector, spreading the use of Information Technology, 
Internet of Things and Big Data, but the trends in electronics, 
which at the beginning of 2020 were affected by the conse-
quences of the Covid-19 epidemic, will heavily influence the 
Chinese economy.
As a result, Datalogic’s Manufacturing division suffered a 
7.4% decrease in 2019 compared to last year. The slowdown 
in the automotive market in EMEA and in the consumer 
electronics sector in China was partially offset by the dou-
ble-digit growth in the North American market.
Datalogic offers a multi-product portfolio capable of serving 
all major manufacturing sectors, with a focus on automotive, 
electronics, packaging and intra-logistics. Datalogic’s strate-
gic objective is first of all to continue investing in the field 
of stationary industrial scanners (SIS), a sector that con-
tinues to grow at rates close to 5% and in which we are 
market leader with a market share of over 22%, which has 

Unique provider of a portfolio of 
intelligent, interconnected devices 
that can track, protect, identify, 
detect, control and mark.



DPM (Direct Part Marking) code scanning and the entire ro-
botics sector: robots, cobots (collaborative robots) and AGV 
(Automated Guided Vehicles). 
Datalogic’s core business remains automatic data collec-
tion, which in turn is the basis of Industry 4.0’s Business 
Analytics line of development. Today only 1% of the data 
collected is used by companies, who could benefit enor-
mously from machine learning technologies. Factory 4.0 
envisages fully interconnected machines, which communi-
cate with each other and carry out self-diagnostics and pre-
ventive maintenance. 
In 2019 important new models of the Matrix 220 were 
launched, the most compact industrial bar code scanner 
with imager technology that can also read Digimarc® 
codes, which, thanks to its excellent performance and very 
compact size, is an ideal product for traceability and auto-
mated warehouse applications.
Also last year, the new Matrix 300N™, with 2 Mega Pixel 
sensor, was introduced, the image-based industrial scan-
ner ideal for traceability in Automation, Electronics, Packag-
ing and also for intra-logistics solutions.
For the latter application area, in 2019, Datalogic also 
launched the new scanner models, PowerScan™ PD9531 
Auto Range (AR) and the Falcon™ X4 Auto Range mobile 
computer. Both already leaders in their category, now with 
greater performance levels thanks to the Near/Far 1D/2D 
imager technology with Auto Range functionality, which al-
lows for bar codes to be scanned at different distances, from 
a few centimetres up to 20 meters.

2019 also saw the launch of the new S5N, standard M18 
tubular sensors, designed to become the new industry 
benchmark in terms of sensors with IO-Link connectivity for 
Industry 4.0 applications. Thanks to the new ASIC circuit 
developed by Datalogic, the sensors in this family are the 
first tubular sensors available on the market with IO-Link 
V1.1 Smart Sensor profile.
For Direct Part Marking solutions, where identification codes 
are engraved directly on the part to be tracked, without the 
use of labels, Datalogic is a leader in fibre laser marking 
technologies, increasingly used in various sectors such 
as automotive, electronics, food and pharmaceutical. 
Thanks to its high performance laser marking and scanning 
solutions, combined with the latest software developments, 
Datalogic is able to implement complete marking and veri-
fication solutions directly on the production line.
The industrial robotics market is estimated by the Interna-
tional Federation of Robotics (IFR) to be worth $13.9 billion. 
Today a new generation of robots, called collaborative robots 
(cobots), is being developed, which can interact with humans, 
both in factories and in everyday life and which will consti-
tute a real revolution not only from a technological point of 
view, but also from the point of view of social organisation. 
In 2019 Datalogic launched the new version of its IMPACT 
software, a proven platform that allows users to develop 
robot guidance applications using artificial vision solu-
tions. IMPACT has been developed for full compatibility with 
“Universal Robots”, the leading Danish manufacturer of col-
laborative industrial robots.

Automotive  |  Electronics  |  Packaging  |  Intralogistics
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Market trends
Transportation & 
Logistics
The Transportation & Logistics sector reported 
strong growth of 9.5% on 2018, driven by a very pos-
itive performance in North America and EMEAI, re-
gions where Datalogic has partnered with all major 
express couriers and carriers for years.
In general, the growth of the Transportation & Logis-
tics sector is driven by the considerable development 
of e-commerce, which requires logistics organisations 
of all the companies involved to be able to sort at high 
speed, manage parcels of any size, with high flexibility 
and efficiency in order and warehouse management, as 
well as tracking of direct delivery to customers’ homes. 
To meet the needs of these applications, some of the 
most advanced automatic identification technology 
solutions are required. In this context, Datalogic is 
a fundamental partner, thanks to a range of prod-
ucts and solutions among the most complete and 
best-performing on the market and to the develop-
ment of SW decoder libraries able to recognise a bar 
code in real time, as well as other symbols and texts, 
useful in cases where the bar code has deteriorated 
or is even absent.
To further enhance our offering of high performance 
imager scanners, the AV500™ was launched in 2019. 
This is an innovative industrial 2D imaging-based 
scanner developed for high-speed applications in 
e-commerce, mail/parcel sorting and airport bag-
gage handling, with the ability to be used on conveyors 
of all sizes and with an image capture capability of up to 
32 frames per second.
Datalogic has been at the forefront of the development 
of airport systems since 1984, when it installed the first 
automatic scanning station for baggage handling in Mi-

lan Linate. The growth potential of the baggage han-
dling sector is still huge: it is expected to reach $9.4 
billion by 2020, with an average growth rate of 8% from 
2015 to 2020 (Source: IATA). In 2019 Datalogic closed 
an important contract with one of Europe’s leading 
airport hubs, which chose our company to comply 
with the new requirements of IATA Resolution 753, 
the international air traffic control body, which from 
2018 required airlines to fully trace baggage from col-
lection to return to the passenger. Baggage handling 
irregularities continued to cost the industry $2.3 billion 
in 2018, which Datalogic is actively helping to reduce.

We guarantee the most efficient and 
effective data collection for postal 
services, express couriers, airports 
and for all logistics applications, from 
warehouse management to sorting 
systems.



Courier & Parcel  |  Logistics  |  Postal  |  Airports

The consolidation trend in the third-party logistics sec-
tor (3PL) also continues. Amazon’s announcement of 
24 hour delivery capabilities has opened up new growth 
opportunities for the entire 3PL market and generated 
demand for technology to meet new customer service 
expectations. Only those capable of adapting quickly to 
change and who invest in the most advanced technolo-
gies will remain on the market. 
In the first part of 2019, Datalogic launched the An-
droid version of the new Rhino II on the market, the 
powerful and robust forklift computer that, integrat-
ed with the latest auto range versions of the Power-
Scan™ industrial gun, represents the most complete 
and high-performance solution for the management 
of warehouse applications, particularly in larger areas 
(distribution centres).
The boom in e-commerce and the ease with which cus-
tomers can return unwanted products has led to new 
demands for the management of so-called reverse 
logistics, to manage the re-storage of returned prod-
ucts. This new application sector also represents a very 
interesting track and trace opportunity for Datalogic, 
both when the activity is managed manually (industrial 

guns and mobile computers) and, increasingly, when 
it is managed automatically (scanners and stationary 
position industrial cameras).
In 2019, Datalogic launched the new Taskbook, a ro-
bust tablet specifically designed for industrial applica-
tions, with an ergonomic design and balanced weight 
even when held in one hand. The high degree of protec-
tion, robust casing, 1.6 millimetres thick glass (4 times 
thicker than consumer products!) and resistance to re-
peated falls on concrete from up to 1.2 metres, make it 
the ideal device for extreme environments in logistics, 
maintenance, quality control and inspection applications.
The opportunities of the 4.0 revolution in industrial au-
tomation are also reflected in the logistics sector: op-
erators are called upon not only to act as managers of 
physical flows, but also as guarantors of the quality of 
information flows along the supply chain. 
During 2019, Datalogic carried out an awareness cam-
paign throughout Europe, in order to propose itself as 
a provider of the right technological solution for all par-
ties involved in the 2014/40/EU Directive (distributors, 
wholesalers, retailers, merchandisers or logistics ser-
vice providers).
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Market trends
Healthcare

The Group’s Healthcare sector recorded a flat result 
compared to 2018, driven by sales in North America 
and EMEAI, but held back by the slowdown in APAC. 
Sales through the distribution channel are growing, es-
pecially to American customers, often part of large pri-
vate hospital groups. 
The Healthcare sector for Datalogic has a value of $23.8 
million, of which it holds an estimated 4.6%. In general, 
investment in healthcare is growing rapidly throughout 
the world, both due to the progressive ageing of the 
population and the sharp increase in the need for trace-
ability of medicines, aimed on the one hand at increas-
ingly guaranteeing patient safety and on the other at 
reducing the market for fake medicines, which lead to 

significant losses for the entire pharmaceutical industry 
sector.
Datalogic products are widely used in bed-side patient care 
applications. Thanks to our handheld and mobile computer 
scanners dedicated to the Healthcare sector, it is possible 
to guarantee maximum precision in the management of 
the administration of medicines to patients and in the con-
trol of treatments, allowing for the respect of the 5 funda-
mental rights of the patient (administration to the correct 
patient, of the correct medicine, in the correct dose, through 
the correct means and at the correct time). 
Another important application is that of tracing blood 
bags for transfusions, where even today there are still 
errors that have irreparable consequences, completely 
avoidable thanks to our technologies.
The use of small stationary scanners with high perfor-
mance scanning capabilities is essential for the auto-
mation of laboratory tests, combined with the use of 
handheld scanners for patient reconciliation. 
Finally, not to be forgotten is the management of stock and 
inventory for all hospital assets, which today is still a source 
of enormous redundancy and can be fully automated with 
the use of handheld scanners and mobile computers.
The distribution chain of drugs and other healthcare 
products is typically managed through a dedicated sup-
ply chain, due to the special cleaning and control needs 
required for these devices. Also for this reason the spe-
cific characteristics of Datalogic products dedicated 
to Healthcare are essential, of particular importance 
is a high resistance to all of the most aggressive de-
tergents used in hospitals, through equipping prod-
ucts with antimicrobial plastic, as explained in more 
details later on.
The markets for telemedicine and mobile technology, are 
booming. The IoT is also a fertile ground for the devel-

We value the entire healthcare 
ecosystem from drug production to 
patient care.
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opment of new technologies, the application of Artificial 
Intelligence and the use of blockchain. According to a re-
cent study conducted by MarketResearch.com, by 2020, 
40% of IoT technologies will be found in the Healthcare 
sector, approaching a total market value of approximate-
ly $117 billion. Healthcare is evolving from a traditional 
model, in which treatment only takes place in hospital 
centres, to a new model, in which treatment is accessible 
from everywhere. And all thanks to technology. 
Even the world of “Big Pharma” is evolving towards the 
so-called “Beyond The Pill” approach, i.e. continuing to 
care for the patient after the purchase of the drug. 
Finally, account should be taken of opportunities de-
rived from the European Directive 2011/62/EU, the “An-
ti-Counterfeiting Directive” (FMD - Falsified Medicines 
Directive), issued in order to stem and prevent the phe-
nomenon of falsification of medicines, in force since 9 
February 2019 in all Member States. Wholesalers and 
other parties involved in the European distribution chain 
must now analyse the data matrix on the outer pack-
ing of each individual medicine package to verify its au-
thenticity along the entire journey from production to 
administration to the patient. Similar legislation is also 
coming into force in the USA with the Drug Supply Chain 
Security Act (DSCSA), which aims to trace the steps for 
manufacturers, packagers, wholesale distributors and 
third-party logistics service providers (business part-
ners) to build an electronic traceability system for phar-
maceutical products by 2023. 

All these developments lead to new interesting opportu-
nities for traceability and data collection applications and 
therefore for Datalogic, which is able to offer the health-
care market products with specific features such as: 
antimicrobial plastics, inductive technology for wireless 
battery charging, patented bar code scanning verification 
to ensure correct identification between patient and drug. 
Many of our product models are equipped with plastics 
that can withstand the most aggressive detergents used 
in particular in the hospital sector, but the incorporation 
of silver ions into the plastic of our Gryphon™ and Rida™ 
casings provides additional antimicrobial protection, com-
pliant with ISO022196/JISZ 2801 and therefore provides 
an additional line of defence against the spread of hospital 
infections. Being able to have products made with plastics 
capable of inhibiting the development of the bacterial load 
is particularly important in current times when we are ex-
periencing the effects of the Coronavirus pandemic.
It should be noted that the “Healthcare” version of 
the Memor™ 10 – the Datalogic portable comput-
er launched on the international market in January 
2019 – is also equipped with special disinfectant-ready 
plastics, capable of withstanding the harshest daily 
cleaning with solvents and chemicals. The back of the 
handheld device is smooth, making it easy to clean and 
preventing the accumulation of the bacterial load. The strap 
is also made of sanitary material and is completely wash-
able. Finally, the absence of contacts makes  Memor™10 
the ideal product for hospital bed-side activities.
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The most complete offer 
of bar code readers: from FRS 
for Retail to industrial scanners, 
from hand held scanners to 
mobile computers…

A unique product offer
A large range of products able to satisfy all our 4 Verticals customers’ 
needs along their value chain
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… integrated by a wide range 
of products for industrial 
automation
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2019 was an eventful year, which saw the launch of 13 
new products on the market: more than one per month. In 
addition to introducing new, highly innovative products and 
solutions, such as the new generation of mobile computers 
in the Memor™ family – among the first to be included in 
Google™’s “Android Enterprise Recommended” programme 
– the Company has continued its business policy across all 
geographic areas, acquiring excellent contracts with some 
of the leading companies, part of the Fortune 500, in the in-
dustries in which we operate. Fortune 500 is an annual list 
compiled and published by Fortune magazine that ranks the 
500 largest U.S. corporations, measured by their revenue. 

These include the contract for a major supply of fixed retail 
scanners (FRS), signed with the largest supermarket com-
pany in the United States in terms of turnover. This chain is 
now ranked second by extension in the general ranking of 
large retailers in the United States.

Another significant contract for a major supply of handheld 
scanners (HHS) has been concluded with a well-known 
American retail company specialising in household DIY. This 
company operates a chain of retail stores in both the United 
States and Canada.

The third contract that we would like to mention concerns 
the provision of multiple services for logistics, concluded 
with one of the best known American transport companies, 
specialising in express mail and parcel shipments, land 
transport, air transport and logistics services. 

Trust and recognition from customers of this importance 
fills us with pride and drives us to constantly improve the 

Main events and products 
launched in 2019 

JANUARY

GRYPHON™ 4500

quality of our products, which are destined to propel the 
major multinationals that drive the global economy and to 
optimise the level of our customer support services.

JANUARY
Datalogic launches “a new era” in the retail world, preview-
ing a wide range of products and solutions at the NRF, the 
most important event for the Retail sector, which takes 
place every year in New York City. In particular, Datalogic 
presented the first industrial portable devices (computers 
and scanners) with wireless charging capability, Qi compat-
ible, with a capacity to offer greater product reliability. 

The new Gryphon™ 4500 series is announced, the first 
handheld scanners to use a wireless charging system. Da-
talogic is the first industrial manufacturer to implement 
Wireless Charging technology on devices, which eliminates 
the need to perform routine maintenance and cleaning 
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MEMOR™ 1 MEMOR™ 10

procedures for the charging system, significantly reducing 
downtime and optimising investments. The new  Gryphon™ 
4500, thanks to its ergonomic and elegant design, is par-
ticularly suitable for non-food retail outlets, such as shops 
and access points (theatres, cinemas, concerts), but also 
for the management of cashiers in supermarkets. The 
GD4500 imager is also available in a Healthcare version, 
with special disinfectable and antimicrobial plastics for 
bed-side healthcare applications. 

Memor™ 1 is launched, the new full-touch device, ideal 
for all types of automatic data collection applications, par-
ticularly in the Retail sector: from in-store assisted sales to 
the production line, from back-end reception to warehouse 
distribution. Memor™1 is equipped with the Android™ 8.1 
operating system and the innovative Wireless Charging sys-
tem. Also usable as a cordless phone, it is the ideal work 
companion for those who work in retail environments such 
as inventory, access control, collection points, assisted sell-
ing. In the manufacturing sector it is used for quality control, 
inventory, shipment/receipt. Finally, it is also particularly 
appreciated in logistics applications such as inventory, pick-
up/packing, shipment/receipt, tracking and tracing.

Memor™ 10 is launched, this is one of the very first rug-
ged mobile computers to be included in the “Android Enter-
prise Recommended” programme, the initiative launched 
by Google™ that helps companies choose the right Android 
devices and services for their businesses. Memor™10, also 
equipped with Wireless Charging System, combines the du-
rability and performance of a traditional robust business de-
vice with the style of a user-friendly smartphone. This is one 

of the top mobile products in the Datalogic 2019 range, suit-
able for the most diverse sectors: Retail (in-store activities, 
assisted sales and operations management); Healthcare, 
equipped with special disinfectant-ready plastics (bedside 
medical assistance, pharmacy and analysis laboratories); 
Transportation & Logistics (proof of delivery for couriers 
and use on 3PL lorries); Manufacturing (production line and 
quality control). 

FEBRUARY
Datalogic celebrates 10 years of having a presence in 
 Vietnam, in Ho Chi Minh City. The commemorative ceremo-
ny was attended by more than 1,000 people, among them 
was the welcome presence of dignitaries and representa-
tives of universities and local institutions and the Italian Am-
bassador to Vietnam. An opportunity to retrace the exciting 
phases of the plant’s development project, starting from an 
opening with only 4 employees in January 2009, to becom-
ing the Group’s first production site where approximately 
55% of total production takes place, with over 800 people 
employed. On the same day the inauguration ceremony of 
the new canteen took place, a completely new 3-storey 
building, including a recreation area and equipped with an 
internal kitchen for both lunches and dinners.

MARCH
Datalogic announces the SLS-M5 (Master) and SLS-R5 
(Slave), two new models of safety laser scanners from the 
Laser Sentinel family, the range of innovative solutions for 
safety zone monitoring and protection of gate access to 

MARCH

LASER SENTINEL
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hazardous areas, covering a wide variety of applications in 
industrial and intra-logistics environments. Following the 
launch of the SLS-SA5 stand-alone model in 2018, Data-
logic now offers an even more comprehensive solution for 
single and multiple safety area monitoring applications. 
 Laser Sentinel is able to manage both horizontal and verti-
cal static applications (robotised cells, perimeter protection 
of machine tools and machining centres, protection of gate 
access) and to manage dynamic applications (automatic 
guided forklifts and pallet trucks). 

APRIL 
The 2nd General Assembly for the European project 
Horizon 2020 “ROSSINI” (RObot enhanced SenSing, 
INtelligence and actuation to Improve job quality in 
manufacturing) is held in Ostfildern, Germany. Data-
logic is lead partner and coordinator of the consortium 
formed for the project, composed of 6 companies and 7 
Universities/Research Centres, belonging to 7 different 
European countries. The aim of the ROSSINI project is 
to develop a hardware-software platform in the produc-
tion field, which will enable the creation of applications 
in which robots and human operators collaborate (HRC) 
in total safety, improving work quality, production flexi-
bility, efficiency and productivity. Combining the different 
innovative technologies developed by major industrial 
stakeholders, the ROSSINI platform will allow for the 
development of a range of robotic arms, “Collaborative 
by Birth”, with new integrated safety features and pre-
dictive algorithms. 

Datalogic also takes part in the European project Horizon 
2020 NOLOSS (Lossless Photon management - Optical 
design for manufacture at different length scales), funded 
under the “Research & Innovation Marie Skłodowska-Curie 
Action” tender. The objective of NOLOSS is to create an op-
tical acquisition system without photon loss and to extract 
more and more in-depth information from images. Data-
logic is one of the companies participating in the research 
consortium, consisting of 8 companies and 5 Universities/
Research Centres, belonging to 5 different European coun-
tries. 

Datalogic, announces Matrix 220™, the most compact im-
age-based bar code scanner on the market. Its innovative 
image processing platform makes Matrix 220™ ideal for 
electronic, automotive, packing and document manage-
ment applications and the best solution for high-speed and 
Direct Part Marking applications. It is used in the following 
sectors: electronics and automotive (traceability of compo-
nents during assembly and quality control), pharmaceu-
tical (analysis laboratory, quality control), food&beverage 
(traceability in production, packaging, distribution), OEM 
(machines for biomedical analysis, access control systems, 
labelling machines).

Datalogic exhibits products and services at ProMat, the main 
“Manufacturing” and “Material Handling” exhibition that took 
place in Chicago, at McCormick Place, from 8 to 11 April. 
At this event Datalogic presented new products and inno-
vative solutions to improve warehouse efficiency and the 
latest technologies for robotics and production automation.

APRIL

MATRIX 220™ TASKBOOK
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MAY JULY

MAGELLAN™ 1500i MX-E90

Datalogic also announces TaskBook, the new industrial 
tablet suitable for a wide range of warehouse operations. 
TaskBook is a robust, yet easy-to-use mobile device whose 
tablet format introduces a new way of working in facto-
ries and warehouses. Particularly suitable for small or 
non-electrically driven forklifts, it can also be installed on 
pallet trucks. Its robustness makes it ideal in most extreme 
environments in logistics, maintenance, quality control and 
inspection applications.

MAY
Datalogic announces the release of the Magellan™ 1500i, 
the high-performance retail presentation scanner. Useful in 
various application environments, Magellan™ 1500i is to-
day one of the best and most compact solutions available 
on the market to meet the needs of cashier applications, es-
pecially in non-food environments (retail, pharmacies, ser-
vice companies). The Magellan 1500i can be placed on the 
cashier counter, or used as a handheld scanner in the case 
of objects that are too heavy to be placed on the counter.

Datalogic is the protagonist of the SPS IPC Drives event, 
the most important Italian event in the area of industrial au-
tomation, which takes place every year at Fiere di Parma. 
Datalogic showcases the latest high-tech innovations and 
solutions designed to ensure traceability in production: ro-
botic guidance, rapid warehouse management processes, 
control and security systems, laser scanner technologies, 
imagers, linear cameras, handheld devices for automatic 
data collection on the move. 

Datalogic opens a new sales office in Tokyo, Japan, to get 
closer to its local partners and customers and guarantee 
them a direct and continuous presence. The Japanese mar-
ket has always been of great interest to our company, which 
has had business relations with Japan since 1978. For the 
time being, 6 staff and 2 consultants are employed in the 
new premises. Japan is once again a particularly promising 
market for our business and Datalogic is pleased to renew 
its trust and friendship with this country.

JUNE 
Datalogic participates in the first edition of the exhibi-
tion-conference “Smart Vision Forum: le tecnologie per 
l’industria del futuro”, the event organised by Messe Frank-
furt Italia and promoted by ANIE Automazione and AIdAM, 
which was held at the Palazzo dei Congressi in Bologna. 
Smart Vision Forum combines the exhibition space with an 
important conference schedule, with presentations on Ar-
tificial Vision technologies by scholars and exhibiting com-
panies.

JULY 
Datalogic launches the new MX-E90 industrial vision pro-
cessor, which offers excellent performance for all types 
of machine vision applications in various markets: au-
tomotive, electronics, packaging and food&beverage. In 
particular, it allows for the performance of rapid checks 
and processing of high resolution images in the following 
inspection applications: syringe needle inspection (phar-
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maceutical industry); checking the correct positioning of 
the cap on the bottle, reading labels and bar codes on food 
packaging (food and packaging industry), integrated elec-
tronic components alignment (electronics industry). 

With the introduction in the market of the new Matrix 
300N™ 2MP, Datalogic expands its range of bar code scan-
ning products based on imager technology designed for in-
dustrial environments such as automotive and electronics, 
intra-logistics and packing lines, packaging, document pro-
cessing and the medical sector. Matrix 300N™ 2MP allows 
for fast and accurate scanning of any type of code on any 
material or surface printed or marked, from glossy metal to 
low contrast printing.

AUGUST 
Datalogic announces the new PowerScan™ PD9531 
and Falcon™ X4 models, with even higher performance 
thanks to the “Auto Range” feature, which allows bar 
codes to be read at different distances, with a scanning ca-
pacity ranging from 15 centimetres to 20 metres, in almost 
all lighting conditions. These new products allow opera-
tors to easily move from scanning a close-up bar code on 
a pallet to one placed on top of a warehouse rack, max-
imising the efficiency of operations. PowerScan™ PD9531 
AR and Falcon™ X4 are suitable for any application field: 
from retail (for back office/warehouse, point of sale and 
stock management, and inventory activities); to transport 
and logistics companies (for storage, shipment/receipt, 
picking, packing and cycle counting activities), from man-

ufacturing companies (for traceability, sorting, freight for-
warding, warehouse management) to those working in 
the health sector (for inventory activities). 
With a view to an ever closer collaboration between uni-
versity and businesses, Datalogic is funding five two-year 
scholarships, worth €3,000, for the best Bachelor degree 
graduates in Information Engineering at universities out-
side the Emilia-Romagna Region, who decide to enrol in 
Master’s degree courses in Computer and Automation 
Engineering or Electronic Engineering for ICT at the Uni-
versità di Ferrara. 

SEPTEMBER 
Datalogic participates in PACK EXPO 2019, the most im-
portant logistics event in the industry, which took place 
from 23 to 25 September 2019 at the Las Vegas Conven-
tion Center. The Company exhibited the technological in-
novations that drive the market including: vision and OCR 
tools; bar code scanning solutions; sensors and safety 
components for machinery; robots and work cells; laser 
marking solutions that can be implemented in hours in-
stead of days.

Datalogic is the sole beneficiary of regional funding for 
the Flute project (FLexibility, Usability, easy installation 
and configuration faciliTy, Eco-sustainability). Flute will 
allow for the development of innovative devices for arti-
ficial vision and laser marking, aimed at flexibility, usa-
bility, ease of installation and configuration and eco-sus-
tainability. The innovations introduced will aim to make 

MATRIX 300N™ 2MP POWERSCAN FALCON™ X4

AUGUST
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these technologies usable also for SMEs that, due to 
their size and lack of skills, have greater difficulty in ex-
ploiting the advantages of artificial vision systems and in 
the world of packaging, where innovative laser marking 
technologies will partially replace the printing solutions 
currently used.

OCTOBER
Datalogic announces the release of IMPACT software ver-
sion 12.2, for the management of all types of vision and in-
spection applications. The new IMPACT version enables any 
smart camera or industrial vision processor to be integrated 
with the collaborative robots of the Danish company “Uni-
versal Robots”. In addition to the robot-guide functionality, 
Datalogic has also made improvements to the object posi-
tion location and tracking tools.

With company mobility management, Datalogic continues 
to embrace Android Enterprise by supporting OEMConfig, 
a new Android™ standard that has enabled Original Equip-
ment Manufacturers (OEMs) to create custom device fea-
tures and controls offered by mobile device management 
providers. Being distributed via Google Play™, customers 
always have the latest configuration options for Datalogic 
portable computers.

NOVEMBER
Datalogic participates in CHINASHOP 2019, the event 
organised by China Chain Store & Franchise Association, 

one of the most influential organisations for the retail 
industry in China. The exhibition, held at Qingdao World 
Expo City, brought together all international and local 
market leaders as well as experts from universities and 
institutions. 
At SPS Nuremberg Datalogic presents the new line of in-
telligent sensors and a complete portfolio of products for 
identification and traceability in an industrial environment. 
Visitors to Europe’s most important industrial automation 
trade fair had the opportunity to see live integrated work-
ing solutions of safety sensors and scanners, artificial vision 
systems for production control, laser markers and bar code 
scanners for identification.

DECEMBER 
Datalogic presents the AV500™, an innovative industrial 
bar code scanner based on 2D imaging technology devel-
oped for package sorting applications. Sorting objects of 
different sizes, even irregular ones, quickly and safely is 
one of the challenges that express couriers, e-commerce 
companies and airports have to face today. This new indus-
trial imager offers solutions for all high speed applications 
in e-commerce, mail/parcel sorting and airport baggage 
handling, thanks to its potential to be used on conveyors 
of all sizes, as well as in static reading applications. Since 
codes are scanned several times under the scanning array, 
excellent scanning performance can be achieved even on 
plastic-covered or damaged codes. This translates into an 
effective 50% increase in production volume compared to 
other traditional solutions.

DECEMBER

AV500™PACK EXPO 2019

SEPTEMBER
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A year of consolidation

92.8%  

Datalogic

4.7%  
Solution 
Net System

3.1%  
Informatics

50.5%  

EMEAI

35.8%  
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Latin America

11.0%  
APAC

Revenues by geographic area

2019 REVENUES

Total 612.5 MLN EUROS

Revenues by division
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56.7% 

EMEAI

19.7%  
Americas

23.6%  
APAC

Employees by functional areaEmployees by geographic area

2019 EMPLOEEYS

Total 3,074

43.5%  

Operations

22.1%  
Mktg & Sales

20.4%  
R&D

7.7%  
G&A

6.3%  
CAS

WOMEN

1,170

MEN

1,904

2019 EMPLOYEES BY GENDER
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(MLN EUROS) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

REVENUES 535.1 576.5 606.0 631.0 612.5

EBITDA 73.7 90.4 103.3 105.5 95.0

% on revenues 13.8 15.7 17.0 16.7 15.5

EBT 51.6 66.9 75.4 77.8 62.2

% on revenues 9.6 11.6 12.5 12.3 10.2

NET INCOME 40.5 45.8 60.1 62.2 50.3

% on revenues 7.6 8.0 9.9 9.9 8.2

EMPLOYEES GROWTH 2,567 2,696 2,912 3,157 3,074

DIVIDEND PER SHARE 
(EUROS) 0.25 0.30 0.50 0.50 0.30

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION 
(MLN EUROS) 10.5 14.5 17.4 28.9 28.7

INCOME STATEMENT
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(MLN EUROS) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

FIXED ASSETS 363.8 371.7 347.9 369.7 391.1

CURRENT ASSETS 166.8 192.0 203.9 228.1 230.5

CURRENT LIABILITIES -162.7 -182.2 -181.9 -195.2 -184.2

NET WORKING CAPITAL 4.1 9.8 22.0 32.9 46.2

NET INVESTED CAPITAL 319.2 332.9 322.9 352.0 390.8

EQUITY 298.3 336.4 353.0 375.8 404.2

NET FINANCIAL POSITION -21.0 3.5 30.1 23.8 13.4

CAPEX 22.0 16.5 13.9 28.9 38.0

% on revenues 4.1 2.9 2.3 4.6 6.2

NET TRADE WORKING 
CAPITAL

36.5 53.2 61.5 69.1 75.1

% on revenues 6.8 9.2 10.1 11.0 12.3

ROE % 15.0 14.4 17.4 17.1 12.9

DEBT/EQUITY % 7.0 -1.0 -8.5 -6.3 -3.3

BALANCE SHEET
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Datalogic USA, Inc.
(100%)

Datalogic (Shenzhen) 
Industrial Automation Co., 

Ltd. (100%)

Datalogic Singapore 
Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

(100%)

Datalogic Singapore 
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Introduction

This Consolidated Annual Financial Report as at 31 December 2019 was drawn up pursuant to art. 154 of T.U.F. 
and was prepared in compliance with the International Accounting Standards (IAS/IFRS) endorsed by the Euro-
pean Union.

The amounts reported in the Report on Operations are expressed in thousands of Euro. The notes to the accounts 
are expressed in millions of Euro.

Group profile

Datalogic S.p.A. and its subsidiaries (“Group” or “Datalogic Group”) is the global technological leader in the mar-
kets of automatic data capture and process automation. The Group is specialised in the design and production 
of bar code readers, mobile computers, detection, measurement and security sensors, vision and laser marking 
systems and RFID. Its pioneering solutions contribute to increase efficiency and quality of processes along the 
entire value chain, in the Retail, Manufacturing, Transportation & Logistics and Healthcare sectors.

Financial highlights 

The following table summarises the Datalogic Group’s key operating and financial results as at 31 December 
2019 in comparison with the same period a year earlier:

31.12.2019 % on Revenues 31.12.2018 % on Revenues Change % change % ch. net FX

Revenues 612,486 100.0% 631,015 100.0% (18,529) -2.9% -5.3%

EBITDA 94,990 15.5% 105,549 16.7% (10,559) -10.0% -8.9%

Operating Result (EBIT) 65,471 10.7% 83,517 13.2% (18,046) -21.6% -19.7%

Net Profit/(Loss) for the period 50,281 8.2% 62,210 9.9% (11,929) -19.2% -16.5%

Net Financial Position (NFP) 13,364  23,843  (10,479)   

In the year 2019, revenues amounted to €612.5 million, showing a slight decline of 2.9% on the previous year, 
EBITDA decreased by 10.0%, to €95 million, taking the EBITDA margin to 15.5% (16.7% as at 31 December 2018). 

During 2019, the growth in North America (+6.6%) was confirmed, which partially offset the slowdown in the 
APAC (-19.6%) and the EMEAI (- 4.7%) areas, as well as Latin America (-2.5%).

The net profit amounted to €50.3 million (€62.2 million in the same period of 2018). The percentage on revenues 
decreased from 9.9% to 8.2%.

The Net Financial Position, as at 31 December 2019, was positive by €13.4 million, down by €10.5 million com-
pared to 31 December 2018 (positive by €23.8 million). Net of the application of the new accounting standard IFRS 
16, which determines the recognition of right-of-use assets (€9.8 million) and financial liabilities (€10.1 million), 
the Net Financial Position is in line with the previous year.
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Alternative performance indicators

To allow for a better valuation of the Group’s performance, management adopted certain alternative performance 
indicators that are not identified as accounting measures within IFRS (NON-GAAP measures). The measurement 
criteria applied by the Group might not be consistent with those adopted by other groups and the indicators might 
not be comparable with indicators calculated by the latter. These performance indicators, determined according 
to provisions set out by Guidelines on performance indicators, issued by ESMA/2015/1415 and adopted by Con-
sob with Communication no. 92543 of 3 December 2015, refer only to the performance of the accounting period 
related to this Consolidated Annual Financial Report and the compared periods.
The performance indicators must be considered as supplementary and do not supersede information given pur-
suant to IFRS standards. The description of the main indicators adopted is given hereunder.

 � EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisation): this indicator is defined as 
Profit/Loss for the period before depreciation and amortisation of tangible and intangible assets, non-recur-
ring costs/revenues, financial income and expenses and income taxes.

 � Net Trade Working Capital: this indicator is calculated as the sum of Inventories and Trade Receivables, 
less Trade Payables.

 � Net Working Capital: this indicator is calculated as the sum of Net Trade Working Capital and Other Current 
Assets and Liabilities, including short-term Provisions for Risks and Charges.

 � Net Invested Capital: this indicator is the total of Current and Non-Current Assets, excluding financial as-
sets, less Current and Non-Current Liabilities, excluding financial liabilities.

 � NFP (Net Financial Position) or Net Financial Debt: this indicator is calculated based on provisions set 
out by Consob Communication no. 15519 of 28 July 2006. This indicator includes also “Other financial assets” 
represented by temporary cash investments and financial liabilities for operating leases resulting from the 
application of the new accounting standard IFRS 16.
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Group reclassified economic results 

The following table shows the main income statement items of the current period, compared with the same pe-
riod in the previous year:  

31.12.2019  31.12.2018  Change % change

Revenues 612,486 100.0% 631,015 100.0% (18,529) -2.9%

Cost of goods sold (319,366) -52.1% (325,064) -51.5% 5,698 -1.8%

Gross Operating Margin 293,120 47.9% 305,951 48.5% (12,831) -4.2%

Research and Development expenses (59,272) -9.7% (61,920) -9.8% 2,648 -4.3%

Distribution expenses (120,789) -19.7% (112,225) -17.8% (8,564) 7.6%

General and Administrative expenses (44,149) -7.2% (43,156) -6.8% (993) 2.3%

Other operating income/(expenses) 4,177 0.7% 1,732 0.3% 2,445 141.2%

Total Operating expenses and others (220,033) -35.9% (215,569) -34.2% (4,464) 2.1%

Non-recurring costs/revenues and write-downs (2,759) -0.5% (2,260) -0.4% (499) 22.1%

Amortisation and depreciation from acquisitions (4,857) -0.8% (4,605) -0.7% (252) 5.5%

Operating Result (EBIT) 65,471 10.7% 83,517 13.2% (18,046) -21.6%

Financial Income/(Expenses) (1,890) -0.3% (2,938) -0.5% 1,048 -35.7%

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) (1,347) -0.2% (2,730) -0.4% 1,383 -50.7%

Profit/(Loss) before taxes (EBT) 62,234 10.2% 77,849 12.3% (15,615) -20.1%

Taxes (11,953) -2.0% (15,639) -2.5% 3,686 -23.6%

Net Profit/(Loss) for the period 50,281 8.2% 62,210 9.9% (11,929) -19.2%

Non-recurring costs/revenues and write-downs (2,759) -0.5% (2,260) -0.4% (499) 22.1%

Depreciation and write-downs of tangible assets (16,756) -2.7% (10,580) -1.7% (6,176) 58.4%

Amortisation and write-downs of intangible assets (10,004) -1.6% (9,192) -1.5% (812) 8.8%

EBITDA 94,990 15.5% 105,549 16.7% (10,559) -10.0%

Consolidated revenues amounted to €612.5 million, decreasing by 2.9% compared to €631.0 million in the pre-
vious year.
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The following table shows the breakdown by geographical area of Group revenues achieved in 2019, compared 
with the previous year:

31.12.2019 % 31.12.2018 
(**) % Change % % ch. net 

FX

Italy      47,955 7.8%       53,031 8.4% (5,076) -9.6% -10.5%

EMEAI (excluding Italy)     261,608 42.7%      271,755 43.1% (10,146) -3.7% -5.0%

Total EMEAI (*)     309,563 50.5%      324,786 51.5% (15,223) -4.7% -5.9%

North America     219,420 35.8%      205,902 32.6% 13,518 6.6% 1.5%

Latin America      16,131 2.6% 16,545 2.6% (414) -2.5% -4.3%

APAC (*) 67,371 11.0% 83,781 13.3% (16,410) -19.6% -20.1%

Total Revenues 612,486 100.0% 631,015 100.0% (18,529) -2.9% -5.3%

 (*) EMEAI: Europe, Middle East, India and Africa; APAC: Asia & Pacific (including China). 
(**) Comparison data for 2018 were restated consistently to reflect the new allocations of revenues.

During 2019, 6.6% growth was reported in North America, while a slowdown was recorded in the APAC area 
(down by 19.6%). The performance in the EMEAI area decreased by an overall 4.7%.

Gross Operating Margin was €293.1 million, decreasing by 4.2% from €306.0 million reported in 2018. As a 
percentage of revenues, it decreased by 0.6 percentage points compared to 2018, going from 48.5% in 2018 to 
47.9% in 2019. Net of the exchange rates, the percentage of gross operating margin over revenues remained 
unchanged at 48.5%, thanks to productivity and launch of new products which balanced the negative effect of 
volume decrease.

Operating expenses and others, equal to €220.0 million, increased by 2.1% compared to €215.6 million in 2018, 
+1.7 as a percentage of turnover, from 34.2% to 35.9%. Distribution expenses increased by 7.6%, to €120.8 mil-
lion (19.7% of revenues compared to 17.8% recorded in 2018), as result of the carryover of investments made in 
2018 to strengthen commercial organisations. 
Research and Development expenses, amounting to €59.3 million (€61.9 million in 2018) remained substantially 
unchanged in terms of percentage on revenues. In 2019, overall expenses in Research and Development, includ-
ing investments, amounting at €64.7 million (€63.4 million in 2018), increased by 2.1% compared to the previous 
year. The percentage of turnover is around 10.6%, in line with the Group’s strategic targets on innovation.

EBITDA was €95.0 million (€105.5 million in 2018) and showed 1.2% decrease as percentage on revenues (-0.6% 
at constant exchange rate), equal to 15.5% over 16.7% recorded in 2018. EBITDA recorded over the year reflects 
the increase in investments in commercial organization, partially offset by the effect of the adoption of the new 
accounting standard IFRS 16. This determined the accounting of higher depreciation and lower costs for rents and 
leases of €4.6 million and €4.6 million, respectively.
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EBIT was €65.5 million, compared to €83.5 million in the previous year, while its percentage on revenues de-
creased from 13.2% in 2018 to 10.7%. 

Financial Income/(Expenses) 

 31.12.2019  31.12.2018 Change

Financial income/(expenses) (415) (1,685) 1,270

Foreign exchange gains/losses (1,347) (2,730) 1,383

Bank expenses (1,246) (1,474) 228

Others (229) 221 (450)

Total Financial Income/(Expenses) (3,237) (5,668) 2,431

Net Financial Income/(Expenses), negative by €3.2 million, improved by €2.4 million, thanks to the favourable 
performance of foreign exchange differences, which recorded a loss of €1.3 million (compared with a loss of €2.7 
million as at 31 December 2018) and to the positive result related to cash equivalents investments.
 
Net profit amounted to €50.3 million (€62.2 million as at 31 December 2018), recording 1.7% decrease in terms 
of percentage on revenues, from 9.9% to 8.2%.

Group reclassified economic results 
Operating segments are identified based on the management reporting used by senior management to allocate 
resources and evaluate results. Consistently with the previous year, the operating segments were included in the 
following divisions: 

 � Datalogic, which represents the Group’s core business and designs and produces bar code scanners, mobile 
computers, detection, measurement and security sensors, vision and laser marking and RFID systems that 
contribute to increasing the efficiency and quality of processes in the areas of Retail, Manufacturing, Tran-
sport & Logistics and Healthcare, along the entire value chain;

 � Solution Net Systems, specialised in supplying and installing integrated solutions for the postal segment 
and distribution centres in the Retail sector;

 � Informatics sells and distributes products and solutions for the management of inventories and mobile as-
sets tailored to small and medium sized companies.
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The following tables show the breakdown of divisional Revenues and EBITDA achieved in 2019, compared to 
2018:

31.12.2019 % 31.12.2018 % Change % change % ch. net FX

Datalogic 568,128 92.8% 585,724 92.8% (17,596) -3.0% -5.2%

Solution Net Systems 29,064 4.7% 28,320 4.5% 744 2.6% -2.6%

Informatics 18,736 3.1% 19,586 3.1% (850) -4.3% -9.3%

Adjustments (3,442) - (2,615) - (827)   

Total revenues 612,486 100.0% 631,015 100.0% (18,529) -2.9% -5.3%

31.12.2019 % on revenues 31.12.2018 % on revenues Change %

Datalogic 90,581 15.9% 102,097 17.4% (11,516) -11.3%

Solution Net Systems 2,911 10.0% 2,939 10.4% (28) -1.0%

Informatics 1,507 8.0% 669 3.4% 838 125.3%

Adjustments (9) - (156) - 147  

Total EBITDA 94,990 15.5% 105,549 16.7% (10,559) -10.0%

Datalogic Division
In 2019, the Datalogic Division reported a turnover of €568.1 million, a slight decrease compared to the same 
period of 2018 (-3.0%), with a positive performance in North America, partially offsetting the decline in EMEAI, 
APAC and Latin America.

Divisional EBITDA amounted to €90.6 million, decreasing by 11.3% compared to 2018, with 15.9% percentage on 
turnover (17.4% as at 31 December 2018). Net of exchange rate effect, EBITDA margin of the division was equal 
to 16.5%, a 0.9% decrease compared to the previous year.
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Below is the breakdown by industry of the Datalogic Division’s revenues:

31.12.2019 % 31.12.2018 (*) % Change % % ch. net FX

Retail 265,672 46.8% 278,025 47.5% (12,353) -4.4% -7.1%

Manufacturing 157,356 27.7% 169,876 29.0% (12,519) -7.4% -8.6%

Transportation & Logistics 75,049 13.2% 68,565 11.7% 6,483 9.5% 6.6%

Healthcare 20,004 3.5% 20,093 3.4% (90) -0.3% -3.2%

Channel (unallocated) (**) 50,047 8.8% 49,164 8.4% 883 1.8% 0.4%

Total revenues 568,128 100.0% 585,724 100.0% (17,596) -3.0% -5.2%

(*) Comparison data for 2018 were restated consistently to reflect the new allocations of revenues to various operating segments.
(**) The Channel sector (unallocated) includes revenues not directly attributable to the 4 areas identified.

 � Retail
The Retail segment decreased by 4.4% on last year, with a slowdown in the EMEAI due to significant roll-outs 
of fixed retail scanners occurred in the previous two years. Americas and APAC are instead growing.

 
 � Manufacturing

The Manufacturing segment decreased by 7.4% compared to the previous year. The slowdown in the auto-
motive market in EMEA and in consumer electronics in China was partially offset by the double-digit growth 
in the North American market.

 � Transportation & Logistics
The Transportation & Logistics sector reported strong growth of 9.5% on 2018, driven by a very positive per-
formance in North America and EMEAI. 

 � Healthcare
The Healthcare sector remained substantially unchanged compared to 2018, driven by sales in North America 
and EMEAI.

Slight increase in distribution channel’s revenues mainly towards small and medium-sized customers.

Solution Net Systems Division
In 2019, the Solution Net Systems Division recorded revenues for €29.1 million, increasing by 2.6% on the same 
period of 2018, mainly due to the seasonality of some projects. EBITDA related to the division amounted to €2.9 
million, 10.0% of turnover (10.4% in 2018).



Datalogic Annual Report 2019         49

Informatics Division 
The Informatics Division recorded a turnover of €18.7 million in 2019, decreasing by 4.3% compared to 2018. 
Divisional EBITDA was positive by €1.5 million (positive by €0.7 million in the same period of 2018), it improved 
thanks to the increased Service and shift to the new business model “Software as a Service”.

Fourth quarter Group reclassified economic results 
The following table summarises the Datalogic Group’s key economic results of the fourth quarter of 2019 in com-
parison with the same period a year earlier:

4Q 2019 % on revenues 4Q 2018 % on revenues Change % change % ch. net FX

Revenues 151,114 100.0% 164,927 100.0% (13,813) -8.4% -9.7%

EBITDA 21,690 14.4% 28,004 17.0% (6,314) -22.5% -22.8%

Operating Result (EBIT) 13,454 8.9% 22,441 13.6% (8,987) -40.0% -40.2%

Profit/(Loss) for the period 10,603 7.0% 18,632 11.3% (8,029) -43.1% -43.2%

In the fourth quarter of 2019, revenues decreased by 8.4% to €151.1 million and EBITDA declined by 22.5% to 
€21.7 million, reducing the EBITDA margin to 14.4%, compared to 17.0% of 2018. 

Quarterly net profit amounted to €10.6 million (€18.6 million in Q4 2018). The percentage on revenues decreased 
from 11.3% to 7.0%.

Fourth quarter economic results by division
The following tables show the breakdown of divisional Revenues and EBITDA achieved in the fourth quarter of 
2019, compared with the same period of 2018:

4Q 2019 % 4Q 2018 % Change % % ch. net FX

Datalogic 139,565 92.4% 154,642 93.8% (15,077) -9.7% -10.9%

Solution Net Systems 7,323 4.8% 5,897 3.6% 1,426 24.2% 20.5%

Informatics 5,053 3.3% 4,985 3.0% 68 1.4% -1.6%

Adjustments (827)  (597)  (230)   

Total revenues 151,114 100.0% 164,927 100.0% (13,813) -8.4% -9.7%
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4Q 2019 % on revenues 4Q 2018 % on revenues Change %

Datalogic 20,167 14.4% 28,569 18.5% (8,402) -29.4%

Solution Net Systems 721 9.8% (679) -11.5% 1,400 n.a.

Informatics 819 16.2% 205 4.1% 614 299.5%

Adjustments (17) 2.1% (91) 15.2% 74  

Total EBITDA 21,690 14.4% 28,004 17.0% (6,314) -22.5%

The table below shows Group revenues by geographical area, as achieved in the fourth quarter of 2019 versus 
the same period of 2018:

4Q 2019 % 4Q 2018 (**) % Change % % ch. net FX

Italy      11,085 7.3%       12,894 7.8% (1,809) -14.0% -14.9%

EMEAI (excluding Italy)      64,515 42.7% 70,937 43.0% (6,422) -9.1% -11.5%

Total EMEAI (*)      75,600 50.0% 83,831 50.8% (8,231) -9.8% -12.0%

North America      55,130 36.5% 53,034 32.2% 2,096 4.0% 1.7%

Latin America       5,301 3.5% 6,015 3.6% (716) -11.9% -11.2%

APAC (*)      15,083 10.0% 22,047 13.4% (6,964) -31.6% -27.5%

Total revenues 151,114 100.0% 164,927 100.0% (13,813) -8.4% -9.7%

(*) EMEAI: Europe, Middle East, India and Africa; APAC: Asia & Pacific (including China).
(**) Comparison data for 2018 were restated consistently to reflect the new allocations of revenues.

Datalogic Division
In the fourth quarter of 2019, the Datalogic Division reported turnover of €139.6 million, down (-9.7%) compared 
to the same period of 2018, with a positive trend in North America.

Divisional EBITDA, which decreased by 29.4% over the same quarter of 2018, amounted to €20.2 million, with a 
percentage on revenues from 18.5% in the fourth quarter of 2018 to 14.4%.
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Below is the breakdown by industry of the Datalogic Division’s revenues:

4Q 2019 % 4Q 2018 (*) % Change % % ch. net FX

Retail 67,832 48.6% 75,358 48.7% (7,527) -10.0% -11.1%

Manufacturing 39,238 28.1% 44,606 28.8% (5,367) -12.0% -13.1%

Transportation & Logistics 16,816 12.0% 18,998 12.3% (2,184) -11.5% -12.6%

Healthcare 4,992 3.6% 6,525 4.2% (1,532) -23.5% -24.5%

Channel (unallocated) (**) 10,688 7.7% 9,155 5.9% 1,533 16.7% 15.3%

Total revenues 139,565 100.0% 154,642 100.0% (15,077) -9.7% -10.9%

(*) Comparison data for 2018 were restated consistently to reflect the new allocations of revenues to various operating segments.
(**) The Channel sector (unallocated) includes revenues not directly attributable to the 4 areas identified. 

 � Retail
The Retail sector decreased by 10.0% compared to the same period of the previous year, with a slowdown in 
the EMEAI and APAC areas, while a growth was recorded in America. 

 
 � Manufacturing

The Manufacturing segment decreased by 12.0% compared to the fourth quarter of the previous year. The 
slowdown involved all geographical areas, especially APAC, due to the decrease in the consumer electronics 
market in China.

 � Transportation & Logistics
The Transportation & Logistics sector reported 11.5% decrease compared to the same period of 2018 in all 
geographical areas.

 � Healthcare
The Healthcare sector recorded 23.5% decrease in all geographical areas, compared to the fourth quarter of 
2018.

Distribution channel’s revenues, mainly towards small and medium-sized customers, reported an increase, com-
pared to the fourth quarter of 2018, in all geographical areas, except for APAC.

Solution Net Systems Division
The Solution Net Systems Division recorded revenues amounting to €7.3 million, up by 24.2% compared to the 
fourth quarter of 2018, thanks to the extension of some contracts in place. EBITDA related to the division amount-
ed to €0.7 million, 9.8% of turnover (-11.5% in the fourth quarter of 2018).

Informatics Division
In the fourth quarter, the Informatics Division recorded turnover of €5 million, up by 1.4% compared to the fourth 
quarter of 2018. EBITDA of the division is positive by €0.8 million and is remarkably improving compared to the 
same period of 2018 (€0.2 million).
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Group reclassified Statement of Financial Position 

The following table shows the main financial and equity items for the Datalogic Group as at 31 December 2019, 
compared with 31 December 2018.

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change Ch. %

Intangible assets 50,471 44,506 5,965 13.4%

Goodwill 186,126 181,149 4,977 2.7%

Tangible assets 99,355 77,995 21,360 27.4%

Financial assets and equity investments in associates 10,241 9,397 844 9.0%

Other non-current assets 44,906 56,665 (11,759) -20.8%

Total Fixed Assets 391,099 369,712 21,387 5.8%

Trade receivables 78,203 90,439 (12,236) -13.5%

Trade payables (106,029) (117,139) 11,110 -9.5%

Inventories 102,921 95,826 7,095 7.4%

Net Trade Working Capital 75,095 69,126 5,969 8.6%

Other current assets 49,345 41,855 7,490 17.9%

Other current liabilities and Provisions for risks, current (78,219) (78,037) (182) 0.2%

Net Working Capital 46,221 32,944 13,277 40.3%

Other non-current liabilities (34,571) (37,829) 3,258 -8.6%

Employee severance indemnity (7,026) (6,541) (485) 7.4%

Provisions for risks, non-current (4,916) (6,320) 1,404 -22.2%

Net Invested Capital 390,807 351,966 38,841 11.0%

Shareholders' Equity (404,171) (375,809) (28,362) 7.5%

Net Financial Position (NFP) 13,364 23,843 (10,479) -44.0%

As at 31 December 2019, Net Trade Working Capital was €75.1 million (12.3% of revenues), increasing by 
€6 million compared to 31 December 2018. The change is mainly due to the increase in inventories, linked to 
seasonality, and the reorganization of the logistic hub in EMEA, which entailed a greater level of procurement in 
the cross-over phase, progressively reducing in the second half of 2019.

Net Invested Capital, equal to around €390.8 million, increased by €38.8 million compared to the previous year, 
due to the increased net working capital (€13.3 million) and fixed assets (around €21.4 million, of which €5 million 
due to exchange rate effect), mainly due to the adoption of IFRS 16 and investments made for the streamlining 
of the European footprint.
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The Net Financial Position, as at 31 December 2019, was positive by €13.4 million, down by €10.5 million com-
pared to 31 December 2018 (positive by €23.8 million). Cash flows, which brought about the change in Consoli-
dated Net Financial Position as at 31 December 2019, are summarised as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Net Financial Position/(Net Financial Debt) at the beginning of the period 23,843 30,137 (6,294)

EBITDA 94,990 105,549 (10,559)

Change in net trade working capital (5,969) (7,644) 1,675

Net investments (37,997) (28,851) (9,146)

Change in taxes (12,122) (17,832) 5,710

Financial Incomes/(Expenses) (3,270) (5,668) 2,398

Dividend distribution (28,716) (28,914) 198

Treasury shares (4,303) (16,930) 12,627

Other changes (3,032) (6,004) 2,972

Change in Net Financial Position (NFP) before IFRS 16 (418) (6,294) 5,876

Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (10,061) 0 (10,061)

Change in Net Financial Position (10,479) (6,294) (4,185)

Net Financial Position/(Net Financial Debt) at the end of the period 13,364 23,843 (10,479)

Net of the treasury share purchases, dividend distribution and the adoption of IFRS 16, cash generation amount-
ed to €32.6 million, whilst in 2018 cash generation amounted to €39.5 million. Despite the increase in net invest-
ments, equal to €9.1 million, and the decline in volumes, operations allowed for a positive cash generation, also 
thanks to the contribution of the financial and tax management.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Net Financial Debt/(Net Financial Position) is broken down as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

A. Cash and bank deposits 151,829 181,418

B. Other cash equivalents 12 12

     b1. restricted cash 12 12

C. Securities held for trading - -

     c1. short-term - -

     c2. long-term  - - 

D. Cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) 151,841 181,430

E. Current financial receivables 31,200 50,896

     e1. other current financial receivables 31,200 50,896

F. Bank overdrafts 221 29

G. Current portion of non-current debt 47,421 47,314

H. Other current financial liabilities 6,457 3,733

     h1. hedging instruments - -

     h2. leasing payables 4,589 -

     h3. current financial liabilities 1,868 3,733

I. Current financial debt (F) + (G) + (H) 54,099 51,076

J. Current net financial debt/(Current net financial position) (I) - (E) - (D) (128,942) (181,250)

K. Non-current bank borrowing 110,106 157,407

L. Bonds - -

M. Other non-current liabilities 5,472 -

     m1. hedging instruments -  -

     m2. leasing payables 5,472 -

     m3. non-current financial liabilities - -

N. Non-current financial debt (K) + (L) + (M) 115,578 157,407

O. Net Financial Debt/(Net Financial Position) (J) + (N) (13,364) (23,843)
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Research and Development 

In the market in which the Group operates, the ability to find and implement innovative solutions is one of the key 
competitiveness factors.
For this reason, Datalogic continues to keep a high level of investment in Research and Development activities, 
equal to around 9.7% of revenues for 2019 and 10.1% of the core business represented by the Datalogic division.
The processes of innovation and product development are based on the “Products Roadmap”, stemming from 
a medium and long-term planning, which is annually updated by the R&D Division, together with the top 
 management. 
Within the R&D Division, research teams, like “DL LABS” are focusing on the development of disruptive solutions 
and products. The main activity of the DL LABS is the development of core technologies used in the products, 
including scan engines and decoder libraries, to which the development of platforms (i.e. hardware and software 
components that are reusable and shared by multiple product groups) is added. The R&D Division employs over 
500 persons in Datalogic. The results of the innovation processes are patented. In 2019, 20.1% of turnover re-
sulted from new products. The new products that have contributed most to the Group’s turnover are described 
hereunder.

Handheld Readers (HHRs)
 � PowerScan Autorange: are extra-long range models of the PowerScan readers for industrial use. The new 

models are equipped with an innovative autofocus system, internally developed, which allows for the reading 
from 15 cm to 20 m, with a fast autofocus. 

Mobile Computing
 � Falcon X4 Autorange: autorange version, based on proprietary autofocus technology.
 � Datalogic Shield: platform for the distribution of Android security patches, up to 5 years and for the release 

of new versions of the operating system. The system also makes available a support section for developers 
of applications on mobile devices and a Discussion board.

 � Joya Touch and Memor 10: new Android-based models with Megapixel resolution for a higher reading 
 performance.

Presentation Readers
 � Magellan 1500i: fixed retail scanner of the presentation type, based on the imaging technology. It allows the 

reading of 1D, 2D, OCR bar codes, also on Mobile devices, in addition to the Digimarc Barcode support.

Fixed barcode scanners
 � Matrix 220: new models with stronger blue light illuminators, specially studied to guarantee the best reading 

for bar codes marked with Direct Part Marking (DPM).
 � Matrix 300N 2Mpix: new models with 2Mpix resolution, autofocus and a renewed illumination system for a 

higher reading depth, specially studied for intralogistics and automotive applications.
 � AV500: 2D barcode scanner with 5Mpix sensor and high-performance autofocus system for high-speed logi-

stics applications, airport baggage handling systems and manual presentation (static applications for auto-
matic barcode reading in work stations).
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Machine Vision
 � Impact 3D: new release for the support of 3D applications.
 � MX-E90: vision processor with improved performance for the support of up to 8 cameras.
 � Impact Robotics: new release for robotics applications with UR+ certification for Universal Robots collabo-

rative robots (cobots).

Safety Sensors and Devices
 � S5N: complete updating of Tubular products, with a new ASIC, specially developed for photoelectric sensors 

and equipped with the IO-link cutting-edge technology for Industry 4.0 applications.
 � Laser Sentinel: the new Enhanced models complete the development of the Laser Sentinel range, the most 

complete solution for safety applications in the industrial field.

Solution 
 � Websentinel PLUS: new release of the monitoring suite with various new features and bug fixing.

Human Resources and Industrial Relations

In 2019, the HR structure consolidated its strategic skills aimed at strengthening Human Capital management in 
order to even more adequately meet the development needs of both business and Group. The HR Management 
operates in Bologna in the Headquarters of Lippo di Calderara. The Global HR Director is supported by three 
regional HR Directors (EMEA, APAC and AMERICAS), as well as by HR Business Partners, responsible for the 
management and development of Professional Families, at global level, and COE (Centres of Excellence), respon-
sible for the definition and implementation of policies, functional processes and pertaining technical components, 
while defining related standards and KPIs: Talent Hiring, Talent Management, Organization and Systems and Total 
Rewards.

Resource hiring
The Resource hiring division guarantees the research and acquisition of strategic figures for the harmonious 
development of the Company. In fact, a match is created between talent available on the market and the needs of 
the various organizational levels: talented people, who are Datalogic’s targets, are oriented using the PPA (Per-
sonal Profile Analysis), a tool that guarantees objectivity, consistency and sustainability to the selection process 
and the subsequent process of individual and professional family development. The Company attended the main 
Career Days dedicated to the presentation of both the Company and the posts available in the countries where it 
is present; it also opened the headquarters of Bologna to students on the occasion of the Open Day dedicated to 
orientation and meetings with managers.
Talent hiring is supported by both a Human Resources IT Management System and Datalogic website, with a 
special section dedicated to human resources (“Career”). In order to remain a strong competitor with respect to 
the other companies operating within the territory, the Company provided for a remuneration package aligned 
with the market benchmark, based on a market analysis made by international companies. In addition to the 
aforesaid initiatives, the Employer Branding activity was consolidated, aiming at strengthening the Company’s 
external image.
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Training
Training supports, in its various aspects and methods, the development of talents and available potentialities 
through individual and collective learning, thus increasing and updating the level of skills. Leadership Devel-
opment, responsible of organising training paths concerning soft skills for White Collars at central level, has 
standardized a process to detect the training needs from a global perspective. It also started to prepare a unified 
catalogue of training opportunities, which are available to all employees after the request from their direct line 
managers has been approved by the Centre of Excellence (CEO).
To meet the widest range of needs, the training offer includes a variety of Face to Face solutions (both internal 
and external teaching), online solutions and mixed solutions including the use of Action Learning, Gamification, 
Remote Guided Training and Blended learning. During 2019, the Leadership and Development body also worked 
on the collection of training needs related to the technical skills of White Collars. Each single division, with the 
collaboration of its Human Resource Business Partner and the Leadership Development team, provided for the 
training in this area. Training for blue collars was managed separately by each production plant. 
Courses are structured according to the needs and different learning skills of the individuals involved.

Performance management 
The performance management process is a continuous process between the employee and the actors involved in 
the evaluation of their performance. This process helps to keep the expectations of the Company and its collabo-
rators aligned, enhancing the commitment and contribution of each single person. Specifically, the performance 
management process is divided in various steps: Assignment of Targets, Half-Year Review, Self-assessment, 
Manager’s Assessment, Calibration of Assessments and Feedback.

Relations with trade unions
in 2019, the Company strengthened its investment in corporate welfare, granting workers, as well as white col-
lars and middle management, a share that was added to the provisions of the National Collective Labour Con-
tract and the amounts already available through the optional conversion of the Performance Bonus and, in some 
cases, individual incentive plans. Spending availability has also been improved, offering an expanded selection of 
operators and purchase channels, accessible through the usual corporate portal.
For the production pole in Castiglione Messer Raimondo, a Competitiveness Agreement was reached with the 
trade unions for the 2019-2021 three-year period, which confirmed the Company’s investment in terms of em-
ployment, while introducing some useful tools to support the generational turnover of personnel and improve the 
balance between life and work time, thanks to a different modulation of working hours. 
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Reconciliation of net result and Equity of the Parent Company with 
Group consolidated net result and Equity

The Reconciliation between Equity and net profit of Datalogic S.p.A. and the corresponding consolidated values 
as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, as envisaged in Consob Communication no. DEM/6064293 of 
28 July 2006, are disclosed here below.

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Shareholders' 
Equity 

Net
result

Shareholders' 
Equity 

Net
result

Parent Company’s Equity and net result 353,548 105,040 278,267 29,340

Shareholders' Equity and net result of consolidated companies 105,404 56,671 156,298 136,617

Elimination of dividends - (114,470) - (104,684)

Amortisation of intangible assets - Business Combination (5,827) - (5,827) -

Business Combination under common control (31,733) - (31,733) -

Elimination of capital gain on sale of business branch (17,067) - (17,067) -

Elimination of intercompany transactions (9,485) 2,792 (12,277) (1)

Adjustment of write-downs and capital gains on equity investments 5,517 - 4,581 (936)

Goodwill impairment (1,395)  - (1,395) - 

Others 616 (218) 834 2,182

Tax effect 4,594 466 4,128 (308)

Group Consolidated’s Equity and net result 404,171 50,281 375,809 62,210
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Parent Company reclassified Statement of Financial Position and Income Statement 

The following table shows the main reclassified financial and equity items for the Parent Company Datalogic 
S.p.A. as at 31 December 2019, compared with 31 December 2018.

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change Change %

Intangible assets 7,911 5,506 2,405 43.7%

Tangible assets 23,578 23,598 (20) -0.1%

Financial assets and equity investments 194,620 191,317 3,303 1.7%

Other non-current assets 1,018 6,984 (5,966) -85.4%

Total Fixed Assets 227,127 227,405 (278) -0.1%

Trade receivables 9,495 9,884 (389) -3.9%

Trade payables (5,768) (6,812) 1,044 -15.3%

Net Trade Working Capital 3,727 3,072 655 21.3%

Other current assets 101,906 7,430 94,476 1,271.5%

Other current liabilities and Provisions for risks, current (12,477) (9,428) (3,049) 32.3%

Net Working Capital 93,156 1,074 92,082 8,573.7%

Other non-current liabilities (3,147) (11,123) 7,976 -71.7%

Employee severance indemnity (633) (395) (238) 60.3%

Net Invested Capital 316,503 216,961 99,542 45.9%

Shareholders' Equity 353,548 278,267 75,281 27.1%

Net Financial Position (NFP) 37,046 61,306 (24,261) -39.6%
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The following table shows the reclassified main Income Statement items for the year, compared with the same 
period in the previous year:  

31.12.2019 % 31.12.2018 % Change Change %

Revenues 30,745 100.0% 29,059 100.0% 1,686 5.8%

Cost of goods sold (1,579) -5.1% (1,438) -4.9% (141) 9.8%

Gross Operating Margin 29,166 94.9% 27,621 95.1% 1,545 5.6%

Research and Development expenses (558) -1.8% (861) -3.0% 303 -35.2%

Distribution expenses (896) -2.9% (932) -3.2% 36 -3.9%

General and Administrative expenses (23,322) -75.9% (22,280) -76.7% (1,042) 4.7%

Other operating income/(expenses) 256 0.8% 2,113 7.3% (1,857) -87.9%

Total Operating expenses and others (24,520) -79.8% (21,960) -75.6% (2,560) 11.7%

Non-recurring costs/revenues and write-downs (1,302) -4.2% (496) -1.7% (806) 162.5%

Operating result (EBIT) 3,344 10.9% 5,165 17.8% (1,821) -35.3%

Financial Income/(Expenses) 101,198 329.2% 25,056 86.2% 76,142 303.9%

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 2,039 6.6% (174) -0.6% 2,213 n.a.

Profit/(Loss) before taxes (EBT) 106,581 346.7% 30,047 103.4% 76,534 254.7%

Taxes (1,541) -5.0% (707) -2.4% (834) 118.0%

Net Profit/(Loss) for the period 105,040 341.6% 29,340 101.0% 75,700 258.0%

Non-recurring costs/revenues and write-downs (1,302) -4.2% (496) -1.7% (806) 162.5%

Depreciation and write-downs of tangible assets (1,727) -5.6% (1,186) -4.1% (541) 45.6%

Amortisation and write-downs of intangible assets (1,308) -4.3% (1,029) -3.5% (279) 27.1%

EBITDA 7,681 25.0% 7,876 27.1% (195) -2.5%
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Stock performance 

Datalogic S.p.A. has been listed on the Borsa Italiana since 2001 - STAR segment of the MTA, Italy’s screen-based 
stock market, which comprises medium-sized companies with market capitalisations of between €40 million 
and €1 billion, committed to meeting standards of excellence. 

During 2019, the share reported a negative performance of 17.3%. The security reached a maximum value of 
€24.95 per share on 25 January 2019 and a minimum value of €12.04 on 28 August 2019. The average daily 
volumes exchanged in 2019 were approximately 105,000 shares, up compared to the average daily volumes of 
83,000 shares reported in the previous year.
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STOCK EXCHANGE 2019

SEGMENT STAR - MTA

BLOOMBERG CODE DAL.IM

REUTERS CODE DAL.MI

MKT CAP €985.99 MILLION as at 31 December 2019

NUMBER OF SHARES 58,446,491 (of which 1,148,337 treasury shares)

2019 MAX €24.95 (25 January 2019)

2019 MIN €12.04 (28 August 2019)

Relations with institutional investors 
and Shareholders
Datalogic actively strives to maintain an ongoing 
 dialogue with Shareholders and institutional investors, 
periodically arranging meetings with representatives 
of the Italian and international financial community, 
including annual roadshows organised by Borsa Ita-
liana for companies belonging to the STAR segment.

During 2019, the Company met over 160 institutional 
investors in one to one, lunch meetings and corporate 
events.

http://DAL.IM
http://DAL.MI
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Risk management policy

The Group is exposed to various types of corporate risk in carrying out its business. Financial risks (market risk, 
credit risk and liquidity risk) will be discussed more in detail in the following paragraph. The key corporate risks 
affecting the financial and economic situation of the Group are as follows:

a. Competences of Resources: the Group’s business is closely related to the technical skills of its employees, 
especially in the areas of Research and Development. To limit this risk, the Group carries out actions with a 
view to increasing its ability to attract and maintain highly qualified personnel, including implementation of 
advanced human resources management tools and a positive work environment.

b. Protection of technology: the Group reference market is characterised by the design and production of high-
tech products, with the resulting risk that the technologies adopted might be copied and used by other op-
erators in the sector. With regard to this risk, over the last few years the Group has already made significant 
investments in intellectual property. 

c. Procurement: the Group is exposed to contained procurement risk thanks to a strategy whereby every com-
ponent is sourced from several suppliers. In the few cases when components are sourced from a single 
supplier, the Group maintains adequate inventories of the critical components, in order to minimize the risks 
related to this situation.

d. Competition: the Datalogic Group operates in a market that is extremely dynamic and potentially attractive 
for new operators with financial means greater than those of the Company. To mitigate the risk associated 
with these events, the Company maintains a high level of investment in Research and Development (around 
9.7% of revenues as at 31 December 2019 and 10.0% in the core business represented by the Datalogic Divi-
sion) and a large portfolio of patents, which represents a significant barrier to the entry of new competitors. 
The Datalogic Group also has a strong commercial structure (direct presence in the key countries where the 
Group operates) and a solid network of commercial partners which makes it possible to ensure a high level 
of customer service and thus achieve a high degree of loyalty.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

In carrying out its business, the Group is exposed to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity 
risk.
The market risk consists in possible oscillations in the exchange rate (exchange rate risk) or in the interest rate 
(interest rate risk), which might have a negative impact on the value of assets, liabilities or estimated cash flows.
The Group manages each of the financial risks mentioned, in order to minimise them, sometimes through hedg-
ing derivatives. The Parent Company manages the market and liquidity risks, whereas credit risks are managed 
by the Group’s operating units, under the supervision of the Parent Company. For more information on financials 
risks and financial instruments, please refer to the relevant section in the notes to the accounts, which includes 
disclosure in accordance with IFRS 7.
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Information on Company ownership/corporate governance report

Pursuant to and by the effects of article 123-bis, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree 58 of 24 February 1998 (as 
subsequently amended), the Board of Directors of Datalogic S.p.A. has approved a report on corporate govern-
ance and company ownership for the year ended 31 December 2019, separate from the Report on Operations, 
containing information pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of article 123-bis above. 
This report is available to the public on the Company’s website www.datalogic.com.

Other information

Datalogic S.p.A. indirectly controls some companies established and governed by the law of non-European Union 
Countries and that have a relevant importance as per article 15 of the Consob Regulation 20249/2017 (former 
article 36 of the Consob Regulation 16191/2007) on the market regulation (“Market Regulation”).

Also pursuant to the aforesaid regulation, the Company has implemented in-house procedures to monitor the 
compliance with provisions set out by the Consob regulations. In particular, the appropriate corporate manage-
ment carry out a timing and periodical identification of relevant “extra-EU” companies and, with the collaboration 
of the companies involved, the collection of data and information is ensured, as well as the assessment of issues 
envisaged in the aforesaid article 15. 

It should be however stated that Datalogic is fully complying with provisions set out in article 15 of the above-men-
tioned Consob Regulation 20249/2017, and that conditions envisaged therein are present.

The Company complied with the opt-out system set forth in articles 70, paragraph 8, and 71, paragraph 1-bis, of 
the Issuer Regulation (implementation regulation of the Italian Consolidated Law on Finance (TUF), concerning 
the rules for issuers, adopted by Consob with resolution 11971 of 14 May 1999, as amended later), by making use 
of the right to depart from the obligation to publish information documents required on the occasion of significant 
mergers, demergers, capital increase by non-cash contributions, acquisitions and sales.

Pursuant to provisions set out by article 5, paragraph 3, letter b, of the Legislative Decree 254/2016, the Group 
provided separately for the Consolidated Non-Financial Report. The 2019 Consolidated Non-Financial Report, 
prepared according to the “GRI Standards” reporting (or based on the “GRI G4 Sustainability Reporting Guide-
lines”) is available on the Group internet website.

Number and value of treasury shares

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of ordinary shares was 58,446,491, including 1,148,337 held as 
treasury shares, equal to 1.96% of the share capital, making the number of shares in circulation at that date 
57,298,154. The shares have a nominal unit value of €0.52 and are fully paid up. 

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties, as disclosed in the financial statements, and described in detail in the related 
notes to the Income Statements items, to which reference is made, cannot be quantified as atypical or unusual, 
given that they can be included in the normal business of the Group companies, and are governed at arm’s length.

http://www.datalogic.com
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As regards the Procedure for Transactions with Related Parties, reference is made to the documents published 
on the website www.datalogic.com, in the Investor Relations section.

With resolution no. 17221 of 12 March 2010, also pursuant and by the effects of article 2391-bis of the Italian Civil 
Code, Consob adopted the Regulation with provisions on transactions with related parties, then amended with 
resolution no. 17389 dated 23 June 2010 (“Consob Regulations”).

In accordance with the Consob Regulations, in order to ensure transparency, as well as substantive and proce-
dural rectitude in transactions carried out by Datalogic with “related parties” pursuant to the aforesaid Consob 
Regulations, on 4 November 2010, the Company approved a specific and structured procedure for transactions 
with related parties (last amendment on 24 July 2015), which can be found on the website www.datalogic.com.

Pursuant to art. 5, par. 8, of the Consob Regulations, it should be noted that, over the period 01/01/2019 - 
31/12/2019, the Company’s Board of Directors did not approve any relevant transaction, as set out by art. 3, par. 
1, lett. b) of the Consob Regulations, or any transaction with minority related parties that had a significant impact 
on the Group’s equity position or profit/(loss).

Tax consolidation

The Parent Company Datalogic S.p.A. and other Italian subsidiaries fall within the scope of the “domestic tax con-
solidation” of Hydra S.p.A.. This permits the transfer of total net income or the tax loss of individual participant 
companies to the Parent Company, which calculates a single taxable income (or loss) for the Group.

Significant events of 2019

On 7 February 2019, after hearing the opinions of the Board of Statutory Auditors and the Audit and Risk Man-
agement Committee and the Remuneration and Appointments Committee, the Board of Directors of Datalogic 
S.p.A. resolved on appointing, with immediate effect, Mr. Marco Carnovale as Manager in charge of drawing up 
the Company’s accounting statements, pursuant to art. 154-bis of the T.U.F.. 

On 30 April 2019, the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Datalogic S.p.A. resolved on confirming the appointment 
of the Company’s Director, Mrs. Vera Negri Zamagni, up to the date of the Shareholders’ Meeting called to ap-
prove the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2020, pursuant and by the effects of article 2386, subsection 
1, of the Italian Civil Code. The Meeting also resolved that the number of the members of the Board of Directors 
should be nine and appointed Mr. Angelo Busani. The same Shareholders’ Meeting defined the annual remuner-
ation of the members of the Board of Directors, pursuant to art. 20 of the Articles of Association, appointed the 
Board of Statutory Auditors and determined the remuneration of the Chairman and Standing Auditors. Moreover, 
Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. was appointed Independent Auditor for the period from 2019 to 2027, pursuant to article 
13 of Legislative Decree no. 39/2010.
The Shareholders’ Meeting revoked, for the part not yet executed at the date of the Shareholders’ Meeting, the author-
isation to the Board of Directors to purchase treasury shares approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 23 May 2018, 
and at the same time authorised the Board of Directors, pursuant to article 2357 et seq. of the Italian Civil Code and 
article 132 of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998, to perform transactions to purchase the Parent Compa-
ny’s treasury shares, on one or more occasions, for a period not exceeding 18 months from the date of this resolution.

http://www.datalogic.com
http://www.datalogic.com
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On 7 August 2019, the Board of Directors appointed Mrs. Laura Bernardelli, Group CFO, as manager in charge of 
drawing up the Company’s accounting statements, pursuant to art. 154-bis of Legislative Decree no. 58/1998, as 
from 8 August 2019. As from 7 February 2019, the position had been held by Mr. Marco Carnovale.

On 1 October 2019, in implementation of the Shareholders’ Meeting resolution of 30 April 2019 authorising the 
purchase and sale of treasury shares, Datalogic S.p.A. informed that it signed a buy-back agreement with a bro-
ker for the repurchase of treasury shares on the market. 

Subsequent events

There were no events that occurred after year end closing except for the fact that, as from January 2020, the do-
mestic and international scenario was characterized by the widespreading of the Coronavirus and the consequent 
restrictive measures for its containment put in place by the authorities of the Countries concerned. 

In accordance with the recommendation of the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) dated 
11 March 2020 as noticed by Consob, information available at the date of this Report on the potential impact of 
Covid-19 on the Group is provided in the “Business Outlook” section.

Foreseeable evolution 

The positive performance of the Group in North America and growth in the turnover of new products confirm the 
soundness of the Group’s strategy. In a reference sector context that gradually deteriorated during 2019 due to 
the US-China “trade war” and the performance of some industrial sectors (in particular automotive), Datalogic’s 
turnover in APAC and EMEA declined during 2019. The slowdown in business was particularly significant in the 
fourth quarter, during which uncertainties led to a postponement of the investment decisions of some important 
customers of the Datalogic Group. 

Despite the global macroeconomic context, the strategy undertaken by the Group made it possible to end the 
year 2019 by tackling the drop in volumes and, to a lesser extent, margins, confirming the Group’s market posi-
tioning and ability to generate operating cash flows. Its sound capital and financial structure has also enabled the 
Group to increase its investment in Research and Development.

The uncertainty scenario reported in the second half of 2019 is likely to continue in 2020 as well. Starting from 
January, the global macroeconomic scenario was worsened by the Covid-19, whose spreading first hit China and, 
in the following weeks, other countries in the APAC area until it reached Europe, particularly Italy, and then the 
American continent.

These circumstances, which are extraordinary in nature and extent, will presumably have direct and indirect 
repercussions on economic activity and have created a context of general uncertainty, the evolution and ef-
fects of which are not foreseeable. The impact of the Covid-19 virus on Group results will depend on both the 
extent to which the virus will spread within the markets in which the Group operates through the engineering, 
distribution and sale of its products, and the macroeconomic effects this virus will have in the involved coun-
tries. Covid-19 is currently spreading exponentially in Western European countries and the United States, but 
the impact of the virus is still uncertain. The Group’s diversification into various markets and geographical 
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areas, as well as its limited exposure to the Italian market, will help mitigate the negative effects of Covid-19 
in particular areas.

Although in the context of uncertainty mentioned above, the Group will continue its growth strategy focused, 
among others, on its constant commitment to innovation and the development of new products, on maximizing 
profitability, also through a careful cost saving policy, while maintaining financial and equity soundness.

Secondary locations

The Parent Company has no secondary locations.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors 
(Mr. Romano Volta)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS  (€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

A) Non-current assets (1+2+3+4+5+6+7+8)  391,099 369,712

1) Tangible assets  89,602 77,995

 Land 1 8,778 8,349

 Buildings 1 31,820 30,548

 Other assets 1 35,418 34,932

 Assets in progress and payments on account 1 13,586 4,166

2) Intangible assets  236,597 225,655

 Goodwill 2 186,126 181,149

 Development costs 2 9,927 10,381

 Other 2 28,430 32,454

 Assets in progress and payments on account 2 12,114 1,671

3) Right-of-use assets 3 9,753 0

4) Equity investments in affiliates 4 776 2,173

5) Financial assets  9,465 7,224

 Equity investments 6 9,465 7,224

 Securities 6 0 0

6) Non-current financial receivables  0 0

7) Trade and other receivables 7 1,334 2,268

8) Deferred tax assets 13 43,572 54,397

B) Current assets (9+10+11+12+13+14+15)  413,510 460,446

9) Inventories  102,921 95,826

 Raw and ancillary materials and consumables 8 41,754 40,369

 Work in progress and semi-finished products 8 23,582 24,440

 Finished products and goods 8 37,585 31,017

10) Trade and other receivables  103,127 113,633

 Trade receivables 7 78,203 90,439

  of which from associates 7 895 1,014

  of which from related parties 7 0 8

 Other receivables, accrued income and prepaid expenses 7 24,924 23,194

  of which from associates  0 106

  of which from related parties  77 76

11) Tax receivables 9 24,421 18,661

  of which from Parent Company  12,742 11,276

12) Financial assets  31,200 50,896

 Securities 6 0 0

 Other 6 31,200 50,896

13) Current financial receivables  0 0

14) Financial assets - Derivative instruments 6 0 0

15) Cash and cash equivalents 151,841 181,430

C) Assets Held-for-sale  0 0

Total Assets (A+B+C)  804,609 830,158
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

LIABILITIES (€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

A) Total Shareholders' Equity (1+2+3+4+5+6) 10 404,171 375,809

1) Share capital 10 30,392 30,392

2) Reserves 10 128,972 123,915

3) Retained earnings 10 192,885 159,292

4) Profit/(Loss) for the period 10 50,069 62,210

5) Group Shareholders’ Equity 10 402,318 375,809

6) Profit/(Loss) for the period - Minorities 10 212  0

6) Minority share capital 10 1,641  0

6) Minority interests  1,853 0

B) Non-current liabilities (7+8+9+10+11+12+13)  162,091 208,097

7) Non-current financial payables 11 115,578 157,407

8) Non-current financial liabilities  0 0

9) Tax payables  68 43

10) Deferred tax liabilities 12 17,819 32,518

11) Post-employment benefits 13 7,026 6,541

12) Provisions for risks and charges, non-current 14 4,916 6,320

13) Other liabilities   15 16,684 5,268

C) Current liabilities (14+15+16+17+18)  238,347 246,252

14) Trade and other payables  154,153 171,597

 Trade payables 15 106,029 117,139

  of which to associates 15 55 260

  of which to related parties  133 148

 Other payables, accrued liabilities and deferred income 15 48,124 54,458

15) Tax payables 9 25,822 16,382

  of which to Parent Company  15,913 9,557

16) Provisions for risks and charges, current 14 4,273 7,197

17) Current financial liabilities  0 0

18) Current financial payables 11 54,099 51,076

Total Liabilities (A+B+C)  804,609 830,158
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Consolidated Income Statement

(€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

1) Revenues 16 612,486 631,015

 Revenues from sale of products  567,974 596,540

 Revenues from services  44,512 34,475

  of which from related parties and associates  4,982 4,699

2) Cost of goods sold 17 319,780 325,798

 of which non-recurring  414 734

  of which to related parties and associates  612 1,056

Gross Operating Margin (1-2)  292,706 305,217

3) Other operating revenues 18 6,667 3,994

4) Research and Development expenses 17 59,376 62,019

 of which amortisation and write-downs pertaining to acquisitions  104 99

  of which to related parties and associates  460 3,304

5) Distribution expenses 17 121,631 112,225

 of which non-recurring  842 0

  of which to related parties and associates 6 37 225

6) General and administrative expenses 17 50,405 49,135

 of which non-recurring  1,503 1,473

 of which amortisation and write-downs pertaining to acquisitions  4,753 4,506

  of which to related parties and associates  212 276

7) Other operating expenses 17 2,490 2,315

 of which non-recurring  0 53

Total operating costs  233,902 225,694

Operating result  65,471 83,517

8) Financial income 19 40,724 31,267

9) Financial expenses 19 43,961 36,935

Financial Income/(Expenses) (8-9)  (3,237) (5,668)

Profit/(Loss) before taxes from continuing operations  62,234 77,849

Income taxes 20 11,953 15,639

Profit/(Loss) for the period  50,281 62,210

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (Euro) 21 0.87 1.07

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (Euro) 21 0.87 1.07

Attributable to:    

  Shareholders of the Parent Company 50,069 -   

 Minority interests  212 -   
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Profit/(Loss) for the period  50,281 62,210

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income:    

    

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income which will 
be subsequently reclassified to profit/(loss) for the period:  0 0

  

Profit/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments (cash flow hedge) 10 174 305

Profit/(Loss) due to translation of the accounts of foreign companies 10 6,129 9,962

Profit/(Loss) from financial assets at FVOCI 10 1,686 (2,313)

 of which tax effect  (22) (1,586)

    

Total other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income which 
will be subsequently reclassified to profit/(loss) for the period  7,989 7,954

    

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income which will 
not be subsequently reclassified to profit/(loss) for the period    

    

Actuarial gains (losses) on defined-benefit plans  (150)  

 of which tax effect  78  

    

Total other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income which 
will not be subsequently reclassified to profit/(loss) for the period  (150) 0

    

Total profit/(loss) of Comprehensive Income Statement  7,839 7,954

    

Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period  58,120 70,164

Attributable to:    

Parent Company Shareholders  57,908 70,164

Minority interests  212 0
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

(€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Profit (loss) before taxes  62,234 77,849

Depreciation of tangible assets and write-downs 1, 2 12,128 10,600

Amortisation of intangible assets and write-downs 1, 2 9,989 10,136

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3 4,643 0

Losses (Gains) from sale of fixed assets 18, 19 9 (131)

Change in provisions for risks and charges 15 (4,172) (6,866)

Change in bad debt provisions 18 (1,649) 1,713

Change in employee benefits reserve 14 335 (92)

Other non-monetary changes  3,149 2,171

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from operations before changes 
in working capital 86,666 95,379

Change in trade receivables 7 13,885 (6,320)

Change in final inventories 8 (7,095) (9,888)

Change in trade payables 16 (11,110) 6,851

Change in other current assets 7 (1,730) (74)

Change in other current liabilities 16 (6,334) (3,503)

Change in other non-current assets 7 934 4,185

Change in other non-current liabilities 16 11,416 1,702

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from operations after changes 
in working capital  86,632 88,333

Change in taxes  (12,122) (17,832)

Interest paid  (3,641) (3,414)

Interest collected  1,980 255

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from operations (A)  72,849 67,342

Increase in intangible assets 2 (15,021) (10,516)

Decrease in intangible assets 2 16 117

Increase in tangible assets  1 (22,859) (18,902)

Decrease in tangible assets  1 422 466

Capital increase of subsidiaries, net of acquired cash  1,627 0

Change in unconsolidated equity investments 5 (555) 5,694

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from investments (B)  (36,370) (23,141)
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(€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Change in financial receivables 5 19,696 (24,222)

Change in financial payables 12, 6 (53,282) (49,036)

(Purchase)/sale of treasury shares 11 (4,303) (16,930)

Dividend payment 11 (28,716) (28,914)

Effect of change in cash and cash equivalents  564 (1,308)

Other changes  (28) 1,530

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from financial activity (C)  (66,069) (118,880)

Net increase (decrease) in available cash (A+B+C) 10 (29,589) (74,679)

Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 10 181,430 256,109

Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period 10 151,841 181,430
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Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity

Description Share capital Share premium 
reserve

 Treasury shares  Translation 
reserve 

Other
Reserves 

Retained
earnings 

Group
Profit (Loss) 

Group 
Shareholders’ 

Equity 

Profit (Loss)
 of Minority 

interests

 Minority
interests 

 Profit (Loss) Shareholders’ 
Equity 

01.01.2019 30,392 111,779 (10,810) 20,401 2,545 159,292 62,210 375,809 62,210 375,809

Allocation of earnings           -  62,210 (62,210) - (62,210) - 

Dividends           -  (28,716)  (28,716)  (28,716)

Treasury shares   (4,303)     (4,303)    (4,303)

Stock Grant     1,521   1,521    1,521

Other changes     99  99  1,641  1,740

Profit/(Loss) for the period       50,069 50,069 212 212 50,281 50,281

Other components of the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income    6,129 1,710   7,839        7,839

Total comprehensive profit (loss) - - 6,129 1,710 - 50,069 57,908         212  212  58,120

31.12.2019 30,392 111,779 (15,113) 26,530 5,776 192,885 50,069 402,318 212       1,853 50,281 404,171

Description Share capital Share premium 
reserve

 Treasury shares  Translation 
reserve 

Other
Reserves 

Retained
earnings 

Group
Profit (Loss) 

Group 
Shareholders’ 

Equity 

Profit (Loss)
 of Minority 

interests

 Minority
interests 

 Profit (Loss) Shareholders’ 
Equity 

01.01.2018 Restated 30,392 111,779 6,120 10,439 4,376 128,126 60,080 351,314 - - 60,080 351,314

Allocation of earnings      60,080 (60,080) - - - (60,080) - 

Dividends      (28,914)  (28,914) - - - (28,914)

Treasury shares  (16,930)     (16,930) - - - (16,930)

Stock Grant     177   177 - - - 177

Other changes        - - - - 

Profit/(Loss) for the period       62,210 62,210 - - 62,210 62,210

Other components of the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income    9,962 (2,008)   7,954 - - - 7,954

Total comprehensive profit (loss) 9,962 (2,008)  7,954 - - 62,210 70,164

31.12.2018 30,392 111,779 (10,810) 20,401 2,545 159,292 62,210 375,809 - - 62,210 375,809
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Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity

Description Share capital Share premium 
reserve

 Treasury shares  Translation 
reserve 

Other
Reserves 

Retained
earnings 

Group
Profit (Loss) 

Group 
Shareholders’ 

Equity 

Profit (Loss)
 of Minority 

interests

 Minority
interests 

 Profit (Loss) Shareholders’ 
Equity 

01.01.2019 30,392 111,779 (10,810) 20,401 2,545 159,292 62,210 375,809 62,210 375,809

Allocation of earnings           -  62,210 (62,210) - (62,210) - 

Dividends           -  (28,716)  (28,716)  (28,716)

Treasury shares   (4,303)     (4,303)    (4,303)

Stock Grant     1,521   1,521    1,521

Other changes     99  99  1,641  1,740

Profit/(Loss) for the period       50,069 50,069 212 212 50,281 50,281

Other components of the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income    6,129 1,710   7,839        7,839

Total comprehensive profit (loss) - - 6,129 1,710 - 50,069 57,908         212  212  58,120

31.12.2019 30,392 111,779 (15,113) 26,530 5,776 192,885 50,069 402,318 212       1,853 50,281 404,171

Description Share capital Share premium 
reserve

 Treasury shares  Translation 
reserve 

Other
Reserves 

Retained
earnings 

Group
Profit (Loss) 

Group 
Shareholders’ 

Equity 

Profit (Loss)
 of Minority 

interests

 Minority
interests 

 Profit (Loss) Shareholders’ 
Equity 

01.01.2018 Restated 30,392 111,779 6,120 10,439 4,376 128,126 60,080 351,314 - - 60,080 351,314

Allocation of earnings      60,080 (60,080) - - - (60,080) - 

Dividends      (28,914)  (28,914) - - - (28,914)

Treasury shares  (16,930)     (16,930) - - - (16,930)

Stock Grant     177   177 - - - 177

Other changes        - - - - 

Profit/(Loss) for the period       62,210 62,210 - - 62,210 62,210

Other components of the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income    9,962 (2,008)   7,954 - - - 7,954

Total comprehensive profit (loss) 9,962 (2,008)  7,954 - - 62,210 70,164

31.12.2018 30,392 111,779 (10,810) 20,401 2,545 159,292 62,210 375,809 - - 62,210 375,809
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General information 

The Datalogic Group is the global leader in the markets of automatic data capture and process automation. The 
Group is specialised in the design and production of bar code readers, mobile computers, detection, measure-
ment and security sensors, vision and laser marking systems and RFID.
Its pioneering solutions contribute to increase efficiency and quality of processes along the entire value chain, in 
the Retail, Manufacturing, Transportation & Logistics and Healthcare sectors.
Datalogic S.p.A. (hereinafter “Datalogic”, the “Parent Company” or the “Company”) is a company listed in the STAR 
Segment of the Italian Stock Exchange managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., with its registered office in Italy. The 
address of the registered office is Via Candini, 2 - Lippo di Calderara (BO).
The Company is a subsidiary of Hydra S.p.A., which is also based in Bologna.
This Consolidated Annual Financial Report as at 31 December 2019 includes the figures of the Parent Company 
and its subsidiaries (defined hereinafter as the “Group”) and its minority interests in associated companies.

The publication of this Consolidated Annual Financial Report as at 31 December 2019 of the Datalogic Group was 
authorised by resolution of the Board of Directors dated 19 March 2020.

Basis of presentation

1) General criteria
Pursuant to the European Regulation 1606/2002, the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in com-
pliance with the International Accounting Standards (IAS/IFRS) issued by the IASB (International Accounting 
Standards Board) and endorsed by the European Union, pursuant to European Regulation 1725/2003 and subse-
quent amendments, with all the interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commit-
tee (“IFRS-IC”), formerly the Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”), endorsed by the European Commission 
at the date of approval of the draft Financial Statements by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and 
contained in the related EU Regulations published at this date, and in compliance with the provisions of Consob 
Regulation 11971 of 14 May 1999 and subsequent amendments.  

2) Financial statements
The financial statements adopted are compliant with those required by IAS 1 and which were used in the Consol-
idated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, in particular: 

 � current and non-current assets, as well as current and non-current liabilities are disclosed separately in the 
Statement of Financial Position. Current assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, are those set to 
be realised, sold or used during the Group’s normal operational cycle; current liabilities are those whose ex-
tinction is envisaged during the Group’s normal operating cycle or in the 12 months after the reporting date;

 � with regard to the Income Statement, cost and revenue items are disclosed based on grouping by function, as 
this classification was deemed more meaningful for comprehension of the Group’s business result;

 � the Statement of Comprehensive Income presents the components that determine profit/(loss) for the period 
and the costs and revenues reported directly under Shareholders’ Equity;

 � the Statement of Cash Flow is presented using the indirect method.

Furthermore, as required by Consob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006, with regard to the Consolidated In-
come Statement, costs and revenues from non-recurring operations have been specifically identified and the 
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related effects on the major interim levels have been indicated separately. Non-recurring events and transactions 
are mainly identified according to the nature of the transactions. In particular, items which, given their nature, 
do not occur on an ongoing basis during normal operations are included among non-recurring costs/revenues 
(these include, for example: income/expenses from business combinations and income/expenses from corpo-
rate reorganisation processes). 

The Consolidated Annual Financial Report was prepared based on the draft Financial Statements as at 31 Decem-
ber 2019, drawn up by the Boards of Directors or, if available, based on the Financial Statements approved by the 
Shareholders’ Meetings of the related consolidated companies, duly adjusted, if applicable, to align them to the 
classification and accounting criteria adopted by the Group.

The Consolidated Annual Financial Report was prepared in compliance with the general criterion of a reliable and 
true vision of the Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows, on a going concern and on an 
accrual basis, in compliance with the general principles of consistency of presentation, relevance and aggrega-
tion, no offsetting and comparability of information.

The Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity analytically details the changes occurring in the financial year 
and in the previous financial year.

In preparing the Consolidated Annual Financial Report, the historic cost principle has been adopted for all assets 
and liabilities except for some available-for-sale financial assets for which the fair value principle has been ap-
plied. 

Preparation of IFRS-compliant Financial Statements requires the use of some estimates. Reference is made to 
the section describing the main estimates made in this set of Consolidated Financial Statements.
 
The Accounting Standards were uniformly applied to all Group companies and for all periods presented.

This Consolidated Annual Financial Report is drawn up in thousands of Euro, which is the Group’s “functional” and 
“presentation” currency as envisaged by IAS 21.

3) Consolidation standards and policies 

Subsidiaries
As defined in IFRS 10, control is obtained when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee and, at the same time, has the ability to affect those returns through its power over 
the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if the Group has:
 � power over the investee (i.e. the investor has existing rights that give it the ability to direct the investee’s 

relevant activities);
 � exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
 � the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
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In general, it is assumed that the majority of votes entails a control. To support this assumption, and when the 
Group holds less than the majority of votes (or similar rights), the Group considers all relevant facts and circum-
stances in order to define whether it controls the investees, including: 

 � agreements with holders of other voting rights; 
 � rights resulting from agreements; 
 � voting rights and potential voting rights of the Group. 

The Group reconsiders whether it has the control on an investee if the facts and circumstances show that chang-
es occurred in one or more of the three elements used for the definition of control. An investee is consolidated 
when the Group obtains its control and the consolidation ends when the Group loses control. Assets, liabilities, 
revenues and costs of the investee, which is acquired or sold during the year, are included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements at the date in which the Group obtains control until the date in which the Group no longer 
exercises control on the entity.

In order to ensure consistency with the Group accounting criteria, when necessary the Financial Statements of 
the investees are adequately adjusted. All assets and liabilities, Shareholders’ Equity, revenues, costs and inter-
company cash flows related to transactions between Group entities are entirely derecognised when consolidated.
Changes in equity investments in an investee that do not entail the loss of control are recognised in Shareholders’ Equity.
If the Group loses control in an investee, all related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, minority interests and 
other components in the Shareholders’ Equity must be derecognised, while any possible profit or loss will be 
recognised in the Income Statement. The equity interest possibly maintained must be recognised at fair value.
Reciprocal payables and receivables and cost and revenues transactions between consolidated companies and 
the effects of all significant transactions between them have been eliminated.
More specifically, profits not yet realised with third parties, stemming from intercompany transactions and those 
included, as of the reporting date, in the measurement of inventories have been eliminated where they exist.

Business combinations
Company combinations are accounted for by using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured 
as the sum of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value on the acquisition date and the amount of mi-
nority interests in the acquired company. For all business combinations, the Group assesses whether to measure 
the minority interests in the acquired company at fair value or as a proportion of the minority shareholdings in the 
net identifiable assets of the acquired company. The acquisition costs are written off in the year and recognised 
under administrative expenses.
If the business combination is carried out in more than one step, the equity investment previously held is recal-
culated at fair value at the acquisition date and any resulting profit or loss is recognised in the Income Statement. 
Any contingent consideration, to be recognised, is measured by the purchaser at fair value on the acquisition 
date. The change in fair value of the potential amount stated as financial asset or liability, under the scope of IAS 
39 “Financial instruments”: Recognition and Measurement, must be recognised in the Income Statement.  
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, which is the surplus of the consideration paid, as compared to the net 
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities undertaken by the Group. If the fair value of the acquired net assets 
exceeds the aggregate amount paid, the Group assesses whether all assets acquired and liabilities undertaken 
have been correctly identified and then reviews the procedures used to determine the amounts to be recognised 
at the acquisition date. If the new measurement highlights a fair value of net assets acquired, which is higher than 
the amount paid, the difference (profit) is recognised in the Income Statement. 
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost, less any cumulative impairment losses. In impairment 
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, since the acquisition date, to each Group CGU, 
which is expected will benefit from synergies of the business combination, regardless of the fact that other assets 
or liabilities related to the acquired entity are allocated to those CGUs.

Associates
Associates are companies in which the Group has significant influence but does not exercise control over op-
erations. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds 20 to 50 percent of voting rights. In 
the absence of this assumption, the Group assesses specific facts and circumstances to check the presence of 
significant influence.
Equity investments in associates are measured at Equity. Under this method, the equity investment in an asso-
ciate is initially recognised according to the aforesaid acquisition method and the carrying value is increased or 
decreased to recognise the portion of the profits or losses of the investee that are realised after the acquisition. 
The goodwill concerning the associate is included in the carrying value of the investment and is not subject to 
depreciation, nor to an individual impairment test.
The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the Income Statement, where-
as its post-acquisition share of changes in reserves is recognised in reserves. Cumulative post-acquisition chang-
es are included in the investment’s carrying value. 
Unrealised profits relating to transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated in proportion to 
the Group’s interests in such associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the loss is considered to 
represent impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting standards adopted by associates have been modified 
when necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
Upon losing significant influence over an associate, the Group measures and recognises the residual equity in-
vestments at fair value. Any difference between the carrying value of the equity investments on the date that sig-
nificant influence is lost, as well as the fair value of the residual equity investments and the consideration received 
must be recognised in the Income Statement.
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4) Translation criteria of items in foreign currency 
The exchange rates used to determine the countervalue in Euro of Financial Statements expressed in foreign 
currency of subsidiaries (currency for 1 Euro) are shown hereunder:

Currency (ISO Code) Quantity of currency/1 Euro

 December 2019 December 2018

 Final exchange rate Average exchange
rate for the period

Final exchange rate Average exchange
rate for the period

US Dollar (USD)         1.1234          1.1195          1.1450          1.1810 

British Pound Sterling (GBP)         0.8508          0.8778          0.8945          0.8847 

Swedish Krona (SEK)        10.4468         10.5891         10.2548         10.2583 

Singapore Dollar (SGD)         1.5111          1.5273          1.5591          1.5926 

Japanese Yen (JPY)       121.9400        122.0058        125.8500        130.3959 

Australian Dollar (AUD)         1.5595          1.6109          1.6220          1.5797 

Hong Kong Dollar (HKD)         8.7473          8.7715          8.9675          9.2559 

Chinese Renminbi (CNY)         7.8205          7.7355          7.8751          7.8080 

Brazilian Real (BRL)         4.5157          4.4134          4.4440          4.3085 

Mexican Peso (MXN)        21.2202         21.5565         22.4921         22.7054 

Hungarian Forint (HUF)       330.5300        325.2967        320.9800        318.8897 

5) Accounting Policies and Standards applied
The accounting criteria used to prepare the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 December 2019 are described below. The Accounting Standards described have been consistently applied by 
all Group entities.

Tangible assets 
Owned tangible assets are initially recognised at the cost of contribution, purchase, or in-house construction. The 
cost comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to make the asset available for use (including, when sig-
nificant and in the presence of effective obligations, the present value of the estimated costs for decommissioning 
and removal of the asset and for reinstatement of the location), net of trade discounts and allowances.

Some tangible assets in the “Land and buildings” categories were measured at fair value (market value) as at 
1 January 2004 (IFRS transition date) and this value was used as the deemed cost. The cost of buildings is de-
preciated net of the residual value estimated as the realisation value obtainable via disposal at the end of the 
building’s useful life.

Costs incurred after purchase are recognised in the asset’s carrying value, or are recognised as a separate asset, 
only if it is thought likely that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will be enjoyed and the 
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asset’s cost can be reliably measured. Maintenance and repair costs or replacement costs that do not have the 
above characteristics are recognised in the income statement in the year in which they are borne.

Tangible assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis each year – starting from the time when the asset is 
available for use, or when it is potentially able to provide the economic benefits associated with it – according to 
economic/technical rates determined according to assets’ residual possibility of use and taking into account the 
month when they became available for use in the first year of utilisation.
Land is considered to be an asset with an indefinite life and therefore not subject to depreciation.
The depreciation rates applied by the Group are as follows: 

Asset category Annual depreciation rates

Property:

Buildings 2% - 3.3%

Land 0%

Plant and equipment:

Automatic operating machines 20% - 14.29%

Furnaces and appurtenances 14%

Generic/specific production plant 20% - 10%

Other assets:

Plants pertaining to buildings 8.33% - 10% - 6.67%

Lightweight constructions 6.67% - 4%

Production equipment & electronic instruments 20% - 10%

Moulds 20%

Electronic office machinery 33% - 20% - 10%

Office furniture and fittings 10% - 6.67% - 5%

Cars 25%

Freight vehicles 14%

Trade show & exhibition equipment 11% - 20%

Improvements to third-party assets Contract duration

If, regardless of the depreciation already posted, an impairment emerges, the asset is written down; if the rea-
sons for write-down disappear in later years, the original value is reinstated. The residual value and useful life of 
assets are reviewed at least at each year-end in order to assess any significant changes in value.
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Assets held under lease contracts 
As regards the recognition and related measurement of lease contracts, as well as the recording of leased goods 
(also operating leases) in the Assets, reference is made to the description in the following paragraph concerning 
the new Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Group. 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are recognised under assets in the Statement of Financial Position when it is likely that use 
of the asset will generate future economic benefits and when the asset’s costs can be reliably calculated. They 
are initially recognised at the value of contribution or at acquisition or production cost, inclusive of any ancil-
lary costs.

If tangible and intangible assets are sold, the date of disposal will be the date when the purchaser obtains the 
control of the assets, pursuant to requirements set forth on performance obligations by the IFRS 15 standard. 
The profit or loss generated by the consideration is accounted for in the Income Statement and is determined 
according to requirements to determine the transaction price envisaged by IFRS 15. The following amendments 
to the estimated consideration used to determine the profit or loss must be recognised pursuant to requirements 
set forth by IFRS 15 in relation to changes in the transaction price.

Goodwill
Goodwill is initially valued at cost, which is the surplus between the cost of the business combination and the 
portion pertaining to the Group in the net identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities undertaken by the Group, 
according to the partial goodwill approach. If the consideration is less than the fair value of the net assets of the 
acquired subsidiary, the difference is recognised in the Income Statement. It is an intangible asset with an indef-
inite life.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any cumulative impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units (CGUs) and is tested for impairment annually or more fre-
quently, if events or changes in circumstances suggest possible loss of value, pursuant to IAS 36 “Impairment of 
Assets”. 

If the goodwill has been allocated to a cash generating unit (CGU) and the entity disposes of part of this unit, 
the goodwill associated with the sold unit must be included in the carrying value of the asset when the profit 
or loss on disposal is determined. The goodwill associated with the disposed asset must be determined 
on the basis of the values relating to the disposed asset and the part of the CGU that was maintained. The 
same criterion of related values is applied also when the format of the internal reporting is changed and 
affects the composition of the Cash Generating Units that received the goodwill, in order to define its new 
allocation.

Research and Development expenses
As required by IAS 38, research costs are entered in the Income Statement at the time when the costs are in-
curred.
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Development costs for projects concerning significantly innovative products or processes are capitalised only if 
it is possible to demonstrate:

 � the technical possibility of completing the intangible asset in such a way as to make it available for use or sale;
 � the intention of completing the intangible assets for use or sale;
 � the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
 � the ability to reliably measure the cost attributable to the intangible asset during its development;
 � the availability of adequate technical, financial or other resources to complete the intangible asset’s develop-

ment and for its use or sale;
 � how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

In the absence of any one of the above requirements, the costs in question are fully recognised in the Income 
Statement at the time when they are borne.
Development costs have a finite useful life and are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis from the 
start of the product’s commercial production for a period equal to the useful life of the products to which they 
relate, generally estimated to be five years.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets include special intangible asset purchased by the Group as part of business combinations 
and therefore they were identified and recognised at fair value at acquisition date according to the purchase 
method of accounting mentioned above.

These assets are considered to be intangible assets of finite duration and are amortised over their presumable 
useful life (see the next table).

Amortisation
Intangible assets of finite duration are systematically amortised according to their projected future usefulness, 
so that the net value at the reporting date corresponds to their residual usefulness or to the amount recoverable 
according to corporate business plans. Amortisation starts when the asset is available for use.

The useful life for each category is detailed below:

Description Useful Life - years

Goodwill Indefinite useful life

Development costs 5

Other intangible assets:

- Software licences 3/5

- Patents (formerly PSC) 20

- Patents 10

- Know-how 10

- SAP licences 10

- User licences Contract duration
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Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised but tested to identify any impairment of value 
annually, or more frequently when there is evidence that the asset may have suffered impairment. The residual 
values, the useful lives and the amortisation of intangible assets are reviewed at each year end and, when re-
quired, corrected prospectively. The useful lives remained unchanged compared to the previous year.

Impairment 
Tangible and intangible assets are tested for impairment in the presence of specific indicators of loss of value, and 
at least annually for intangible assets with an indefinite life and goodwill.
The aim of this impairment test is to ensure that tangible and intangible assets are not carried at a value ex-
ceeding their recoverable value, consisting of the higher between their fair value, less selling costs and their 
value in use.
Value in use is calculated based on the future cash flows that are expected to originate from the asset or CGU 
(cash generating unit) to which the asset belongs. Cash flows are discounted to present value using a discount 
rate reflecting the market’s current estimate of the time value of money and of the risks specific to the asset or 
CGU to which presumable realisation value refers.

If the recoverable value of the asset or CGU, to which it belongs, is less than the net carrying value, the asset in 
question is written down to reflect its impairment, with recognition of the latter through the Income Statement 
for the year.

Impairment losses relating to CGUs are allocated firstly to goodwill and, for the remaining amount, to the other 
assets on a proportional basis.

If the reasons causing it cease to exist, impairment is reversed within the limits of the amount of what would 
have been the book value, net of amortisation calculated using the historical cost, if no impairment had been 
recognised.
Any reinstatements of value are recognised in the Income Statement. The value of goodwill, previously impaired, 
cannot be recovered, as envisaged by the International Accounting Standards.

Financial assets and liabilities 
The Group measures at fair value all financial instruments such as derivatives at each annual reporting date. Fair 
value is the price that would be received for the sale of an asset or that would be paid for transfer of a liability in 
a normal transaction between market operators at the date of measurement.

A measurement of fair value assumes that the sale of the asset or transfer of the liability takes place:
 � in the main market of the asset or liability; 
 � when there is no main market, in the market most advantageous for the asset or liability.

The main market or most advantageous market must be accessible for the Group. The fair value of an asset or 
liability is measured by adopting the assumptions that the market operators would use in determining the price 
of the asset or liability, presuming that they act to meet their economic interest in the best way. Measurement of 
the fair value of a non-financial asset considers the capability of a market operator to generate economic benefits 
by using the asset in its maximum and best use or by selling it to another market operator that would use it in 
its maximum and best use.
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The Group uses measurement methods that are appropriate for the situation, and for which data available to 
measure fair value are sufficient, while maximising the use of relevant inputs observable and limiting the use of 
non-observable inputs. All assets and liabilities measured or recognised at fair value are classified based on a fair 
value hierarchy and described hereunder:

 � Level 1 - listed prices (not adjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities the entity of which is 
identifiable at the measurement date;

 � Level 2 - input data other than listed prices included in Level 1 which can be observed, either directly or indi-
rectly for the asset or liability to be measured;

 � Level 3 - the valuation techniques for which input data cannot be observed for the asset or liability to be 
measured.

The fair value measurement is classified internally at the same fair value hierarchy level in which the lowest hier-
archy input used for the measurement is stated.
As regards assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements at fair value on a recurring basis, 
the Group determines whether transfers between hierarchy levels occurred while revising the classification at 
each annual reporting date.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract generating a financial asset for an entity and a financial liability or an equity 
instrument for another entity.

Financial assets
The financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value, increased by their ancillary charges if the financial 
assets are not recognised at their fair value through profit or loss. Trade receivables that do not include a sig-
nificant financing component are excluded. For these receivables the Group applies the practical expedient and 
measures them at the transaction price, as determined pursuant to IFRS 15. 

Upon recognition, for future measurements, financial assets are stated based on four possible measurement 
modalities:

 � financial assets at amortised cost;
 � financial assets at FV through OCI with a reclassification of cumulative profits and losses;
 � financial assets at FV through OCI without reversal of cumulative profits and losses when eliminated (equity 

instruments); 
 � financial assets at FV through profit or loss.

The selection of the classification of financial assets depends on the following:
 � nature of financial assets, determined primarily by the characteristics of expected contractual cash flows;
 � business model that the Group applies to the management of the financial assets in order to generate cash 

flows, which might result from the collection of contractual cash flows, as well as from the sale of financial 
assets or from both.
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In order to classify and measure a financial asset at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, this asset shall generate cash flows that depend solely on payments of principal and interest (SPPI). This 
measurement is defined as SPPI test and it is performed at instrument level.

Financial assets are derecognised from the Financial Statements when the right to receive cash no longer exists, 
the Group has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed the contractual obliga-
tion to pay them to a third party in their entirety and without delay and (1) has transferred essentially all the risks 
and benefits of ownership of the financial asset or (2) has not transferred or essentially held all the risks and 
benefits of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

In the cases in which the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has signed an 
agreement based on which it retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but 
takes on a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more beneficiaries (pass-through), it assesses 
whether and to what extent it has retained the risks and benefits pertaining to the ownership.

As regards trade receivables and contract-related assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating 
the expected losses. Therefore, the Group does not monitor changes in credit risk, but the expected loss is fully 
recognised at each reference date. As an instrument to determine the expected losses, the Group has defined a 
matrix system based on historical information, reviewed to take account of prospective elements, with reference 
to the specific types of debtors and their economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Expenses are recognised in the income statement with the 
effective interest rate method, except for financial liabilities acquired for trading or derivatives (see following 
paragraph), or financial liabilities designated at FVTPL by the Management at first-time recognition, which are 
measured at fair value with counter-entry in the income statement.
Financial guarantees given are agreements envisaging a payment to repay the owner of a debt security against a 
loss incurred due to a non-payment by the debtor at the contractual maturity term. If the financial guarantees are 
issued by the Group, they are initially recognised as liabilities at fair value, increased by transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the issue of the guarantee itself. The liability is then measured at the higher between the 
best estimated disbursement, required to fulfil the guaranteed obligation at the reporting date, and the initially 
recognised amount, less accumulated amortisation.
A financial liability is written off when the obligation underlying the liability has been extinguished, annulled or 
fulfilled. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another one from the same lender, under conditions that are 
essentially different, or if the terms and conditions of an existing liability are essentially amended, this change 
or amendment will be treated as a reversal of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, with rec-
ognition in the income statement of any differences involving the carrying values. In the event of amendments 
on financial liabilities defined as irrelevant, the economic effects of renegotiation are recognised in the income 
statement.

Offsetting financial instruments
A financial asset and liability can be offset and the net balance can be shown on the Statement of Financial Po-
sition if there is a current legal right to offset the amounts recognised and there is the intention to settle the net 
remainder, or realise the asset and at the same time settle the liability.
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Financial derivatives
Derivatives, including embedded derivatives, separate from the main contract, are initially recognised at fair 
value.
Derivatives are classified as hedging instruments when the relation between derivatives and the object matter of 
the hedging is formally documented and the effectiveness of the hedging, which is periodically checked, is high.
When the hedging derivatives hedge the risk of changes in fair value of the hedged instruments, they are recog-
nised at fair value, and the effects are charged to the income statement. Accordingly, the hedged instruments are 
adjusted to reflect the changes in fair value, associated to the hedged risk.
In the event of cash flow hedges, the derivatives are designated as a hedge for exposure to variable cash 
flows attributable to risks that might subsequently affect the income statement. These risks are generally 
associated with an asset or liability recognised in the financial statements (as future payments on variable 
rate payables).
The effective portion of fair value change, related to the portion of derivative contracts designated as hedge deriv-
atives pursuant to the standard, is recognised as component of the statement of comprehensive income (Hedg-
ing reserve). This reserve is then charged to the profit for the year in the period in which the hedged transaction 
affects the income statement.
The ineffective portion of fair value change, as well as the entire fair value change in derivatives that have not 
been designated as hedge derivatives or that do not have the requirements envisaged in the aforesaid IFRS 9, is 
instead recognised directly through the income statement.

Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted av-
erage cost method. Finished and semi-finished product costs include the cost of raw materials, direct labour, and 
other production costs that are directly and indirectly allocable (on the basis of normal production capacity). As 
regards raw and ancillary materials and consumables, the estimated net realisable value is the replacement cost. 
As regards finished and semi-finished products, the estimated net realisable value is the sales price estimated at 
arm’s length, less the estimated completion and sales costs.
Obsolete and slow turnover inventories are written-down based on their estimated possible use or future sale, 
through their entry in a special provision, adjusted by the value of inventories.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
the Group classifies discontinued non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying value will be recov-
ered mainly with a sale, instead than through their continuous use. These discontinued non-current assets, 
classified as held for sale, are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value, less sales 
costs. Sales costs are any additional costs directly attributable to the sale, excluding financial expenses 
and taxes.
The condition precedent to classify these assets as held for sale is deemed as fulfilled only when the sale is highly 
probable and the asset, or the discontinued group of assets, is available for immediate sale in its current condi-
tions. The actions required for completing the sale should indicate that it is improbable that significant changes in 
the sale might occur or that the sale be cancelled. Management must be engaged in the sale, whose completion 
should be planned within one year from the date of classification. 
The depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets cease when they are 
classified as available for sale.
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The assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately under the Financial Statement 
items. 
Assets to be discontinued are not included in the result of operating activities and are presented in the profit/
(loss) statement for the year on a single line as Net profit/(Loss) coming from assets to be discontinued.
All the other explanatory notes include amounts concerning continuing operations, unless otherwise specified.

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank and postal deposits, and short-term financial invest-
ments (maturity of three months or less after purchase date) that are highly liquid, readily convertible into cash 
and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Current-account overdrafts and advances on invoices subject to collection are deducted from cash only for the 
purposes of the Statement of Cash Flow.

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital consists of the ordinary shares outstanding, which are posted at par value.
Costs relating to the issue of new shares or options are classified in Shareholders’ Equity (net of associated tax 
benefit relating to them) as a deduction from the proceeds of the issuance of such instruments.

Treasury shares
In the case of buyback of treasury shares, the price paid, inclusive of any directly attributable accessory costs, is 
deducted from the Group’s Shareholders’ Equity until such shares are cancelled, re-issued, or sold. When treas-
ury shares are resold or re-issued, the proceeds, net of any directly attributable accessory costs and related tax 
effect, are posted as Group Shareholders’ Equity.
Consequently, no profit or loss is entered in the consolidated Income Statement at the time of purchase, sale or 
cancellation of treasury shares.

Liabilities for employee benefits 
Post-employment benefits are calculated based on programmes that, depending on their characteristics, are 
either “defined-contribution programmes” or “defined-benefit programmes”.
Employee benefits substantially consist of accrued provision for severance indemnities of the Group’s Italian 
companies and of retirement provisions.

Defined-contribution plans
Defined-contribution plans are formalised programmes of post-employment benefits according to which the 
company makes payments to an insurance company or a pension fund and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if, at maturity date, the fund has not sufficient assets to pay all benefits for 
employees, in relation to the work carried out in current and previous years. These contributions, paid against a 
work service rendered by employees, are accounted for as cost in the pertaining period.

Defined-benefit plans and other long-term benefits
Defined-benefit plans are programmes of post-employment benefits that represent a future obligation for the 
Company. The entity bears actuarial and investment risks related to the scheme.
The Group uses the projected unit credit method to determine the current value of liabilities of the scheme and 
the cost of services.
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This actuarial calculation method requires the use of objective actuarial hypotheses, compatible and based 
on demographic variables (mortality rate, personnel turnover) and financial variables (discount rate, future 
increases of salaries and wages and benefits). When a defined-benefit plan is entirely or partially financed by 
contributions paid to a fund, legally separate from the company, or to an insurance company, the assets in 
support of the above scheme are measured at fair value. The amount of the obligation is therefore accounted 
for, less the fair value of assets in support of the scheme that the entity would pay to settle the obligation 
itself.
The revaluations, including actuarial profits and losses, the changes in the maximum threshold of assets 
(excluding net interest) and the yield of assets in support of the scheme (excluding net interests), are rec-
ognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Position, while debiting or crediting retained earnings 
through other components in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they occur. 
Revaluations are not reclassified in the Income Statement in subsequent years. The other long-term ben-
efits are intended for employees and differ from post-employment benefits. The accounting is similar to 
defined-benefit plans.

Provisions for risks and charges 
Provisions for risks and charges are set aside to cover liabilities whose amount or due date are uncertain and 
that must be recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the following conditions are satisfied at the 
same time:

 � the entity has a current obligation (legal or constructive), i.e. under way as at the reporting date, arising from 
a past event;

 � it is probable that economic resources will have to be used to fulfil the obligation;
 � the amount needed to fulfil the obligation can be reliably estimated;
 � risks, for which materialisation of a liability is only contingent, are disclosed in the notes to financial state-

ments, in the section commenting on provisions, without provision being made.

In the case of events that are only remote, i.e. events that have very little likelihood of occurrence, no provisions 
are made and no additional or supplementary disclosure is provided.

Provisions are recognised at the value representing the best estimate of the amount the entity would pay to settle 
the obligation, or to transfer it to third parties, at the reporting date. If the time value of money is material, provi-
sions are calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate reflecting the market’s 
current evaluation of the cost of money over time. When discounting to present value is performed, the increase 
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as financial expense.

The funds are entered at the current value of expected financial resources, to be used in relation to the obligation. 
The provisions are periodically updated to reflect changes in cost estimates, realisation timing and any discount-
ed value. Estimate reviews of provisions are charged to the same item in the Income Statement that previously 
included the allocation and in the Income Statement for the period in which the change occurred.
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The Group establishes restructuring provisions if there exists an implicit restructuring obligation and a formal 
plan for restructuring that created in interested third parties the reasonable expectation that the company will 
carry out the restructuring or because it has begun its realisation or because it has already communicated its 
main aspects to interested third parties.

Share-based payments – Equity-settled transactions
Some Group employees receive a portion of their compensation under the form of share-based payments. There-
fore employees render their services against shares (equity-settled transactions). 
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date of the assignment, by using an 
adequate measurement method.
This cost, together with the corresponding increase in Shareholders’ Equity, is recognised under labour cost for 
the period in which terms and conditions related to the achievement of targets and/or the performance of the 
services are fulfilled. Cumulative expenses, recognised in relation to these transactions at the reporting date of 
each financial year and until the maturity term, are proportionate to the maturity date and the best estimate of 
the number of equity instruments that will effectively accrue. 

Service or performance conditions are not taken into account when the fair value of the plan is defined at the 
grant date. The probability that these conditions be satisfied is however taken in to account while defining the best 
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will be held to maturity. Arm’s length conditions are reflected 
in the fair value at the grant date. Any other term and condition related to the plan and that would not entail a 
performance obligation shall not be considered as a vesting condition. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the 
fair value of the plan and entail the prompt accounting of the expense related to the plan, unless there are also 
service or performance conditions.

No expense will be recognised in relation to rights that have not accrued by reason of the non-satisfaction of 
performance and/or service obligations. When the rights include a market condition, or a non-vesting condition, 
these rights are considered to be accrued regardless of the fact that market conditions or other non-vesting 
conditions have been fulfilled or not. It is understood that all other performance and/or service obligations must 
be satisfied.

If the conditions of the plan are modified, the minimum expense to be recognised is measured at fair value at the 
grant date, in the absence of the amendment of the plan itself, provided that the original conditions of the plan 
be fulfilled. Moreover, an expense for each change is recognised if it entails the increase in total fair value of the 
payment plan, or if this change is in any case favourable for employees. This expense is measured with reference 
to the change date. When a plan is cancelled by the entity or the counterpart, any remaining fair value element in 
the plan is immediately charged to Income Statement.

Income taxes
Income taxes include current and deferred taxes. Income taxes are generally recognised in the Income Statement, 
except when they relate to items entered directly in equity, in which case the tax effect is recognised directly in 
equity.
Current income taxes are calculated by applying to taxable income the tax rate in force at the reporting date and 
adjustments to taxes related to prior periods.
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Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method applied to temporary differences between the amount of 
assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding amounts recognised for tax 
purposes, except as follows:

 � deferred tax liabilities derive from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, when the transaction itself occurs, does not affect the balance sheet 
profits or the profits or losses calculated for tax purposes;

 � the reversal of taxable temporary differences associated with equity investments in subsidiaries, associates 
or joint ventures, may be controlled and will probably not occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and tax credits and losses which were 
not used and can be brought forward, to the extent that the existence of adequate future taxable profits will exist 
against which the usage of the deductible temporary differences and the tax credits and losses brought forward 
can be used, except in cases where:

 � the deferred tax assets connected to the deductible temporary differences arise from initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction itself, 
does not affect the balance sheet result or the profit or loss for tax purposes;

 � there are taxable temporary differences associated with equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures and deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the deductible temporary diffe-
rences will be reversed in the foreseeable future and that there are adequate taxable profits against which the 
temporary differences can be used.

Deferred taxes are calculated at the tax rate expected to be in force at the time when the asset is sold or the lia-
bility is redeemed.

The Parent Company and Italian subsidiaries participates in the “national tax consolidation programme” of Hydra 
S.p.A.. This permits the transfer of total net income or the tax loss of individual participant companies to the 
Parent Company, which calculates a single taxable income for the Group or a single tax loss carried forward, as 
the algebraic sum of the income and/or losses, and therefore enter a single payable to or receivable from Tax 
Authorities.

Revenues recognition 
Revenues are measured at fair value of the amount collected or collectable from the sale of goods or rendering 
of services within the scope of the Group’s characteristic business activity. Revenues are disclosed net of VAT, 
returns, discounts and reductions and after eliminating Group intercompany sales.

Pursuant to IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenues after identifying the contracts with its customers, as well 
as performance obligations to be fulfilled, determining the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring the goods and services, and after evaluating the ways to satisfy such performance 
obligations (satisfaction at point in time or over the time).
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Pursuant to provisions set out by IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenues only when the following obligations 
have been satisfied: 

 � the parties in a contract have approved the contract and have undertook themselves to satisfy the related 
performance obligations;

 � the rights of either party can be defined as regards goods and services to be transferred;
 � payment terms of transferable goods and services can be defined;
 � the contract is of a commercial type;
 � the consideration in exchange of goods sold or services transferred will be received.

If the aforesaid requirements are fulfilled, the Group recognises the revenues by applying the following rules.   

Sale of goods
Revenues resulted from the sale of equipment are recognised when the control of the asset is transferred to the 
customer.

The Group deems that other covenants are included in the contract that represent obligations to perform actions, 
based on which a portion of the consideration related to the transaction should be allocated (e.g. warranties, 
loyalty plans for customers). In determining the transaction price for the sale of the equipment, the Group con-
siders the impact resulting from the existence of the variable consideration, significant financing components, 
non-monetary considerations and considerations to be paid to the customer (if applicable). 

Rendering of services
The Group provides installation, maintenance, repair and technical support services. The services are ren-
dered both separately, based on contracts signed with customers, and jointly with the sale of the goods to 
customers. 

The Group recognises revenues resulting from services over time and only when the stage of completion of the 
service can be reliably estimated at the measurement date.

As regards contracts related to both the sale of assets and the rendering of services, the Group recognises two 
separate obligations when the promises to transfer equipment and supply services can be divided and can be 
identified separately. As a consequence, the Group allocates the transaction price based on the related prices for 
the sale of assets and services.

Revenues on construction contract
Construction contracts that envisage the building of an asset or the combination of strictly-connected assets and 
services, are obligations for actions over time.
Revenues related to these construction contracts are recognised based on the stage of completion of perfor-
mance obligations, when the control of assets and services is transferred to the customer for an amount that 
reflects the consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange of the same.
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The Statement of Financial Position is disclosed as follows:
 � the amount due from customers for contract works should be shown as an asset, under item “trade recei-

vables from third parties”, when incurred costs, added with margins recognised (less losses), exceed the 
advance payments received;

 � the amount due to customers for contract work should be shown as a liability, under item “trade payables to 
third parties”, when advance payments received exceed costs incurred added with margins recognised (less 
losses).

Government grants 
Government grants are recognised – regardless of the existence of a formal grant resolution – when there is 
reasonable certainty that the company will comply with any conditions attached to the grant and therefore that 
the grant will be received.

Government grants, obtainable as compensation for costs already incurred or to provide immediate financial 
support to the recipient company with no future related costs, are recognised as income in the period in which 
they become receivable.

Revenues relating to dividends and interest
Revenues relating to dividends and interest is respectively recognised as follows:

 � dividends, when the right is established to receive dividend payment (with a receivable recognised in the sta-
tement of financial position when distribution is resolved);

 � interest, with application of the effective interest rate method.

Dividends paid out 
Dividends are recognised when shareholders have the right to receive payment. This normally corresponds to the 
date of the annual Shareholders’ Meeting that approves dividend distribution.
The dividends distributable to Group Shareholders are recognised as an Equity movement in the year when they 
are approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting.

Earnings per share 

Basic
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the Group’s profit by the weighted average number of ordinary shares out-
standing during the year, excluding treasury shares.

Diluted
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the Group’s profit by the weighted average number of ordinary shares out-
standing during the year, excluding treasury shares. For the purposes of calculation of diluted EPS, the weighted 
average number of outstanding shares is determined assuming translation of all potential shares with a dilutive 
effect, and the Group’s net profit is adjusted for the post-tax effects of translation. 
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Treatment of foreign currency items 

Functional presentation currency
The items shown in the Financial Statements of each Group entity are shown in the currency of the economic en-
vironment in which the entity operates, i.e. in its functional currency. The Consolidated Financial Statements are 
presented in Euro, the Euro being the Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are initially translated in the functional currency by 
using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. At the reporting date of the reference year, non functional- 
currency monetary assets and liabilities are converted in the functional currency at the exchange rate in force on 
that date. The resulting exchange differences are reported in the Income Statement. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities, denominated in a non-functional currency and measured at cost, are translated at the exchange rate 
effective on the date of transaction, while transactions measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate 
on the date in which such value is determined.

Segment disclosure
Operating segments are identified based on the internal statements used by senior management in order to allo-
cate resources and evaluate results (internal reporting for performance analysis) for the reference period. Based 
on the definition envisaged in the IFRS 8 Standard, an operating segment is a component of an entity:

 � that engages in revenues earning business activities;
 � whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the top operating decision-makers of the entity for the 

adoption of resolutions on resources to be allocated to the segment and the evaluation of results;
 � for which discrete information is available.

In light of the above definition, the operating segments defined by the Group are represented by Business Units 
that report to the corporate top management and maintain periodic contacts to discuss operating activities, 
results, forecasts or plans. For the purposes of disclosures in the Financial Statements, the Group has then ag-
gregated the following operating segments:

 � Datalogic;
 � Solution Net System;
 � Informatics.

The segments that are included in each single combination are in fact similar as regards the following aspects:
a. the nature of products;
b. the nature of production processes;
c. the type of customers;
d. the methods used to distribute products/services;
e. the economic characteristics.

The transfer prices applied to transactions between segments and concerning the exchange of goods and servic-
es rendered are governed at arm’s length.
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6) New accounting standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Group as at 
1 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases 
The IFRS 16 standard was issued in January 2016 and supersedes the following standards: IAS 17 - Leases, 
IFRIC 4 - Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives e SIC-27 
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. 
IFRS 16 sets forth principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The standard 
requires lessees to recognise financial and operating lease contracts in the Financial Statements according to one 
single accounting model, similar to the one used to recognise financial leases, pursuant to IAS 17.
This standard envisages two exemptions: lessees may elect not to recognise leases for low value assets and 
short-term leases (i.e. leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the inception of the lease, the lessee 
shall measure a liability related to lease costs (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset representing the right of use 
of the underlying asset for the duration of the lease (i.e. the right-of-use asset). Moreover, interest payable on 
liabilities for leases and depreciation on the right-of-use assets shall be recognised separately.

The Group elected to apply this standard retrospectively on 1 January 2019, with the modified retrospective 
method, by recognising:

 � a financial liability, equal to the current value of future residual payments at the transition date, discounted by 
using the incremental borrowing rate for each single contract, applicable at the transition date and adjusted, 
for each subsidiary, according to the economic context in which the company operates;

 � a right-of-use asset, equal to the value of the financial liability at the transition date, net of any accruals and 
deferrals related to the operating lease.

The impact as at 31 December 2019, resulting from the adoption of IFRS 16, was as follows:
 � the recognition of right-of-use assets, amounting to €9.8 million;
 � the recognition of financial liabilities for leases, amounting to €10.0 million;
 � the accounting of higher depreciation and lower costs for rents and leases of €4.6 million and €4.6 million, respectively.

It should be noted that the weighted average Incremental Borrowing Rate applied to financial liabilities, as per 
1 January 2019, was 2.4%.

While adopting IFRS 16, the Group availed itself of the exemption granted by the same standard: 5(a) concerning short-
term leases. The Group also availed itself of the exemption granted by IFRS 16: 5(b) concerning lease contracts, for 
which the underlying asset is a low-value asset (i.e. the value of the assets underlying the lease contract is not higher 
than €5 thousand, when new). Contracts for which the exemption was applied are primarily included within the follow-
ing categories: computers, telephones and tablets, printers, other electronic devices. For these contracts, the intro-
duction of IFRS 16 did not involve the recognition of financial liabilities related to leases and corresponding right of use. 
Leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis for the duration of the corresponding contracts.

Moreover, with reference to transition rules, the Group availed itself of the following practical expedients availa-
ble in the event the modified retrospective transition method is adopted:

 � classification of contracts expiring within 12 months from the transition as short-term leases. For these con-
tracts, leases are recorded in the income statement on a straight-line basis;
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 � exclusion of initial direct costs from the measurement of the right of use as from 1 January 2019;
 � use of information at the transition date to determine the lease term, with special reference to the exercise of 

extension and early termination options.

Other standards
As from 1 January 2019, some standards and/or amendments and interpretations entered in force (IFRS 9 – 
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensations; IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments; IAS 19 
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement; IAS 28 Long Term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures; Annu-
al Improvements IFRSs 2015-2017). These have already been described in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
as at 31 December 2018, to which reference is made, and had no effect on the Consolidated Annual Financial 
Report as at 31 December 2019.

7) IFRS and IFRIC accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that, 
as at 31 December 2019, were endorsed by the European Union but whose application 
was not yet mandatory and early application was not adopted by the Group

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 - 
 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors in order to align the definition of “relevant” 
in the standards and clarify some aspects of the definition. The new standard clarifies that any information is 
relevant (material) if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions 
that the primary users of Financial Statements make on the basis of financial information provided therein. The 
amendments made to the definition of relevant are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s Con-
solidated Financial Statements.
On 29 March 2018, the IASB issued an amendment to “References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Stand-
ards”. The amendment is applicable to the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Earlier 
application is permitted. The Conceptual Framework sets out the fundamental concepts for financial reporting 
that guide the Board in developing IFRS Standards. This document helps to ensure that the Standards are concep-
tually consistent and that similar transactions are treated the same way, so as to provide useful information for 
investors, lenders and other creditors. The Conceptual Framework assists companies in developing accounting 
policies when no IFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction, and more broadly, helps stakeholders to un-
derstand and interpret the Standards. 
On 26 September 2019, the IASB issued the amendment entitled “Amendments to IFRS 9, AIS 39 and IFRS 7: 
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform”. This document amends IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments and IAS 39 - Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, as well as IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Specifically, 
the amendment modifies some requirements for the application of hedge accounting. Temporary relieves are 
provided in order to mitigate the impact due to the uncertainty of the IBOR reform (still underway) on future cash 
flows in the period preceding its completion. Moreover, the amendment sets out that, in their financial state-
ments, entities should disclose information on their hedging relationships that are directly affected by uncertainty 
generated by the reform and to whom these relieves apply. The amendments will enter into force on 1 January 
2020. Early application is permitted. Directors do not expect any impact on the Group’s Consolidated Financial 
Statements due to the adoption of this amendment.
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8) IFRS accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are still not endorsed by 
the European Union

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
In May 2017, the IASB issued the IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a new and comprehensive standard 
on insurance contracts which covers recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure issues. The IFRS 
17 standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and requires the disclosure of 
comparison accounts. 

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business
In October 2018, in IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business, the IASB issued amendments to the definition of a busi-
ness in order to assist entities in determining whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business. 
The amendments clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether market 
participants are capable of replacing any missing elements, add guidance to help entities assess whether an 
acquired process is substantive, narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs and introduce an optional 
fair value concentration test. New examples to illustrate the application of the guidance were published with the 
amendments.
By reason of the fact that amendments are applied prospectively to transactions or other events that occur upon 
or after the first-time application, the Group is not affected by these amendments at the first-time application date.

9) Consolidation area 
On 17 April 2019, the Group subscribed the capital increase of the company Suzhou Mobydata Smart System Co 
Ltd., for a total amount of €2.0 million. The Group previously held a minority interest in this company thorough 
the transfer of the equity investment owned in Suzhou Mobilead Electronic Technology Co. Ltd.. Due to this trans-
action, Datalogic acquired 51% of the company’s shares, which, as at 31 December 2019, was consolidated on a 
line-by-line basis.
The following table shows preliminary fair value as at 31 December 2019 of the assets and liabilities of the ac-
quired company, preliminary goodwill deriving from the transaction and the net cash used for the acquisition:
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Since the acquisition is a business combination, the Group has recognised it using the purchase method, pursu-
ant to the revised IFRS 3.

The preliminary goodwill emerging from this transaction amounted to €1,684 thousand. It is worth noting that 
the initial recognition of the business combination, recorded in the third quarter, was temporarily determined as 
the fair value of assets, liabilities or potential liabilities was still being measured. Moreover, the cost of business 
combinations was determined in a non-final way. As envisaged by IFRS 3, any possible adjustments shall be 
recognised within 12 months from the acquisition date.

On 8 November 2019, Datalogic S.r.l., with merger deed effective retroactively as of 1 October 2019, merged by 
incorporation the company Soredi Touch System GmbH, subsidiary of Datalogic S.p.A.. This transaction had no 
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

10) Use of estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the IFRS-compliant Consolidated Annual Financial Report requires Directors to apply account-
ing standards and methodologies that, in some cases, are based on valuations and estimates, which in turn refer 
to historic experience and assumptions based on specific circumstances at any given time. The application of 
such estimates and assumptions affects the amounts related to revenues, costs, assets and liabilities, as well as 

Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation Amounts as per 
acquiree’s accounts 

(CNY/000)

Adjustments Recognised fair 
value (CNY/000) 

Recognised fair 
value (Euro/000) 

Non-current assets 4,622  4,622 612

Current assets 26,224  26,224 3,472

Non-current liabilities 0  0 0

Current liabilities (3,636)  (3,636) (481)

Net assets at acquisition date 27,210 - 27,210 3,602

% pertaining to Group 51%  51% 51%

Group net assets 13,877 - 13,877 1,837

Acquisition cost   26,600 3,521

Goodwill at acquisition date   12,723 1,684

Net cash used in acquisition:     

Cash and cash equivalents of acquiree  12,290 1,627

Capital subscription  15,600 2,065

Contributions  11,000 1,456

Acquisition cost  26,600 3,521

Net cash used in acquisition  3,310 438
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contingent liabilities disclosed and any relevant information. The actual amounts of accounting items, for which 
these estimates and assumptions have been used, might be different from those reported due to the uncertainty 
characterising the assumptions and conditions on which estimates are based.

Following are the assumptions concerning the future, as well as the other main causes of uncertainty related 
to estimates which, at the reporting date, show a significant risk to generate remarkable adjustments in the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities within the following financial year. The Group has based its assump-
tions and estimates on parameters which were available when preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
The current circumstances and assumptions on future developments might however change upon occurrence of 
market changes or events beyond the Group’s control. Upon their occurrence, these changes are reflected in the 
assumptions.

Impairment of non financial assets (Goodwill, Tangible and Intangible Assets)
An impairment occurs when the book value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable value, which is its fair 
value, less sales costs, and its value in use, whichever is higher. The fair value, less sales costs, is the amount 
that can be obtained from the sale of an asset or a CGU, in a free transaction between aware and willing parties, 
less costs for disposal. The value in use is calculated by using a discounted cash-flow model. Cash flows result 
from plans. The recoverable value depends much on the discounting rate used in the discounted cash flow model, 
as well as on cash flows expected in the future and the growth rate used for extrapolation. Key assumptions, 
used to determine the recoverable value for the various Cash Generation Units, including a sensitivity analysis, 
are thoroughly described in Note 2.

Taxes 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against 
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Relevant estimates performed by the management 
are required to determine the amount of tax assets that can be recognised based on the level of future taxable 
income, the timing of their occurrence and tax planning strategies. Deferred tax liabilities for taxes on retained 
earnings of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures are recognised to the extent that they are likely to remain 
undistributed in the foreseeable future. Estimates performed by the management are therefore required to deter-
mine the amount of tax assets that can be recognised and the amount of tax liabilities, whose recognition can be 
omitted, based on the level of future taxable income, the timing of their occurrence and tax planning strategies. 
The long-term nature, as well as the complexity of regulations in force in the various jurisdictions, the differences 
resulting from actual results and assumptions made, or future changes in such assumptions might require future 
adjustments to income taxes and already recorded costs and benefits.

Fair value of financial instruments
When the fair value of a financial asset or liability, which is recognised in the statement of financial position, 
cannot be measured based on quotations in an active market, fair value is determined by using various measure-
ment techniques. Inputs included in this model are taken from observable markets, whenever possible, but when 
it is not possible, a certain level of estimates is required to determine fair values. 

Employee benefits
The cost of defined-benefit plans and other post-employment healthcare benefits and the current value of the de-
fined-benefit obligations are determined based on actuarial measurements. Actuarial measurement requires the 
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elaboration of various assumptions, which might differ from the effects of future developments. These hypotheses 
concern the determination of discount rates, future wage increases, the mortality rates and pension increases.

Development costs 
The Group capitalised costs related to projects for the development of products. The initial cost capitalisation is 
based on the confirmation by the Management of the technical and economic feasibility of the project. In order 
to determine the values to be capitalised, Directors will evaluate the expected future cash flows related to the 
project, as well as the discount rates to be applied and the timing of the expected benefits to arise.

Share-based payments – Equity-settled transactions
Some employees of the Group receive a portion of their compensation under the form of share-based payments. 
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of instruments at the date of the assign-
ment. Cumulative expenses, recognised in relation to these transactions at the reporting date of each financial year 
and until the maturity term, are proportionate to the maturity date and the best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will effectively accrue. Evaluation processes and modalities, as well as the determination of the 
above-mentioned estimates, are based on assumptions that, for their nature, involve the evaluation of Directors.

Other (Provisions for risks and charges, doubtful accounts, inventories write-down, revenue, discoun-
ts and returns)
Provisions for risks and charges are based on measurements and estimates relating to the historic data and hy-
potheses, which are, from time to time, deemed reasonable and realistic according to the related circumstances. 
The recognition process of Group revenues includes estimates related to both the extent of revenues, based on 
the criterion of completion percentage, and the determination of discounts and returns granted to customers, but 
still unclaimed. Evaluation processes and modalities, as well as the determination of such estimates, are based 
on assumptions that, for their nature, involve the evaluation of Directors. 

Financial risk management

Risk factors
The Group is exposed to various types of financial risks in the course of its business, including:

 � market risk, specifically:
a) foreign currency exchange risk, relating to operations in currency areas other than that of the functional 

currency;
b) interest rate risk, connected with the Group’s level of exposure to financial instruments, generating inter-

est and recognised in the Statement of Financial Position;
 � credit risk, deriving from trade transactions or from financing activities;
 � liquidity risk, relating to availability of financial resources and access to the credit market.

The Group is not exposed to any price risk, as it is not exposed substantially to risk deriving from the perfor-
mance of commodities traded on the financial markets.
Financial risk management is an integral part of management of the Datalogic Group’s business activities. The 
management of market risk and liquidity is carried out by the Parent Company through the centralised treasury, 
acting directly on the market, possibly also on behalf of subsidiaries and investees.
Credit risk management is instead assigned to the Group’s operating units. 



Datalogic Annual Report 2019         103

Market risk

a) Foreign currency exchange risk 
Datalogic operates in an international environment and is exposed to translation and transaction exchange risk.

Translation risk relates to the conversion into Euro during consolidation of the Financial Statements of foreign 
companies that have not adopted the Euro as functional and presentation currency. The key currencies are the US 
Dollar, the Chinese Renminbi, the Singapore Dollar and the Hungarian Forint.

Transaction risk relates to trade transactions (foreign currency receivables/payables) and financial transactions 
(foreign currency borrowings or loans) of Group companies in currencies other than their functional and pres-
entation currency. The key currency is the US Dollar. 

To permit full understanding of the foreign currency exchange risk on the Group’s Consolidated Financial State-
ments, we have analysed the sensitivity of foreign currency accounting items to changes in exchange rates. The 
variability parameters applied were identified among the foreign exchange-rate differences considered reasona-
bly possible, with all other variables remaining equal. The following table shows the results of the analysis as at 
31 December 2019:

USD Nominal value Portion exposed to 
exchange rate risk

5% -5%

Exchange rates 1.1234 1.1796 1.06723

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 151,841 65,455 (3,117) 3,445

Trade and other receivables 104,461 44,623 (2,125) 2,349

Financial assets and loans 31,200    

Financial liabilities     

Loans 169,677 2,522 120 (133)

Trade and other payables 170,837 87,676 4,175 (4,615)

Income Statement impact, net   (947) 1,046

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no currency derivative transactions in place.

b) Interest rate risk
The Datalogic Group is exposed to interest rate risk associated both with the availability of cash and with outstand-
ing loans. The aim of interest rate risk management is to limit and stabilise payable flows caused by interest paid 
mainly on medium-term debt in order to achieve a tight match between the underlying and the hedging instrument.
With regard to medium/long-term loans, as at 31 December 2019, Datalogic had no interest rate swaps in place. 
On that date, almost all the medium/long-term loans of the Datalogic Group were at fixed rate.
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In order to fully understand the potential effects of fluctuations in interest rates to which the Group is exposed, we 
analysed the accounting items most at risk, assuming a change of 10 basis points in the Euribor and of 10 basis 
points in the USD Libor. The analysis was based on reasonable assumptions. Below we show the results as at 31 
December 2019:

Euribor Nominal value Portion exposed to 
interest rate risk

10bp -10bp

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 151,841 72,296 72 (72)

Financial assets and loans 31,200 31,200 31 (31)

Financial liabilities     

Loans 169,677 6,942 (7) 7

Income Statement impact, net   96 (96)

Libor Nominal value Portion exposed to 
interest rate risk

10bp -10bp

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 151,841 65,455 65 (65)

Financial assets and loans 31,200 0   

Financial liabilities     

Loans 169,677 2,522 (3) 3

Income Statement impact, net   62 (62)

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk, combined with commercial transactions. It therefore envisaged protection 
measures in order to keep the amounts outstanding to a minimum level, i.e. a specific check on receivables due, 
management of client credit-line limits and gathering of financial information on companies with higher expo-
sure. A large part of Datalogic’s business is conveyed on a network of known clients/distributors, with whom, 
statistically, no problems connected with credit recoverability have been encountered. Customers requesting 
deferred conditions of payment are subjected to screening procedures concerning their creditworthiness grade 
(degree of solvency) and an analysis of the specific deal. Trade receivables are subjected to individual impairment 
testing if they report potential and significant impairment indicators.
The Group protects itself against credit risk also through the subscription of a factoring contract without recourse. 
As at 31 December 2019, factored trade receivables amounted to €36,566 thousand (compared to €24,896 thou-
sand at the end of 2018). 
The maximum exposure to credit risk on the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of each class of financial 
asset presented in Note 4.
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Liquidity risk
The Datalogic Group’s liquidity risk is minimised by specific central management by the Parent Company. Bank 
indebtedness and the management of liquidity are handled centrally via a series of instruments aimed at optimis-
ing the management of financial resources, including cash pooling. The Parent Company manages and negotiates 
medium/long-term financing and credit lines to meet the Group’s requirements. Specifically, Datalogic S.p.A., as 
Parent Company, has cash credit lines available for future requirements to the benefit of the Group. Centralised 
negotiation of credit lines and loans, on the one hand, and centralised management of the Group’s cash resourc-
es, on the other hand, are functional to the optimisation of net indebtedness costs.
We also report that, as at 31 December 2019, the Group’s Liquidity Reserve – which includes uncommitted but 
undrawn credit lines of €151 million – is considered largely sufficient to meet commitments existing as at bal-
ance-sheet date.

The following table details the financial liabilities settled on a net basis by the Group, grouping them according 
to residual contractual maturity as at the reporting date. The amounts shown are contractual cash flows not dis-
counted to present value. 

The following table shows financial liabilities by maturity:

 0 - 1 year 1 - 5 years > 5 years

Loans 47,421 110,035 71

Lease financial payables 4,589 5,472  

Bank overdrafts 221   

Payables to factoring companies 1,868   

Trade and other payables 154,153 16,684  

Total 208,252 132,191 71
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Changes in liabilities resulting from cash flows
The reconciliation of changes in liabilities resulting from financial assets is shown hereunder. 

 01.01.2019 Cash flows Transfers New contracts Other 31.12.2019

Borrowings from Bank - current portion 47,314 (47,864) 47,130 35 806 47,421

Borrowings from Bank - non-current portion 157,407  (47,130)  (171) 110,106

Payables to factoring companies 2,053 (185)    1,868

Lease payables - current portion 0 0   4,589 4,589

Lease payables - non-current portion 0 0   5,472 5,472

Other Financial liabilities - current portion 1,680 (1,680)    0

Other Financial liabilities - non-current portion 0     0

Bank overdrafts 29 192    221

Total 208,483 (49,537) - 35 10,696 169,677

Capital risk management

The Group manages capital with the intention of protecting its own continuity and optimising shareholder value, 
maintaining an optimum capital structure while reducing its cost.
In line with sector practice, the Group monitors capital based on the gearing ratio. This indicator is calculated as 
a ratio between (Net Financial Position)/Net indebtedness (see Note 10) and total capital.

 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Net indebtedness (A) (13,364) (23,843)

Shareholders’ Equity (B) 404,171 375,809 

Total capital [(A)+(B)]=C 390,807 351,966 

“gearing ratio” (A)/(C) -3.42% -6.77%

Segment disclosure 

Operating segments are identified based on the management reporting used by senior management to allocate 
resources and evaluate results.

For 2019, the operating segments were included in the following divisions: 

 � Datalogic, which represents the Group’s core business and designs and produces bar code scanners, mobile 
computers, detection, measurement and security sensors, vision and laser marking and RFID systems that 
contribute to increasing the efficiency and quality of processes in the areas of Retail, Manufacturing, Tran-
sportation & Logistics and Healthcare;
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 � Solution Net Systems, specialised in supplying and installing integrated solutions for the postal segment and 
distribution centres in the Retail sector;

 � Informatics sells and distributes products and solutions for the management of inventories and mobile as-
sets tailored to small and medium sized companies.

Sales transactions amongst the operating segments indicated hereunder are executed at arm’s length condi-
tions, based on the Group transfer pricing policies.

The income statement information related to operating segments as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 
2018 are as follows (€/000): 

Segment economic position Datalogic Business Solution Net 
System

Informatics Adjustments Total Group
31.12.2019

Revenues 568,128 29,064 18,736    (3,442) 612,486

EBITDA 90,581 2,911 1,507       (9) 94,990

% revenues 15.94% 10.02% 8.04%  15.51%

EBIT 61,808 2,779 893       (9) 65,471

Segment economic position Datalogic Business Solution Net 
System

Informatics Adjustments Total Group
31.12.2018

Revenues 585,724 28,320 19,586 (2,615) 631,015

EBITDA 102,097 2,939 669 (156) 105,549

% revenues 17.43% 10.38% 3.42%  16.73%

EBIT 80,619 2,872 182 (156) 83,517
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The balance-sheet information related to operating segments as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 
are as follows (€/000): 

Segment financial position Datalogic Business Solution Net 
System

Informatics Adjustments Total Group
31.12.2019

Total assets 802,976 13,795 21,024   (33,186) 804,609

Total liabilities 387,903 7,891 5,663      (1,019) 400,438

Shareholders' Equity 415,073 5,904 15,361   (32,167) 404,171

Segment financial position Datalogic Business Solution Net 
System

Informatics Adjustments Total Group
31.12.2018

Total assets 829,580 15,066 21,119   (35,607) 830,158

Total liabilities 444,521 6,892 6,481      (3,545) 454,349

Shareholders' Equity 385,060 8,174 14,638   (32,063) 375,809
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INFORMATION ON THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Note 1. Tangible assets
Over the period, recognised net investments amounted to €22,437 thousand, and depreciation amounted to 
€12,128 thousand, while the exchange rates amounted to €1,059 thousand. Tangible assets are broken down as 
at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Land 8,778 8,349 429

Buildings 31,820 30,548 1,272

Other assets 35,418 34,932 486

Assets in progress and payments on account 13,586 4,166 9,420

Total 89,602 77,995 11,607

Details of movements as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are as follows: 

Land Buildings Other assets
Assets in progress 

and payments on 
account

Total

Historical cost 7,719 34,632 134,960 2,150 179,461

Accumulated depreciation 0 (5,263) (104,465) 0 (109,728)

Net book value as at 01.01.2018 7,719 29,369 30,495 2,150 69,733

Increases 31.12.2018  

Investments 536 1,586 13,849 2,931 18,902

Total 536 1,586 13,849 2,931 18,902

Decreases 31.12.2018  

Disposals, historical cost (1,199) (2) (1,201)

Disposals, accum. depreciation 694 694

Write-downs 41 41

Depreciation (538) (10,103) (10,641)

Total 0 (538) (10,567) (2) (11,107)

Other changes 31.12.2018  

Incoming transfers at historical cost  8 942 (951) (1)

Exchange diff. in historical cost 94 184 1,422 38 1,738

Exchange diff. in accum. depreciation  (61) (1,209)  (1,270)

Total 94 131 1,155 (913) 467

Historical cost 8,349 36,410 149,974 4,166 198,899

Accumulated depreciation 0 (5,862) (115,042) 0 (120,904)

Net book value as at 31.12.2018 8,349 30,548 34,932 4,166 77,995
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Land Buildings Other assets
Assets in progress 

and payments on 
account

Total

Historical cost 8,349 36,410 149,974 4,166 198,899

Accumulated depreciation - (5,862) (115,042) - (120,904)

Net book value as at 01.01.2019 8,349 30,548 34,932 4,166 77,995

Increases 31.12.2019  

Investments 341 441 10,930 11,147 22,859

Acquisitions - - 254 - 254

Total 341 441 11,184 11,147 23,113

Decreases 31.12.2019  

Disposals, historical cost - - (4,036) - (4,036)

Disposals, accum. depreciation - - 3,614 - 3,614

Depreciation - (584) (11,544) - (12,128)

Acquisitions - - (15) - (15)

Total - (584) (11,981) - (12,565)

Other changes 31.12.2019  

Incoming transfers at historical cost - 390 1,023 (1,714) (301)

(Outgoing transfers, accum. depreciation) - - 301 - 301

Exchange diff. in historical cost 88 677 251 (13) 1,003

Exchange diff. in accum. depreciation - 348 (292) - 56

Total 88 1,415 1,283 (1,727) 1,059

Historical cost 8,778 37,918 158,396 13,586 218,678

Accumulated depreciation - (6,098) (122,978) - (129,076)

Net book value at 31.12.2019 8,778 31,820 35,418 13,586 89,602

The “Other assets” item as at 31 December 2019 mainly includes the following categories: industrial equipment 
and moulds (€10,699 thousand), plant and machinery (€11,446 thousand), Office furniture and machines (€10,050 
thousand), General plants related to buildings (€1,457 thousand), Maintenance on third-party assets (€655 thou-
sand), Commercial equipment and demo room (€958 thousand) and Motor vehicles (€80 thousand).

The balance of item “Assets in progress and payments on account”, equal to €13,586 thousand, is mainly com-
posed of the following: €10,330 thousand for investments made for the building and enlargement of Group plants, 
€1,327 thousand for self-manufactured equipment and production lines, and €1,843 thousand for moulds under 
construction. The increase, equal to €9,420 thousand, is mainly attributable to the construction of buildings in 
Germany (€3,669 thousand) and in the United States (€5,659 thousand).
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Note 2. Intangible assets
Over the period, recognised net investments amounted to €15,021 thousand, and amortisation amounted to 
€9,989 thousand, while the exchange rates amounted to €3,815 thousand. Intangible assets are broken down as 
at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Goodwill 186,126 181,149 4,977

Development costs 9,927 10,381 (454)

Other 28,430 32,454 (4,024)

Assets in progress and payments on account 12,114 1,671 10,443

Total 236,597 225,655 10,942

Details of movements as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Goodwill Development costs Other
Assets in progress 

and payments on 
account

Total

Historical cost 174,343 19,020 134,925 3,765 332,053

Accumulated amortisation - (15,157) (100,573) - (115,730)

Net book value as at 01.01.2018 174,343 3,863 34,352 3,765 216,323

Increases 31.12.2018  

Investments - 672 3,412 6,600 10,684

Total - 672 3,412 6,600 10,684

Decreases 31.12.2018  

Disposals, historical cost (950) - (257) - (1,207)

Disposals, accum. amortisation - - 206 - 206

Amortisation - (2,154) (7,032) - (9,186)

Total (950) (2,154) (7,083) - (10,187)

Other changes 31.12.2018  

Incoming transfers at historical cost - 8,108 586 - 8,694

(Outgoing transfers, accum. amortisation) - (163) - (8,694) (8,857)

Exchange diff. in historical cost 7,756 347 4,262 - 12,365

Exchange diff. in accum. amortisation - (292) (3,075)  - (3,367)

Total 7,756 8,000 1,773 (8,694) 8,835

Historical cost 181,149 27,984 142,928 1,671 353,732

Accumulated amortisation - (17,603) (110,474) - (128,077)

Net book value as at 31.12.2018 181,149 10,381 32,454 1,671 225,655



112         Datalogic Annual Report 2019

DATALOGIC ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Goodwill Development costs Other
Assets in progress 

and payments on 
account

Total

Historical cost 181,149 27,984 142,928 1,671 353,732

Accumulated amortisation - (17,603) (110,474) - (128,077)

Net book value as at 01.01.2019 181,149 10,381 32,454 1,671 225,655

Increases 31.12.2019  

Investments - 1,400 2,562 11,059 15,021

Acquisitions 1,684 - 427 - 2,111

Total 1,684 1,400 2,989 11,059 17,132

Decreases 31.12.2019  

Disposals, historical cost - - (79) - (79)

Disposals, accum. amortisation - - 63 - 63

Amortisation - (2,317) (7,672) - (9,989)

Total - (2,317) (7,688) - (10,005)

Other changes 31.12.2019  

Incoming transfers at historical cost - 442 - - 442

(Outgoing transfers, accum. amortisation) - - 174 (616) (442)

Exchange diff. in historical cost 3,293 153 1,828 - 5,274

Exchange diff. in accum. amortisation - (132) (1,327) - (1,459)

Total 3,293 463 675 (616) 3,815

Historical cost 186,126 28,579 147,840 12,114 361,038

Accumulated amortisation - (20,052) (119,410) - (139,462)

Net book value as at 31.12.2019 186,126 9,927 28,430 12,114 236,597

Goodwill
“Goodwill”, totalling €186,126 thousand, consisted of the following items:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

CGU Datalogic 172,642 167,868 4,775

CGU Informatics 13,483 13,281 202

Total 186,126 181,149 4,977

The change in the “Goodwill” item, compared to 31 December 2018, is due, in the amount of €3,293 thousand, to 
translation differences and, in the amount of €1,684 thousand, to goodwill generated with the first consolidation 
of the investee Suzhou Mobydata Smart System Co Ltd..
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This Goodwill has been allocated to the CGUs (Cash Generating Units) corresponding to the individual companies 
and/or sub-groups to which they pertain. 

It should be noted that the format of the CGU related to Goodwill was reviewed according to the new organisa-
tional structure that the Group adopted as from 1 January 2017.  The estimated recoverable value of each CGU, 
associated with each Goodwill item measured, consists of its corresponding value in use. Value in use is calculat-
ed by discounting the future cash flows generated by the CGU – during production and at the time of its disposal 
– to present value using a certain discount rate, based on the Discounted Cash Flow method.

The cash flows of the individual CGUs have been taken from their respective 2020 Budgets and forward-looking 
plans prepared by Management. These plans represent the best estimate of foreseeable operating performance, 
based on business strategies and growth indicators in the sector to which the Group belongs and in its reference 
markets. The assumptions used for the purposes of impairment were approved by the Board of Directors and the 
Audit and Risk Management, Remuneration and Appointments Committee of Datalogic S.p.A. on 14 February 2020. 
Based on an Unlevered approach, the Group has used, through the discounted cash flow method, Unlevered Free 
Cash Flows from Operations (FCFO). To expected flows for the period 2019-2023, which are explicitly forecast, the 
flow relating to Perpetuity – representing Terminal value – is added. This is calculated using a long-term growth 
rate (G) of 1%, which represents the long-term expectations for the industrial sector to which the Group belongs.

The discount rate, consisting of the weighted average cost of invested capital (WACC), is estimated before tax and 
based on the financial structure of the sector to which the Datalogic Group belongs. The WACC used – ranging 
from 6.65% to 7.29% for the corresponding Goodwill measured – reflects the return opportunity for all capital 
contributions, for whichever reason they are made.

The following table details the Goodwill and the growth assumptions of the forecast plans and the discount rates applied:

CGU Datalogic Informatics

Goodwill 172,462 13,483

Weighted average cost of capital (WACC) 6.65% 7.29%

Long-term growth rate (G) 1% 1%

CGU Datalogic
The recoverable value of the Datalogic CGU was determined based on the calculation of the value in use, in which 
projected cash flows, resulting from the plan approved by the Board of Directors, have been used. The discount 
rate before taxes applied to projected cash flows is 6.65% (2018 equal to 7.19%) and cash flows over five years 
have been inferred based on 1% growth rate (in line with 2018), which is prudentially lower than the growth rate 
expected in reference markets. During testing for impairment, goodwill of CGU Datalogic confirmed its carrying 
value.

CGU Informatics
Goodwill attributed to CGU Informatics results from the acquisition of the investee Informatics Inc. in 2005. The 
recoverable value of the Informatics CGU was determined based on the calculation of the value in use, in which 
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projected cash flows, resulting from the plan approved by the Board of Directors, have been used. The discount 
rate before taxes applied to projected cash flows is 7.29% (2018 equal to 8.65%) and cash flows over five years 
have been inferred based on 1% growth rate (in line with 2018), which is prudentially lower than the growth rate 
expected in reference markets. During testing for impairment, goodwill of CGU Informatics confirmed its carrying 
value.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
The calculation of value in use for selected CGUs is related to the following assumptions: 

 � gross operating margin;
 � discount rates;
 � growth rate used to calculate cash flows after the forecast period.

Gross operating margin – Gross operating margin is based on the average of amounts obtained in years before 
the beginning of the budget period. These values are increased in the budget period, in relation to improvements 
to efficiency. A decrease in demand might lead to a reduction in gross operating margin, and related decrease in 
value.
Discount rates – Discount rates reflect the market estimate of risks specific to each CGU, taking account of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to underlying assets, which are not already included in the cash flow 
estimates. The calculation of the discount rate is based on the Group specific circumstance and its operating sec-
tors, and it results from its weighted average cost of the capital (WACC). 
Estimates of growth rates – The rates are based on sector studies published. The Management acknowledges 
that the rapidity in technological development and the possible entry of new actors in the market may have a 
significant impact on the growth rate. 

Sensitivity analyses were carried out by assuming reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the re-
porting date. Sensitivity analyses were based on the changes occurring in some key assumptions, keeping all 
other assumptions unaltered. Sensitivity analyses resulted in no different conclusions compared to those ob-
tained with impairment tests.

Development Costs, Other Assets in progress and payments on account
The “Development costs” item, amounting to €9,927 thousand, is composed of specific product development pro-
jects. The “Other” item, amounting to €28,430 thousand, consists primarily of intangible assets acquired through 
business combinations carried out by the Group. Details are shown in the following table:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Patents 14,184 17,193 (3,008)

Know-how 3,066 4,175 (1,109)

Licence agreement 2,943 3,396 (453)

Software 8,098 7,493 605

Others 138 196 (58)

Total 28,430 32,453 (4,023)



Datalogic Annual Report 2019         115

The “Assets in progress and payments on account” item, equal to €12,114 thousand, is attributable, in the 
amount of €9,976 thousand, to the capitalisation of costs relating to Research and Development projects that are 
currently underway, as well as, in the amount of €2,138 thousand, to software implementations that are not yet 
completed. 

The increase, compared to previous years, of capitalised costs, with reference to product development projects, 
reflects the Group’s investments in the renewal of its product range.

Note 3. Right-of-use Assets
The adoption, as from 1 January 2019, of IFRS 16, involved the recognition of assets in right of use, equal to the 
value of the financial liabilities at the transition date, adjusted to take account of any accruals and deferrals. The 
following table shows recognised fixed assets, by asset class.

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Buildings 7,560 - 7,560

Vehicles 2,041 - 2,041

Office equipment 152 - 152

Total 9,753 - 9,753

Details of movements as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Net book value as at 01.01.2019 Buildings Vehicles Office equipment Total

Increases 31.12.2019  

Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases 11,186 2,982 228 14,396

Total 11,186 2,982 228 14,396

Decreases 31.12.2019  

Depreciation (3,626) (941) (76) (4,643)

Total (3,626) (941) (76) (4,643)

Historical cost 11,186 2,982 228 14,396

Accumulated depreciation (3,626) (941) (76) (4,643)

Net book value as at 31.12.2019 7,560 2,041 152 9,753

Depreciation recognised over the period amounted to €4,643 thousand. As regards the description of the ac-
counting policies and related underlying assumptions adopted by the Group as per the application of the IFRS 16 
standard and the effects resulting from the first-time adoption of the same, reference is made to the previous 
comments in the section regarding the accounting standards adopted by the Group.
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Note 4. Equity investments in associates 
Equity investments owned by the Group as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

31.12.2018 Increases
(Decreases)  Other changes 31.12.2019

CAEN RFID S.r.l. 550   550

Suzhou Mobilead Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. 1,397  (1,397) -

R4I S.r.l. 150   150

Datalogic Automation AB 2   2

Specialvideo S.r.l. 29   29

Datasensor GmbH 45   45

Total 2,173 - (1,397) 776

Changes in the “Equity investments in associates” item, compared to 31 December 2018, are attributable to the 
transfer of the equity investment held in Suzhou Mobilead Electronic Technology Co., Ltd., as well as in the in-
vestment in Suzhou Mobydata Smart System Co. Ltd., which was consolidated on a line-by-line basis. For further 
information reference is made to the previous comments in the section regarding the scope of consolidation.
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Note 5. Financial assets and Liabilities by category
The following table shows the breakdown of “Financial assets and liabilities”, according to provisions set out by 
IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019: 

Financial assets at 
amortised cost

Financial assets at FV 
through profit or loss

Financial assets at FV 
through OCI 31.12.2018

Non-current financial assets 2,268 - 7,224 9,492

Financial assets - Equity investments -  - 7,224 7,224

Financial assets - Securities - - - - 

Financial assets - Loans - - - - 

Financial assets - Other - - - - 

Other receivables 2,268 - - 2,268

Current financial assets 293,859 50,896 - 344,755

Trade receivables 89,417  - - 89,417

Other receivables 23,012 - - 23,012

Financial assets - Other  - 50,896 - 50,896

Financial assets - Securities  -  - -  -

Cash and cash equivalents 181,430  - - 181,430

Total 296,127 50,896 7,224 354,247

Financial assets at 
amortised cost

Financial assets at FV 
through profit or loss

Financial assets at FV 
through OCI 31.12.2019

Non-current financial assets 1,334 535 8,930 10,799

Financial assets - Equity investments -   535 8,930 9,465

Financial assets - Securities - - - - 

Financial assets - Loans - -  - - 

Financial assets - Other - - - - 

Other receivables 1,334 - - 1,334

Current financial assets 253,996 31,200 - 285,196

Trade receivables 77,308 - - 77,308

Other receivables 24,847 - - 24,847

Financial assets - Other - 31,200  - 31,200

Financial assets - Securities - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 151,841 - - 151,841

Total 255,330 31,735 8,930 295,995
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Derivatives Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost 31.12.2018

Non-current financial liabilities - 162,675 162,675

Financial payables - 157,407 157,407

Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments - - -

Other payables - 5,268 5,268

Current financial liabilities - 222,265 222,265

Trade payables - 116,731 116,731

Other payables  - 54,458 54,458

Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments - - -

Short-term financial payables - 51,076 51,076

Total - 384,940 384,940

Derivatives Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost 31.12.2019

Non-current financial liabilities - 132,262 132,262

Financial payables  - 115,578 115,578

Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments - - -

Other payables - 16,684 16,684

Current financial liabilities - 208,064 208,064

Trade payables - 105,841 105,841

Other payables - 48,124 48,124

Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments - - -

Short-term financial payables - 54,099 54,099

Total - 340,326 340,326

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined based on methods that can be classified under the var-
ious hierarchy levels of fair value, as set forth by IFRS 13. In particular, the Group has adopted internal valuation 
models that are generally used in finance and based on prices supplied by market operators, or prices taken from 
active markets. 
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Fair value – hierarchy
All the financial instruments measured at fair value are classified in the three categories defined below:
Level 1: market prices;
Level 2: valuation techniques (based on observable market data);
Level 3: valuation techniques (not based on observable market data).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31.12.2019

Assets measured at fair value     

Financial assets - Equity investments 8,860  605 9,465

Financial assets - Non-current securities   

Financial assets - Other non-current financial assets    

Financial assets - Other 20,238 10,962  31,200

Financial assets - Loans    0

Financial assets - Derivative instruments    0

Total assets measured at fair value 29,098 10,962 605 40,665

Note 6. Financial assets 
The financial assets include the following:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Non-current financial assets 9,465 7,224 2,241

Current financial assets 31,200 50,896 (19,696)

Total 40,665 58,120 (17,455)

The “Current financial assets” item consists of investments in corporate cash, represented by insurance policies 
and mutual investment funds. The change for the period refers to the redemption of some investments. 

The “Non-current financial assets” item is composed of equity investments in other companies held by the Group, 
and is broken down as follows:

31.12.2018 Increases Decreases Fair value 
adjustment

Translation 
effects 31.12.2019

Listed equity investments 7,154   1,431 275 8,860

Unlisted equity investments 70 535 605

Total 7,224 535 0 1,431 275 9,465

The amount of the “Listed equity investments” item is represented by the 1.2% investment in the share capital of 
the Japanese company Idec Corporation listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.
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Note 7. Trade and other receivables
Details of trade and other receivables item as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Trade receivables 73,164 81,815 (8,651)

Contract assets 5,361 10,492 (5,131)

Bad debt provision (1,217) (2,890) 1,673

Net trade receivables 77,308 89,417 (12,109)

Receivables from associates 895 1,014 (119)

Receivables from related parties  8 (8)

Total trade receivables 78,203 90,439 (12,236)

Other receivables - current accrued income and prepaid expenses 24,924 23,194 1,730

Other receivables - non-current accrued income and prepaid expenses 1,334 2,268 (934)

Total other receivables - accrued income and prepaid expenses 26,258 25,462 796

Trade and other receivables - Non-current 1,334 (2,268) 3,602

Trade and other receivables - current 103,127 113,633 (10,506)

Trade receivables
The “Trade receivables” item as at 31 December 2019, gross of bad debt provisions, amounted to €78,203 
thousand, representing a decrease of 13.5%. As at 31 December 2019, factored trade receivables amounted to 
€36,566 thousand (compared to €24,896 thousand at the end of 2018). Trade receivables from associates arise 
from commercial transactions carried out at arm’s length conditions. 

As at 31 December 2019, the breakdown of the item by maturity terms, compared with the same period of the 
previous year, was as follows:

2019 2018

Not yet due 59,343 75,039 

Past due by 30 days 11,703 11,520 

Past due by 31 - 90 days 5,165 2,721 

Past due by more than 90 days 1,097 137 

Total 77,308 89,417 
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The following table shows the breakdown of trade receivables by currency as at 31 December 2019 and 31 De-
cember 2018:

2019 2018

Euro 22,028 26,848

US Dollar (USD) 42,638 50,868

British Pound Sterling (GBP) 3,260 2,318

Australian Dollar (AUD) 911 962

Canadian Dollar (CAD) 331 1,303

Japanese Yen (JPY) 782 934

Singapore Dollar (SGD) 0 (489)

Hungarian Forint (HUF) 1 4

Chinese Renminbi (CNY) 5,388 3,982

Vietnam Dong (VND) 329 320

Brazilian Real (BRL) 1,640 2,366

Total 77,308 89,417

Customer trade receivables are posted net of bad debt provisions totalling €1,217 thousand (€2,890 thousand as 
at 31 December 2018). Changes in bad debt provision during the period were as follows:

2019 2018 Change

As at 1 January 2,890 1,177 1,713

Allocations to Shareholders’ Equity due to adoption of IFRS 9 - 1,715 (1,715)

As at 1 January - restated 2,890 2,892 (2)

Foreign exchange gains/losses 51 76 (25)

Provisions 448 371 77

Releases (2,148) (190) (1,958)

Uses (24) (259) 235

As at 31 December 1,217 2,890 (1,673)
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Other receivables - accrued income and prepaid expenses
The detail of the “Other receivables - accrued income and prepaid expenses” item is shown below:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Other short-term receivables 2,311 2,872 (561)

Other long-term receivables 1,334 2,268 (934)

VAT receivables 18,534 17,002 1,532

Accrued income and prepaid expenses 4,079 3,320 759

Total 26,258 25,462 796

The “Accrued income and prepaid expenses” item is mainly composed of insurance, as well as Hardware and 
Software fees. 

Note 8. Inventories

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Raw and ancillary materials and consumables 41,754 40,369 1,385

Work in progress and semi-finished products        23,582        24,440 (858)

Finished products and goods        37,585        31,017 6,568

Total 102,921 95,826 7,095

Inventories are disclosed net of an obsolescence provision totalling €10,121 thousand as at 31 December 2019 
(€11,222 thousand as at 31 December 2018). The increase in inventories is attributable to the seasonal effect 
and to greater procurement made to the management of the cross-over phase in the reorganisation of the new 
European logistic hub. Changes as at 31 December of each year are shown below:

2019 2018

1 January 11,222 9,605

Foreign exchange gains/losses (185) 218

Provisions 920 2,672

Releases (1,836) (1,273)

31 December 10,121 11,222



Datalogic Annual Report 2019         123

Note 9. Tax payables and receivables

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Tax receivables 24,421 18,661 5,760

         of which from Parent Company 12,742 11,276 1,466

Tax payables (25,822) (16,382) (9,440)

         of which to Parent Company (15,913) (9,557) (6,356)

Total (1,401) 2,279 (3,680)

As at 31 December 2019, the “Tax receivables” item amounted to €24,421 thousand, up €5,760 thousand com-
pared to the end of 2018 (€18,661 thousand as at 31 December 2018). The receivables for IRES tax from the par-
ent company Hydra S.p.A., equal to €12,742 thousand (€11,276 thousand as at 31 December 2018) are classified 
under this item. This amount is part to the tax consolidation.

The “Tax payables” item amounted to €25,822 thousand as at 31 December 2019, up €9,440 thousand (€16,382 
thousand as at 31 December 2018). The payables for IRES tax to the parent company Hydra S.p.A., equal to 
€15,913 thousand (€9,557 thousand as at 31 December 2018) are classified under this item. This amount is part 
to the tax consolidation.
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Note 10. Shareholders’ Equity
The detail of equity accounts is shown below, while changes in Shareholders’ Equity are reported in the specific 
statement:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Share capital 30,392 30,392 -

Share premium reserve 111,779 111,779 - 

Treasury shares held in portfolio (15,113) (10,810) (4,303)

Share capital and capital reserves 127,058 131,361 (4,303)

Translation reserve 26,530 20,401 6,129 

Other reserves 5,775 2,544 3,231 

Retained earnings 194,527 159,292 35,235 

Profit for the year 50,281 62,210 (11,929)

Total 404,171 375,808 28,363 

Share capital
Movements in share capital as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are reported below:

Number of 
shares

Share
capital

Share
cancellation 

reserve

Treasury 
shares held 
in portfolio

Treasury
share

reserve

Share
premium 

reserve
Total

01.01.2018 58,229,477 30,392 2,813 6,120 2,026 106,940 148,291

Purchase of treasury shares (890,327)  - - (22,934) 18,422 (18,422) (22,934)

Sale of treasury shares 211,392 - - 4,662 (151) 151 4,662

Gains/(losses) on treasury shares - - - 1,365 - - 1,365

Charges on treasury shares 2,721 - - (23) - - (23)

31.12.2018 57,550,542 30,392 2,813 (10,810) 20,297 88,669 131,361

Number of 
shares

Share
capital

Share
cancellation 

reserve

Treasury 
shares held 
in portfolio

Treasury
share

reserve

Share
premium 

reserve
Total

01.01.2019 57,550,542 30,392 2,813 (10,810) 20,297 88,669 131,361

Purchase of treasury shares (252,388) - - (4,298) 4,298 (4,298) (4,298)

Sale of treasury shares - - -  - - - -

Gains/(losses) on treasury shares - - - - - - -

Charges on treasury shares - - - (5) - - (5)

31.12.2019 57,298,154 30,392 2,813 (15,113) 24,595 84,371 127,058



Datalogic Annual Report 2019         125

As at 31 December 2019, the share capital amounted to €30,392 thousand, representing the share capital, en-
tirely subscribed and paid by the Parent Company Datalogic S.p.A.. The share capital comprises a total number 
of ordinary shares of 58,446,491, including 1,148,337 held as treasury shares, for a counter-value of €15,113 
thousand, making the number of outstanding shares at that date 57,298,154. Moreover, 521,000 shares were 
assigned to a Stock Grant plan. The shares have a nominal unit value of €0.52. 

Other Reserves
As at 31 December 2019, changes in other reserves are broken down as follows:

 � change in the translation reserve, amounting to €6,129 thousand;
 � change in the cash flow hedge reserve, amounting to €174 thousand;
 � change in financial assets reserve, measured at FVOCI, amounting to €1,686 thousand;
 � decrease in the actuarial gains/(losses) reserve, amounting to €150 thousand;
 � change in the Stock Grant reserve, amounting to €1,521 thousand.

With reference to changes in the Stock Grant reserve, these changes were related to the recognition of the medi-
um/long-term share-based incentive plan, approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 30 April 2019. Should de-
fined performance targets be achieved, the rights to receive Company’s shares were assigned to the beneficiaries 
by the Directors on 25 June 2019 (grant date).
The above-mentioned increase in Shareholders’ Equity was recognised, for the portion pertaining to the period, 
based on the measurement at fair value of the entire plan.

Note 11. Financial payables 
Financial payables are broken down as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Non-current financial payables 115,578 157,407 (41,829)

Current financial payables 54,099 51,076 3,023

Total 169,677 208,483 (38,806)

The breakdown of this item is detailed below: 

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Borrowings from bank 157,527 204,721 (47,194)

Others  1,680 (1,680)

Financial payables IFRS 16 10,061 0 10,061

Payables to factoring companies 1,868 2,053 (185)

Bank overdrafts 221 29 192

Total 169,677 208,483 (38,806)
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The breakdown of changes in the “Borrowings from bank” item as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 
is shown below:

2019 2018

1 January 204,721 253,764

Increases 35 0

Decreases for borrowing repayments (47,841) (47,831)

Recalculation of amortised cost 612 (1,212)

31 December 157,527 204,721

The breakdown of the “Borrowings from bank” item by maturity is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Variable rate 0 0

Due < 1 year 0 0

Due > 1 year 0 0

Fixed rate 157,527 204,721

Due < 1 year 47,421 47,314

Due > 1 year 110,035 157,314

Due > 5 years 71 93

Total 157,527 204,721

All loans were granted in Euro.

Covenants
Some borrowing contracts envisage the compliance, by the Group, with some financial covenants, measured 
every six months as at 30 June and as at 31 December, as summarised in the following table:

Banca Company Covenants Frequency Reference statements

Club Deal Datalogic S.p.A. NFP/EBITDA           2.75 Semi-annual Consolidated

E.I.B. Datalogic S.p.A. NFP/EBITDA           2.75 Semi-annual Consolidated

As at 31 December 2019, the above-mentioned covenants were fulfilled.
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Note 12. Net deferred taxes 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities result both from positive items already recognised in the income statement and 
subject to deferred taxation under current tax regulations and temporary differences between recorded assets 
and liabilities and their relevant taxable value.

Deferred tax assets are accounted for based on assumptions of the future recoverability of the temporary differ-
ences that originated them, that is based on economic and fiscal strategic plans.

Temporary differences that generate deferred tax assets are mainly tax losses and taxes paid abroad, provisions 
for risk and charges and foreign exchange rate translation. Deferred tax liabilities are mainly due to temporary 
differences for adjustments to exchange rates and statutory and fiscal differences of amortisation/depreciation 
plans related to tangible and intangible assets.

The total of net deferred taxes is broken down as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Deferred tax assets 43,572 54,397 (10,825)

Deferred tax liabilities (17,819) (32,518) 14,699

Total 25,753 21,879 3,874

Change in deferred taxes is mainly due to the release of deferred taxes recognised on incomes become taxable 
over the year, represented by gains on exchange rates and dividends from investee companies.



128         Datalogic Annual Report 2019

DATALOGIC ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Below we show the main items forming deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and changes in them dur-
ing the year.

Deferred tax assets 01.01.2019

Accrued
(released) to

Income
Statement

Accrued 
(released) to 

Shareholders’ 
Equity

Foreign 
exchange 

gains/losses
Reclassification 31.12.2019

Receivables, foreign taxes 19,383 (149) - 374 - 19,608

Foreign exchange differences 9,018 (8,113) - (19) - 886

Differences on amortisation/depreciation 1,957 254 - 29 - 2,240

Asset write-downs 1,226 (300)                          -  - - 926

Non-deductible temp. diff. 12,376 2,808  - 188 - 15,372

Other 7,600 (24) 248 6 (6,844) 986

Adjustments 2,721 981 (148) - - 3,554

Total 54,281 (4,543) 100 578 (6,844) 43,572

Deferred tax provision 01.01.2019

Accrued
(released) to

Income
Statement

Accrued 
(released) to 

Shareholders’ 
Equity

Foreign 
exchange 

gains/losses
Reclassification 31.12.2019

NOLs 16 - - - - 16

Foreign exchange differences 10,420 (9,602) 20 - - 838

Differences on amortisation/depreciation 11,266 754 - 165 - 12,185

IAS Reserves 315 - - - - 315

Non-deductible temp. diff. 1,023 88 - 1 11 1,123

Other 9,050 (6,125)  - - (56) 2,869

Adjustments 743 - - - 45 788

Total 32,833 (14,885) 20 166  - 18,134
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Note 13. Post-employment benefits
The breakdown of changes in the “Post-employment benefits” item as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 
2018 is shown below:

2019 2018

1 January 6,541 6,633

Accrual 2,140 2,124

Payments (1,112) (1,179)

Discounting 666  

Other movements (60) (22)

Social security receivables for post-employment benefits (1,149) (1,015)

31 December 7,026 6,541

Note 14. Provisions for risks and charges
The breakdown of the “Provisions for risks and charges” item is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Provisions for risks and charges, current 4,273 7,197 (2,924)

Provisions for risks and charges, non-current 4,916 6,320 (1,404)

Total 9,189 13,517 (4,328)

The detailed breakdown of and changes in this item are presented below:

31.12.2018 Increases (Uses) and 
(Releases)

Other
movements

Exchange
rate diff. 31.12.2019

Product warranty provision 10,694 6,859 (9,389)  141 8,305

“Stock rotation” provision 1,448 396 0 (1,859) 15 (0)

Others 1,375 314 (804) 0 0 885

Total 13,517 7,569 (10,193) (1,859) 156 9,189

The “Product warranty provision” item covers the estimated cost of repairing products sold up to 31 December 
2019 and covered by a warranty period. It amounts to €8,305 thousand (of which €4,631 thousand long-term) and 
is considered sufficient in relation to the specific risk it covers. 

The “Others” item includes primarily allocations made by possible tax liabilities, labour disputes and Agents’ 
severance indemnity. Some irrelevant disputes related to the Group are currently in place. Their risk is assessed 
by experts and no allocations were made in relation to them, as provided for by IAS 37.
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Note 15. Trade and other payables
The breakdown of trade and other payables is summarised in the following table:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Trade payables 104,193 113,314 (9,121)

Contract liabilities - customer advances 1,648 3,417 (1,769)

Trade payables 105,841 116,731 (10,890)

Payables to associates 55 260 (205)

Payables to related parties 133 148 (15)

Total trade payables 106,029 117,139 (11,110)

Other payables - current accrued liabilities and deferred income 48,124 54,458 (6,334)

Other payables - non-current accrued liabilities and deferred income 16,684 5,268 11,416

Total other payables - accrued liabilities and deferred income 64,808 59,726 5,082

Less: non-current portion 16,684 5,268 11,416

Current portion 154,153 171,597 (17,444)

Trade payables amounted to €106,029 thousand, down by €11,110 thousand compared to the previous year. 

Other payables – accrued liabilities and deferred income
The detailed breakdown of this item is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Non-current accrued liabilities and deferred income 16,684 5,268 11,416

Other short-term payables: 27,134 28,165 (1,031)

   Payables to employees 17,883 18,737 (854)

   Payables to pension and social security agencies 6,382 6,523 (141)

   Other payables 2,869 2,905 (36)

VAT payables 3,673 1,800 1,873

Current accrued liabilities and deferred income 17,317 24,493 (7,176)

Total 64,808 59,726 5,082

Payables to employees represents the amount due for salaries and vacations accrued by employees as at 
31 December 2019.

The “Accrued liabilities and deferred income” item is mainly composed of deferred income related to multi-annual 
maintenance contracts. The increase for the period is due to new contracts renewed with some customers.
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INFORMATION ON THE INCOME STATEMENT

Note 16. Revenues
Revenues divided by type are shown in the following table:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Revenues from sale of products 567,974 596,540 (28,566)

Revenues from services 44,512 34,475 10,037

Total revenues 612,486 631,015 (18,529)

In 2019, consolidated net revenues amounted to €612,486 thousand, down by 2.9% compared to €631,015 thou-
sand in the same period of 2018. The following table shows the breakdown of revenues per geographical areas:

31.12.2019 % 31.12.2018 
(**) % Change % % ch. net FX

Italy 47,955 7.8%         53,031 8.4% (5,076) -9.6% -10.5%

EMEAI (excluding Italy) 261,608 42.7%       271,755 43.1% (10,146) -3.7% -5.0%

Total EMEAI (*) 309,563 50.5%        324,786 51.5% (15,223) -4.7% -5.9%

North America 219,420 35.8%        205,902 32.6% 13,518 6.6% 1.5%

Latin America 16,131 2.6%          16,545 2.6% (414) -2.5% -4.3%

APAC (*) 67,371 11.0%          83,781 13.3% (16,410) -19.6% -20.1%

Total revenues 612,486 100.0% 631,015 100.0% (18,529) -2.9% -5.3%

  (*) EMEAI: Europe, Middle East, India and Africa; APAC: Asia & Pacific (including China).
(**) Comparison data for 2018 were restated consistently to reflect the new allocations of revenues.

In 2019, the Datalogic division reported revenues amounting to €568,128 thousand, with a particularly positive 
performance in North and Latin America. The business segments that contribute the most as regards reve-
nues over the period are Retail and Manufacturing. The segment that reported the best performance in terms of 
growth is Transportation & Logistics.

The Group’s revenues, divided by recognition method and business segment, are broken down as follows:

Datalogic Solution Net 
System Informatics Adjustments Total 

Revenues from the sale of goods and services - point in time 513,696 3,408 15,533 (3,442) 529,195 

Revenues from the sale of goods and services - over the time 54,432 25,656 3,203 - 83,291

Total  568,128 29,064 18,736 (3,442) 612,486
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The Group recognises revenues from the sale of goods and services in a specific moment, when the control of the 
assets has been transferred to the customer, generally upon delivery of the good or the rendering of the service. 
Conversely, revenues are generally recognised over time, based on the stage of completion of contract perfor-
mance obligations. This item includes revenues resulting from contracts and postponement contracts related to 
a multi-annual warranty.

Datalogic Solution Net 
System Informatics Adjustments Total 

Sale of Goods 529,270 27,418 14,428 (3,142) 567,974 

Sale of Services 38,858 1,646 4,308 (300) 44,512

Total  568,128 29,064 18,736 (3,442) 612,486

Note 17. Cost of goods sold and operating costs
 

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Cost of Goods Sold 319,780 325,798 (6,018)

Operating Costs 233,902 225,694 8,208

Research and Development expenses 59,376 62,019 (2,643)

Distribution expenses 121,631 112,225 9,406

General and administrative expenses 50,405 49,135 1,270

Other operating expenses 2,490 2,315 175

Total 553,682 551,492 2,190

Cost of goods sold
This item amounted to €319,780 thousand, down by 1.85% compared to the same period of 2018. The percentage 
on revenues remained substantially unchanged and amounted to 52.2% (51.6% in the same period of 2018).
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Operating costs 
Operating costs increased by 3.6%, from €225,694 thousand to €233,902 thousand. The percentage on turnover 
increased from 35.8% to 38.2%, reporting a 2.4% worsening. In particular:

 � “Research and Development expenses” amounted to €59,376 thousand and increased, compared to the 
same period of the previous year, with a constantly growing percentage on turnover of 9.7% (9.8% in the 
same period of the previous year).

 � “Distribution expenses” amounted to €121,631 thousand, up by €9,406 thousand (+8.4%), compared to the 
same period of the previous year. This increase is mainly due to an increase in labour cost, following invest-
ments in sales organisations made in 2018. 

 � “General and administrative expenses” amounted to €50,405 thousand, up by 2.6%. 

The breakdown of “Other operating expenses” is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Non-income taxes 2,441 1,670 771

Provision for risk accrual (95) 19 (114)

Accrual/(Releases) provision for doubtful accounts 0 371 (371)

Cost charge-backs 12 156 (144)

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 104 83 21

Others 28 16 12

Total 2,490 2,315 175
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Breakdown of costs by type
The following table provides the details of total costs (cost of goods sold and total operating costs) by type:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Purchases 234,432 246,248 (11,816)

Change in inventories (5,206) (9,873) 4,667

Labour cost 186,418 173,754 12,664

Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs 26,760 19,772 6,988

Goods receipt and shipment expenses 19,929 23,191 (3,262)

Travel and meetings expenses 12,045 13,306 (1,261)

Technical, legal and tax advisory consultancies 9,963 10,748 (785)

Subcontracted work 9,288 5,911 3,377

Consumables and R&D material 8,463 9,513 (1,050)

Marketing expenses 7,549 8,640 (1,091)

EDP expenses 4,864 4,482 382

Royalties 4,763 3,793 970

Repairs and warranty provision accrual 3,694 6,749 (3,055)

Building expenses 3,492 6,902 (3,410)

Telephone expenses 2,841 2,379 462

Sundry service costs 2,294 1,935 359

Utilities 2,247 2,118 129

Quality certification expenses 2,171 3,078 (907)

Directors’ remuneration 2,056 2,002 54

Expenses for plant and machinery and other assets 1,731 1,486 245

Vehicle expenses 1,437 1,369 68

Commissions 1,202 1,799 (597)

Entertainment expenses 1,014 1,394 (380)

Insurances 838 889 (52)

Others 9,397 9,907 (510)

Total cost of goods sold and operating costs 553,682 551,492 2,190

Costs for purchases and change in inventories decreased by €7,149 thousand (-3%), compared to the same 
period of 2018, and remained unchanged in terms of percentage on total revenues.
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Labour cost amounted to €186,418 thousand (€173,754 thousand in the same period of 2018) and reported an 
increase of €12,664 thousand compared to the previous year (+7.3%). The change, compared to 31 December 
2018, is due to the increase in the average number of employees on a payroll during the period, mainly in trade 
entities in APAC, America and Italy during 2018. The detailed breakdown of labour cost is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Wages and salaries 142,399 138,146 4,253

Social security charges 27,975 25,453 2,522

Employee severance indemnities 2,379 2,084 295

Retirement and similar benefits 1,736 1,658 78

Other labour costs 11,929 6,413 5,516

Total 186,418 173,754 12,664

The increase in the “Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs” item, amounting to €6,988 thousand, is 
mainly due to the adoption of the new IFRS 16 standard - Leases (€4,643 thousand) and higher investments in 
both production plants and in product development.

The “Goods receipt and shipment expenses” item, amounting to €19,929 thousand, recorded a 14.1% decrease, 
with a better percentage on turnover compared with the previous period (-0.4%).

Costs related to “Subcontracted work” amounted to €9,288 thousand and refer primarily to orders in the Solu-
tion Net Systems division. They increased compared to the same period of the previous year according to the 
progress of some projects.

Expenses related to “Technical, legal and tax advisory consultancies” decreased by €785 thousand compared 
to 2018 thanks to an effective cost-saving policy.

“Buildings expenses” decreased by €3,410 thousand in 2019, mainly due to the adoption of the new IFRS 16 - 
Leases standard, which involved the adjustment of costs for leases and the recognition of amortisation and depre-
ciation costs related to rental and operating lease contracts.

Pursuant to provisions as per Law no. 124/2017, art. 1, par. 125-129, it is noted that grants to Research and 
Development expenses are due primarily to the portion pertaining to the year of grants received on the following 
projects:

 � “Rossini” (RObot enhanced SenSing, INtelligence and actuation to Improve job quality in manufacturing) fi-
nanced by the European Commission within the Horizon 2020 program; 

 � “Flute” (FLexibility, Usability, easy installation and configuration faciliTy, Eco-sustainability), financed by the 
Emilia Romagna Region (Regional Law 14/2014).
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Note 18. Other revenues 

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Grants to Research and Development expenses 5,058 1,986 3,072

Miscellaneous income and revenues 655 1,589 (934)

Rents 97 92 5

Income on disposal of fixed assets 95 161 (66)

Contingent assets 736 58 678

Others 26 108 (82)

Total 6,667 3,994 2,673

The “Grants to research and development expenses” item includes the tax receivables for R&D activities.

Note 19. Financial Income/(Expenses)

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

 Financial Income/(Expenses) (415) (1,685) 1,270

 Foreign exchange gains/losses (1,347) (2,730) 1,383

 Bank expenses (1,246) (1,474) 228

 Others (229) 221 (450)

Total Financial Income/(Expenses) (3,237) (5,668) 2,431

Thanks to the favourable trend of exchange rates and the positive result from cash investments, the Net Financial 
Income/(Expenses) item was negative for €3,237 thousand, an improvement of €2,431 thousand compared to the 
negative result of €5,668 thousand reported in the same period of 2018. 

Note 20. Taxes

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Profit (loss) before taxes 62,234 77,849 (15,615)

Income taxes 21,699 10,083 11,616

Deferred taxes (9,746) 5,556 (15,302)

Total 11,953 15,639 (3,686)

Tax Rate 19.2% 20.1% -0.9%

The average tax rate comes to 19.2% (20.1% as at 31 December 2018).
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The reconciliation for 2019 of the nominal tax rate and the effective rate in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
is shown in the following table:

2019 2018

Profit (loss) before taxes 62,234  77,849  

Nominal tax rate under Italian law (14,936) -24.0% (18,684) -24.00%

Effects of local taxes (1,563) -2.5% (1,716) -2.20%

Tax effect on intercompany dividends (432) -0.7% (1,149) -1.48%

Tax effect on tax losses - 0.0% 81 0.10%

Cumulative effect of different tax rates applied in foreign countries 1,114 1.8% 1,920 2.47%

Tax effects - previous years (530) -0.9% (431) -0.55%

Other effects 4,393 7.1% 4,340 5.57%

Consolidated effective tax rate (11,953) -19.2% (15,639) -20.09%

The tax rate as at 31 December 2019, equal to 19.2%, reports a slight decrease compared to the previous year 
(20.1%). The most important effects, which affected the 2019 effective tax rate, are the taxation of dividends and 
the higher tax benefits on investments in R&D.

Note 21. Earnings/loss per share

Earnings/loss per share 
As required by IAS 33, information on data used to calculate the earning/loss per share is provided below. Basic 
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit and/or loss for the period, attributable to the shareholders of the Parent 
Company, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the reference period. For pur-
poses of calculating diluted EPS, the weighted average number of outstanding shares is determined assuming 
translation of all potential shares with a dilutive effect (stock grant attributions), and the Group’s net profit is 
adjusted for the post-tax effects of the translation.  

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Group earnings/(loss) for the period 50,281 62,210

Average number of shares (thousands) 57,525 58,381

Basic earnings/(loss) per share 0.87 1.07

Group earnings/(loss) for the period 50,281 62,210

Average number of shares (thousands) - Diluted effect 57,699 58,389

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 0.87 1.07
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Note 22. Audit fees
Pursuant to article 149-duodecies of the Issuer Regulation, implementing Legislative Decree 58 of 24 February 
1998, the following is the summary schedule of fees pertaining to the year 2019 provided by the Auditing Firm. 

2019

Fees for services supplied by the Auditing Firm to the Parent Company and to the subsidiaries

Datalogic S.p.A. – audit fees 130

Italian subsidiaries – audit fees  161

Foreign subsidiaries – audit fees  321

Total audit fees (*) 612

Non-audit fees 20

Total 632

(*)  Foreign subsidiaries audit fees include €31 thousand related to audit services provided by Auditors not part of the Deloitte & Touche 
Network.

The Non-audit fees item refers to the limited evaluation of the consolidated non-financial statement, related to 
the year ended 31 December 2019. 
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TRANSACTIONS WITH SUBSIDIARIES THAT ARE NOT CONSOLIDATED LINE BY LINE, 
ASSOCIATES AND RELATED PARTIES
For the definition of “Related parties”, see both IAS 24, approved by EC Regulation no. 1725/2003, and the Pro-
cedure for Transactions with Related Parties approved by the Board of Directors on 4 November 2010 (most 
recently amended on 24 July 2015), available on the Company’s website www.datalogic.com.
The parent company of the Datalogic Group is Hydra S.p.A..
Intercompany transactions are executed as part of the ordinary operations and at arm’s length conditions. Fur-
thermore, there are other relationships with related parties, always carried out as part of ordinary operations and 
at arm’s length conditions, of an immaterial amount and in accordance with the “OPC Procedure”, chiefly with 
Hydra S.p.A. or entities under joint control (with Datalogic S.p.A.), or with individuals that carry out the coordina-
tion and management of Datalogic S.p.A. (including entities controlled by the same and close relatives).
Related-party transactions refer chiefly to commercial and real estate transactions (instrumental and non-instru-
mental premises for the Group under lease or leased) and advisory activities as well as to companies joining the 
scope of tax consolidation. None of these assumes particular economic or strategic importance for the Group 
since receivables, payables, revenues and costs referred to the related parties are not a significant proportion of 
the total amount of the Financial Statements.
Pursuant to art. 5, par. 8, of the Consob Regulations, it should be noted that, over the period 01.01.2019 - 
31.12.2019, the Company’s Board of Directors did not approve any relevant transaction, as set out by art. 3, par. 
1, lett. b) of the Consob Regulations, or any transaction with minority related parties that had a significant impact 
on the Group’s equity position or profit/(loss).

Parent Company
Company 

controlled by 
Chairman of BoD

Not consolidated 
companies on 
a line-by-line 

basis

31.12.2019

Equity investments -   -   776 776 

Held-for-sale assets -   -   -   -   

Trade and other receivables -   77 895 972 

Receivables pursuant to tax consolidation 12,742 -   -   12,742 

Financial receivables -   -   -   -   

Payables pursuant to tax consolidation 15,913 -   -   15,913

Trade payables                -   -   72 72 

Financial payables -   -   -   -   

Operating expenses -   1,173 154 1,326 

Trade and other revenues -   -   4,988 4,988 

Financial income -   -   -   -   

Profits/(losses) from associates -   -   -   -   

http://www.datalogic.com/
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Datalogic 2,962 3,029 (67)

Solution Net Systems 36 42 (6)

Informatics 76 86 (10)

Total 3,074 3,157 (83)

ALLOCATION OF THE YEAR’S EARNINGS

To our Shareholders,
since the Financial Statements of Datalogic S.p.A. show a net profit for the year of €105,039,893, and since the 
legal reserve has reached one fifth of the share capital, pursuant to art. 2430 of the Italian Civil Code, the Board 
of Directors proposes:

 � to distribute to Shareholders an ordinary unit dividend, gross of legal withholdings, of 30 cents per share with 
coupon detachment on 15 June 2020 (record date 16 June 2020) and payment from 17 June 2020, for a maxi-
mum amount of €17,533,947. The remaining amount of the Profit for the Year will be allocated to reserves 
available.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Mr. Romano Volta)



Statutory
Financial Statements
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Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS (€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

A) Non-current assets (1+2+3+4+5+6+7+8)  227,127 227,405

1) Tangible assets  22,929 23,598

 Land 1 2,466 2,466

 Buildings 1 15,333 15,478

 Other assets 1 5,130 5,645

 Assets in progress and payments on account 1 0 9

2) Intangible assets  7,911 5,506

 Software 2 5,701 4,514

 Other 2 72 216

 Assets in progress and payments on account 2 2,138 776

3) Right-of-use assets  649 0

 Buildings 3 453 0

 Vehicles 3 196 0

4) Equity investments in affiliates 4 185,155 184,093

5) Financial assets  9,465 7,224

 Equity investments 6 9,465 7,224

 Securities  0 0

6) Non-current financial receivables  0 0

7) Trade and other receivables 7 182 185

8) Deferred tax assets 12 836 6,799

B) Current assets (9+10+11+12+13+14+15)  450,106 458,096

9) Inventories  0 0

10) Trade and other receivables  110,440 15,066

 Trade receivables 7 9,495 9,884

  of which from subsidiaries 7 9,480 9,859

     Other receivables, accrued income and prepaid expenses 7 100,945 5,182

  of which from subsidiaries  98,744 841

11) Tax receivables 8 961 2,248

  of which from Parent Company 8 0 767

12) Financial assets  31,200 50,896

 Other 6 31,200 50,896

13) Current financial receivables 9 200,575 264,237

 Current financial receivables to subsidiaries 9 200,575 264,237

14) Financial assets - Derivative instruments 0 0

15) Cash and cash equivalents 106,930 125,649

Total Assets (A+B)  677,233 685,500
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Statement of Financial Position

LIABILITIES (€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

A) Total Shareholders' Equity (1+2+3+4+5+6)  353,548 278,267

1) Share capital 10 30,392 30,392

2) Share premium reserve 10 111,779 111,779

3) Treasury shares held in portfolio 10 (15,113) (10,810)

4) Other reserves 10 6,272 3,011

5) Retained earnings 10 115,178 114,555

6) Profit/(loss) for the period 10 105,040 29,340

B) Non-current liabilities (7+8+9+10+11+12+13)  113,984 168,376

7) Non-current financial payables 11 110,203 156,859

8) Non-current financial liabilities - Derivative instruments 0 0

9) Tax payables  0 0

10) Deferred tax liabilities 12 3,148 11,122

11) Post-employment benefits 13 633 395

12) Provisions for risks and charges, non-current 14 0 0

13) Other liabilities  0 0

C) Current liabilities (14+15+16+17+18)  209,701 238,857

14) Trade and other payables  15,053 15,407

 Trade payables 15 5,768 6,812

  of which to subsidiaries 15 189 404

  of which to related parties 15 2 2

 Other payables, accrued liabilities and deferred income 15 9,286 8,595

  of which other receivables from subsidiaries  5,366 4,369

15) Tax payables 8 3,191 773

  of which to Parent Company  2,128  0

16) Provisions for risks and charges, current 14 0 60

17) Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments 0 0

18) Current financial payables 11 191,457 222,617

  of which to subsidiaries  144,044 174,996

Total Liabilities (A+B+C)  677,233 685,500
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Income Statement 

(€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

1) Revenues 17 30,745 29,059

 Revenues for royalties to subsidiaries  15,503 16,304

 Revenues for services to subsidiaries  15,242 12,755

2) Cost of goods sold 18 1,579 1,438

Gross Operating Margin (1-2)  29,166 27,621

3) Other operating revenues 19 624 635

  of which from subsidiaries  519 510

4) Research and Development expenses 18 558 861

5) Distribution expenses 18 896 932

6) General and administrative expenses 18 24,624 22,776

 of which non-recurring  1,302 496

  of which to related parties  72 84

  of which to subsidiaries  440 561

7) Other operating expenses 18 368 (1,477)

  of which to related parties  3 1

  of which to subsidiaries  (1,161) (1,567)

Total operating costs (4+5+6+7)  26,446 23,092

Operating Result  3,344 5,165

8) Financial income 20 107,273 31,331

  of which from subsidiaries  102,284 28,010

9) Financial expenses 20 4,036 6,448

  of which to subsidiaries  492 1,155

Financial Income/(Expenses) (8-9)  103,237 24,882

Profit/(loss) before taxes from continuing operations 106,581 30,047

 Income taxes 21 1,541 707

Net profit/(loss) for the period 105,040 29,340
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

(€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Profit/(loss) for the period  105,040 29,340

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income:    

    

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income which will 
be subsequently reclassified to profit/(loss) for the period:  0 0

  

Profit/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments (cash flow hedge) 10 250 312

 of which tax effect  (77) 0

Reserve for adjustment on exchange rates 10 4,956

 of which tax effect  (1,565)

Profit/(loss) due to translation of assets at FVOCI 10 1,687 (2,313)

 of which tax effect   (20) 28

    

Total other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income which 
will be subsequently reclassified to profit/(loss) for the period  1,936 2,955

    

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income which will 
not be subsequently reclassified to profit/(loss) for the period    

    

Actuarial gains (losses) on defined-benefit plans 10 (196) 0

 of which tax effect  62  

    

Total other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income which 
will not be subsequently reclassified to profit/(loss) for the period  (196) 0

    

Total profit/(loss) of Comprehensive Income Statement  1,741 2,955

    

Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period   106,781 32,295
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Statement of Cash Flow

(€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Profit (loss) before taxes  106,581 30,047

Amortisation of intangible assets 1, 2 1,308 1,202

Depreciation of tangible assets  1,552 1,029

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3 191  

Losses (Gains) from sale of fixed assets 18, 19   

Change in provisions for risks and charges 15 (60) (1,773)

Change in bad debt provisions 18  (128)

Change in employee benefits reserve 14 (235)  

Other non-monetary changes  (2,564) (25,057)

Allocation to Stock Grant plan  459 35

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from operations before changes 
in working capital 107,231 5,355

Change in trade receivables 7 389 18,486

Change in trade payables 16 (1,044) 915

Change in other current assets 7 (90,474) 1,399

Change in other current liabilities 16 (4,598) 4,464

Change in other non-current assets 7 3 (3)

Change in other non-current liabilities 16 250  

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from operations after changes 
in working capital  11,757 30,615

Change in taxes  153 814

Interest paid  (3,133) 3,572

Interest collected  5,553  

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from operations (A)  14,330 35,001

Increase in intangible assets 2 (3,717) (2,772)

Decrease in intangible assets 2 4 47

Increase in tangible assets  1 (896) (2,717)

Decrease in tangible assets  1 13 64

Change in non-current financial assets 5 (553) 950

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from investments (B)  (5,150) (4,428)
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(€/000) Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Change in financial receivables 5 83,358 (15,375)

Change in financial payables 12, 6 (78,476) (58,906)

(Purchase)/sale of treasury shares 10 (4,303) (16,930)

Dividends collected  163 21,484

Dividends paid 10 (28,716) (28,914)

Other changes  75 (36)

Cash flow generated (absorbed) from financial activity (C)  (27,899) (98,676)

Net increase (decrease) in available cash (A+B+C) (18,719) (68,103)

Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 125,649 193,752

Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period 106,930 125,649
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Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Description  Share capital  Share premium reserve  Treasury shares held in 
portfolio 

 Share capital and capital 
reserves 

 Other reserves  Retained earnings  Profit for the year  Total Shareholders' Equity 

01.01.2018 30,392 111,779 6,120 148,291 4,835 112,921 25,592 291,639

Allocation of earnings      25,592 (25,592)  

Dividends      (28,914)  (28,914)

Sale/purchase of treasury shares   (16,930) (16,930)    (16,930)

Other changes     177   177

Profit/(Loss) as at 31.12.2018       29,340 29,340

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income     (2,001) 4,956  2,955

Total comprehensive profit (loss) (2,001) 4,956 29,340 32,295

31.12.2018 30,392 111,779 (10,810) 131,361 3,011 114,555 29,340 278,267

Description  Share capital  Share premium reserve  Treasury shares held in 
portfolio 

 Share capital and capital 
reserves 

 Other reserves  Retained earnings  Profit for the year  Total Shareholders' Equity 

01.01.2019 30,392 111,779 (10,810) 131,361 3,011 114,555 29,340 278,267

Allocation of earnings      29,340 (29,340)  

Dividends      (28,716)  (28,716)

Sale/purchase of treasury shares   (4,303) (4,303)    (4,303)

Other changes     1,521   1,521

Profit/(Loss) as at 31.12.2019       105,040 105,040

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income     1,741  1,741

Total comprehensive profit (loss) 1,741 105,040 106,781

31.12.2019 30,392 111,779 (15,113) 127,058 6,272 115,178 105,040 353,548
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Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Description  Share capital  Share premium reserve  Treasury shares held in 
portfolio 

 Share capital and capital 
reserves 

 Other reserves  Retained earnings  Profit for the year  Total Shareholders' Equity 

01.01.2018 30,392 111,779 6,120 148,291 4,835 112,921 25,592 291,639

Allocation of earnings      25,592 (25,592)  

Dividends      (28,914)  (28,914)

Sale/purchase of treasury shares   (16,930) (16,930)    (16,930)

Other changes     177   177

Profit/(Loss) as at 31.12.2018       29,340 29,340

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income     (2,001) 4,956  2,955

Total comprehensive profit (loss) (2,001) 4,956 29,340 32,295

31.12.2018 30,392 111,779 (10,810) 131,361 3,011 114,555 29,340 278,267

Description  Share capital  Share premium reserve  Treasury shares held in 
portfolio 

 Share capital and capital 
reserves 

 Other reserves  Retained earnings  Profit for the year  Total Shareholders' Equity 

01.01.2019 30,392 111,779 (10,810) 131,361 3,011 114,555 29,340 278,267

Allocation of earnings      29,340 (29,340)  

Dividends      (28,716)  (28,716)

Sale/purchase of treasury shares   (4,303) (4,303)    (4,303)

Other changes     1,521   1,521

Profit/(Loss) as at 31.12.2019       105,040 105,040

Other components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income     1,741  1,741

Total comprehensive profit (loss) 1,741 105,040 106,781

31.12.2019 30,392 111,779 (15,113) 127,058 6,272 115,178 105,040 353,548
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General information 

Datalogic S.p.A. (“Company” or “Parent Company”) is a company listed in the STAR segment of the Italian Stock 
Exchange managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., with its registered office in Italy. The address of the registered office 
is Via Candini, 2 - Lippo di Calderara (BO). The Company is a subsidiary of Hydra S.p.A., which is also based in 
Bologna.
Datalogic S.p.A. is the Parent Company of the Datalogic Group (“Group”), the global technological leader in the 
markets of automatic data capture and process automation. The Group is specialised in the design and produc-
tion of bar code readers, mobile computers, detection, measurement and security sensors, vision and laser 
marking systems and RFID.
Its pioneering solutions contribute to increase efficiency and quality of processes along the entire value chain, in 
the Retail, Manufacturing, Transportation & Logistics and Healthcare sectors.

The publication of the Company’s Financial Statements as at 31 December 2019 was authorised by resolution of 
the Board of Directors dated 19 March 2020.

Basis of presentation

1) General criteria
Pursuant to the European Regulation 1606/2002, the Financial Statements for the year were prepared in compli-
ance with the International Accounting Standards (IAS/IFRS) issued by the IASB (International Accounting Stand-
ards Board) and endorsed by the European Union, pursuant to European Regulation 1725/2003 and subsequent 
amendments, with all the interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IF-
RS-IC”), formerly the Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”), endorsed by the European Commission at the 
date of approval of the draft financial statements by the Board of Directors and contained in the related EU Reg-
ulations published at this date, and in compliance with the provisions of Consob Regulation no. 11971 of 14 May 
1999 and subsequent amendments.  

These Financial Statements are drawn up in thousands of Euro, which is the Company’s “functional” and “pres-
entation” currency.

2) Financial statements
The financial statements adopted are compliant with those required by IAS 1 and which were used in the Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, in particular: 

 � current and non-current assets, as well as current and non-current liabilities are disclosed separately in the 
Statement of Financial Position. Current assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, are those set to 
be realised, sold or used during the Company’s normal operational cycle; current liabilities are those whose 
extinction is envisaged during the normal operating cycle or in the 12 months after the reporting date;

 � with regard to the Income Statement, cost and revenue items are disclosed based on grouping by function, as 
this classification was deemed more meaningful for comprehension of the Company’s business result;

 � the Statement of Comprehensive Income presents the components that determine profit/(loss) for the year 
and the costs and revenues reported directly under Shareholders’ Equity;

 � the Statement of Cash Flow is presented using the indirect method.
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Furthermore, as required by Consob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006, with regard to the Income statement, 
costs and revenues from non-recurring operations have been specifically identified and the related effects on the 
major interim levels have been indicated separately. Non-recurring events and transactions are mainly identified 
according to the nature of the transactions. In particular, items which, given their nature, do not occur on an 
ongoing basis during normal operations are included among non-recurring costs/revenues (these include, for 
example: income/expenses from business combinations and income/expenses from corporate reorganisation 
processes). 

The Financial Statements were prepared in compliance with the general criterion of a reliable and true vision of 
the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows, on a going concern and on an accrual 
basis, in compliance with the general principles of consistency of presentation, relevance and aggregation, no 
offsetting and comparability of information.

The Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity analytically details the changes occurring in the financial year 
and in the previous financial year.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the historic cost principle has been adopted for all assets and liabilities 
except for some available-for-sale financial assets for which the fair value principle has been applied. 

Preparation of IFRS-compliant Financial Statements requires the use of some estimates. Reference is made to 
the section describing the main estimates made in this set of Financial Statements. 

3) Accounting Policies and Standards applied
Below we indicate the policies adopted for preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements as at 31 December 
2019.

Tangible assets 
Owned tangible assets are initially recognised at the cost of contribution, purchase, or in-house construction. 
The cost comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to make the asset available for use (including, 
when significant and in the presence of effective obligations, the present value of the estimated costs for 
decommissioning and removal of the asset and for reinstatement of the location), net of trade discounts and 
allowances.

Some tangible assets in the “Land and buildings” categories were measured at fair value (market value) as at 
1 January 2004 (IFRS transition date) and this value was used as the deemed cost. The cost of buildings is de-
preciated net of the residual value estimated as the realisation value obtainable via disposal at the end of the 
building’s useful life.

Costs incurred after purchase are recognised in the asset’s carrying value, or are recognised as a separate 
asset, only if it is thought likely that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will be enjoyed 
and the asset’s cost can be reliably measured. Maintenance and repair costs or replacement costs that do 
not have the above characteristics are recognised in the Income Statement in the year in which they are 
borne.
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Tangible assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis each year – starting from the time when the asset is 
available for use, or when it is potentially able to provide the economic benefits associated with it – according to 
economic/technical rates determined according to assets’ residual possibility of use and taking into account the 
month when they became available for use in the first year of utilisation.
Land is considered to be an asset with an indefinite life and therefore not subject to depreciation.

The depreciation rates applied by the Company are as follows: 

Asset category Annual depreciation rates

Property:

Buildings 2% - 3.3%

Land 0%

Other assets:

Plants pertaining to buildings 8.33% - 10% - 6.67%

Lightweight constructions 6.67% - 4%

Production equipment & electronic instruments 20% - 10%

Moulds 20%

Electronic office machinery 33% - 20%

Office furniture and fittings 10% - 6.67% - 5%

Cars 25%

Freight vehicles 14%

Trade show & exhibition equipment 11% - 20%

Improvements to third-party assets Contract duration

If, regardless of the depreciation already posted, an impairment emerges, the asset is written down; if the rea-
sons for write-down disappear in later years, the original value is reinstated. The residual value and useful life of 
assets are reviewed at least at each year-end in order to assess any significant changes in value.

Assets held under lease contracts 
As regards the recognition and related measurement of lease contracts, as well as the recording of leased goods 
(also operating leases) in the Assets, reference is made to the description in the following paragraph concerning 
the new accounting standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Company.

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are recognised under assets in the Statement of Financial Position when it is likely that use 
of the asset will generate future economic benefits and when the asset’s costs can be reliably calculated. They 
are initially recognised at the value of contribution or at acquisition or production cost, inclusive of any ancil-
lary costs.
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If tangible and intangible assets are sold, the date of disposal will be the date when the purchaser obtains the 
control of the assets, pursuant to requirements set forth on performance obligations by the IFRS 15 standard. 
The profit or loss generated by the consideration is accounted for in the Income Statement and is determined 
according to requirements to determine the transaction price envisaged by IFRS 15. The following amendments 
to the estimated consideration used to determine the profit or loss must be recognised pursuant to require-
ments set forth by IFRS 15 in relation to changes in the transaction price.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets mainly consist of specific intangible assets acquired by the Company. 

Amortisation 
Intangible assets of finite duration are systematically amortised according to their projected future usefulness, 
so that the net value at the reporting date corresponds to their residual usefulness or to the amount recoverable 
according to corporate business plans. Amortisation starts when the asset is available for use.

The useful life for each category is detailed below:

Description Useful Life - years

Other intangible assets:

- Software licences 3/5

- SAP licences 10

- User licences Contract duration

The residual values, the useful lives and the amortisation of intangible assets are reviewed at each year end and, 
when required, corrected prospectively. The useful lives remained unchanged compared to the previous year.

Equity investments
Equity investments in subsidiaries and associates, not classified as “held for sale”, are measured at cost, ad-
justed for impairment. They will be tested for impairment and eventually written down when there is evidence 
that the asset may have suffered impairment. The actual impairment will be charged to the Income Statement 
if there is objective evidence that events occurred which impacted the expected future cash flows of the equity 
investments themselves. Any losses, exceeding the carrying value of equity investments, that might arise due 
to legal obligations or implicit obligations to cover losses of investees, are recognised under provisions for 
risks and charges.
If the reasons for write-down disappear in later years, the original value is reinstated. The related dividends are 
recorded under financial income from equity investments at the time the right to receive them is determined, 
generally coinciding with the resolution taken by the Shareholders’ Meeting.

Subsidiaries
Companies are defined as subsidiaries when the Company has the power to govern, directly or indirectly, their 
financial and operating policies and to obtain benefits connected with their business.
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Associates
Companies are defined as associates when the Company exercises a significant influence on them, but it does 
not hold control on their management or has not the power to govern their financial and operating policies and to 
obtain benefits connected with their business.

Impairment 
Tangible and intangible assets, as well as equity investments are tested for impairment in the presence of specific 
indicators of loss of value.
The aim of this impairment test is to ensure that tangible and intangible assets, as well as equity investments, 
are not carried at a value exceeding their recoverable value, consisting of the higher between their fair value less 
selling costs and their value in use.
Value in use is calculated based on the future cash flows that are expected to originate from the asset or CGU 
(cash generating unit) to which the asset belongs. Cash flows are discounted to present value using a discount 
rate reflecting the market’s current estimate of the time value of money and of the risks specific to the asset or 
CGU to which presumable realisation value refers.

If the recoverable value of the asset or CGU, to which it belongs, is less than the net carrying value, the asset in 
question is written down to reflect its impairment, with recognition of the latter in the Income Statement for the 
year.

As no goodwill is recognised in the Financial Statements, impairment losses relating to CGUs are allocated on a 
proportional basis.

If the reasons causing it cease to exist, impairment is reversed within the limits of the amount of what would 
have been the book value, net of amortisation calculated using the historical cost, if no impairment had been 
recognised.
Any reinstatements of value are recognised in the Income Statement.

Financial Assets and Liabilities 
The Company measures at fair value all financial instruments such as derivatives at each annual reporting date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received for the sale of an asset or that would be paid for transfer of a liability 
in a normal transaction between market operators at the date of measurement.

A measurement of fair value assumes that the sale of the asset or transfer of the liability takes place:
 � in the main market of the asset or liability; or
 � when there is no main market, in the market most advantageous for the asset or liability.

The main market or most advantageous market must be accessible for the Company. The fair value of an asset or 
liability is measured by adopting the assumptions that the market operators would use in determining the price 
of the asset or liability, presuming that they act to meet their economic interest in the best way. Measurement of 
the fair value of a non-financial asset considers the capability of a market operator to generate economic benefits 
by using the asset in its maximum and best use or by selling it to another market operator that would use it in 
its maximum and best use.
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The Company uses measurement methods that are appropriate for the situation, and for which data available to 
measure fair value are sufficient, while maximising the use of relevant inputs observable and limiting the use of 
non-observable inputs. All assets and liabilities measured or recognised at fair value are classified based on a fair 
value hierarchy and described hereunder:

 � Level 1 - listed prices (not adjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities the entity of which is 
identifiable at the measurement date;

 � Level 2 - input data other than listed prices included in Level 1 which can be observed, either directly or indi-
rectly for the asset or liability to be measured;

 � Level 3 - the valuation techniques for which input data cannot be observed for the asset or liability to be 
measured.

The fair value measurement is classified internally at the same fair value hierarchy level in which the lowest hier-
archy input used for the measurement is stated.
As regards assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements at fair value on a recurring basis, 
the Company determines whether transfers between hierarchy levels occurred while revising the classification at 
each annual reporting date.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract generating a financial asset for an entity and a financial liability or an equity 
instrument for another entity.

Financial assets
The financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value, increased by their ancillary charges if the financial 
assets are not recognised at their fair value through profit or loss. Trade receivables that do not include a signif-
icant financing component are excluded. For these receivables the Company applies the practical expedient and 
measures them at the transaction price, as determined pursuant to IFRS 15. 

Upon recognition, for future measurements, financial assets are stated based on four possible measurement 
modalities:

 � financial assets at amortised cost;
 � financial assets at FV through OCI with a reclassification of cumulative profits and losses;
 � financial assets at FV through OCI without reversal of cumulative profits and losses when eliminated (equity 

instruments); 
 � financial assets at FV through profit or loss.

The selection of the classification of financial assets depends on the following:
 � nature of financial assets, determined primarily by the characteristics of expected contractual cash flows;
 � business model that the Company applies to the management of the financial assets in order to generate cash 

flows, which might result from the collection of contractual cash flows, as well as from the sale of financial 
assets or from both.

In order to classify and measure a financial asset at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, this asset shall generate cash flows that depend solely on payments of principal and interest (SPPI). This 
measurement is defined as SPPI test and it is performed at instrument level.
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Financial assets are derecognised from the Financial Statements when the right to receive cash no longer exists, 
the Company has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed the contractual ob-
ligation to pay them to a third party in their entirety and without delay and (1) has transferred essentially all the 
risks and benefits of ownership of the financial asset or (2) has not transferred or essentially held all the risks and 
benefits of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

In the cases in which the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has signed 
an agreement based on which it retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but 
takes on a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more beneficiaries (pass-through), it assesses 
whether and to what extent it has retained the risks and benefits pertaining to the ownership.

As regards trade receivables and contract-related assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculat-
ing the expected losses. Therefore, the Company does not monitor changes in credit risk, but the expected loss 
is fully recognised at each reference date. As an instrument to determine the expected losses, the Company has 
defined a matrix system based on historical information, reviewed to take account of prospective elements, with 
reference to the specific types of debtors and their economic environment.

Equity investments in other companies are measured at fair value. When the fair value cannot be reliably deter-
mined, equity investments are measured at cost, adjusted for impairment.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Expenses are recognised in the Income Statement with the 
effective interest rate method, except for financial liabilities acquired for trading or derivatives (see following 
paragraph), or financial liabilities designated at FVTPL by the Management at first-time recognition, which are 
measured at fair value with counter-entry in the Income Statement.
Financial guarantees given are agreements envisaging a payment to repay the owner of a debt security against a 
loss incurred due to a non-payment by the debtor at the contractual maturity term. If the financial guarantees are 
issued by the Company, they are initially recognised as liabilities at fair value, increased by transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the issue of the guarantee itself. The liability is then measured at the higher between 
the best estimated disbursement, required to fulfil the guaranteed obligation at the reporting date, and the initial-
ly recognised amount, less accumulated amortisation.
A financial liability is written off when the obligation underlying the liability has been extinguished, annulled or 
fulfilled. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another one from the same lender, under conditions that are 
essentially different, or if the terms and conditions of an existing liability are essentially amended, this change 
or amendment will be treated as a reversal of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, with rec-
ognition in the Income Statement of any differences involving the carrying values. In the event of amendments 
on financial liabilities defined as irrelevant, the economic effects of renegotiation are recognised in the Income 
Statement.

Offsetting financial instruments
A financial asset and liability can be offset and the net balance can be shown on the Statement of Financial Po-
sition if there is a current legal right to offset the amounts recognised and there is the intention to settle the net 
remainder, or realise the asset and at the same time settle the liability.
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Financial derivatives
Derivatives, including embedded derivatives, separate from the main contract, are initially recognised at fair 
value.
Derivatives are classified as hedging instruments when the relation between derivatives and the object matter of 
the hedging is formally documented and the effectiveness of the hedging, which is periodically checked, is high.
When the hedging derivatives hedge the risk of changes in fair value of the hedged instruments, they are recog-
nised at fair value, and the effects are charged to the Income Statement. Accordingly, the hedged instruments are 
adjusted to reflect the changes in fair value, associated to the hedged risk.
In the event of cash flow hedges, the derivatives are designated as a hedge for exposure to variable cash flows 
attributable to risks that might subsequently affect the Income Statement. These risks are generally associated 
with an asset or liability recognised in the Financial Statements (as future payments on variable rate payables).
The effective portion of fair value change, related to the portion of derivative contracts designated as hedge deriv-
atives pursuant to the standard, is recognised as component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income (Hedg-
ing reserve). This reserve is then charged to the profit for the year in the period in which the hedged transaction 
affects the Income Statement.
The ineffective portion of fair value change, as well as the entire fair value change in derivatives that have not 
been designated as hedge derivatives or that do not have the requirements envisaged in the aforesaid IFRS 9, is 
instead recognised directly in the Income Statement.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
the Company classifies discontinued non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered 
mainly with a sale, instead than through their continuous use. These discontinued non-current assets, classified 
as held for sale, are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value, less sales costs. Sales costs are 
any additional costs directly attributable to the sale, excluding financial expenses and taxes.
The condition precedent to classify these assets as held for sale is deemed as fulfilled only when the sale is highly 
probable and the asset, or the discontinued group of assets, is available for immediate sale in its current condi-
tions. The actions required for completing the sale should indicate that it is improbable that significant changes in 
the sale might occur or that the sale be cancelled. Management must be engaged in the sale, whose completion 
should be planned within one year from the date of classification. 
The depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets cease when they are 
classified as available for sale. 
The assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately under the Financial Statement items. 
Assets to be discontinued are not included in the result of operating activities and are presented in the profit/
(loss) statement for the year on a single line as net profit/(loss) coming from assets to be discontinued.
All the other explanatory notes include amounts concerning continuing operations, unless otherwise specified.

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank and postal deposits, and short-term financial invest-
ments (maturity of three months or less after purchase date) that are highly liquid, readily convertible into cash 
and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Current-account overdrafts and advances on invoices subject to collection are deducted from cash only for the 
purposes of the cash flow statement.
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Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital consists of the ordinary shares outstanding, which are posted at par value.
Costs relating to the issue of new shares or options are classified in Shareholders’ Equity (net of associated tax 
benefit relating to them) as a deduction from the proceeds of the issuance of such instruments.

Treasury shares
In the case of buyback of treasury shares, the price paid, inclusive of any directly attributable accessory costs, 
is deducted from the Company’s Shareholders’ Equity until such shares are cancelled, re-issued, or sold. When 
treasury shares are resold or re-issued, the proceeds, net of any directly attributable accessory costs and related 
tax effect, are posted as Shareholders’ Equity.
Consequently, no profit or loss is entered in the consolidated Income Statement at the time of purchase, sale or 
cancellation of treasury shares.

Liabilities for employee benefits 
Post-employment benefits are calculated based on programmes that, depending on their characteristics, are 
either “defined-contribution programmes” or “defined-benefit programmes”. Liabilities for employee benefits in-
clude the Company’s provision for severance indemnities.

Defined-contribution plans
Defined-contribution plans are formalised programmes of post-employment benefits according to which the 
company makes payments to an insurance company or a pension fund and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if, at maturity date, the fund has not sufficient assets to pay all benefits for 
employees, in relation to the work carried out in current and previous years. These contributions, paid against a 
work service rendered by employees, are accounted for as cost in the pertaining year.

Defined-benefit plans and other long-term benefits
Defined-benefit plans are programmes of post-employment benefits that represent a future obligation for the 
Company. The entity bears actuarial and investment risks related to the scheme.
The Company uses the “projected unit credit method” to determine the current value of liabilities of the scheme 
and the cost of services.
This actuarial calculation method requires the use of objective actuarial hypotheses, compatible and based 
on demographic variables (mortality rate, personnel turnover) and financial variables (discount rate, future 
increases of salaries and wages and benefits). When a defined-benefit plan is entirely or partially financed 
by contributions paid to a fund, legally separate from the company, or to an insurance company, the as-
sets in support of the above scheme are measured at fair value. The amount of the obligation is therefore 
accounted for, less the fair value of assets in support of the scheme that the entity would pay to settle the 
obligation itself.
The revaluations, including actuarial profits and losses, the changes in the maximum threshold of assets 
(excluding net interest) and the yield of assets in support of the scheme (excluding net interests), are rec-
ognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Position, while debiting or crediting retained earnings 
through other components in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they occur. 
Revaluations are not reclassified in the Income Statement in subsequent years. The other long-term ben-
efits are intended for employees and differ from post-employment benefits. The accounting is similar to 
defined-benefit plans.
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Provisions for risks and charges 
Provisions for risks and charges are set aside to cover liabilities whose amount or due date are uncertain and 
that must be recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the following conditions are satisfied at the 
same time:

 � the entity has a current obligation (legal or constructive), i.e. under way as at the reporting date, arising from 
a past event;

 � it is probable that economic resources will have to be used to fulfil the obligation;
 � the amount needed to fulfil the obligation can be reliably estimated;
 � risks, for which materialisation of a liability is only contingent, are disclosed in the notes to financial state-

ments, in the section commenting on provisions, without provision being made.

In the case of events that are only remote, i.e. events that have very little likelihood of occurrence, no provisions 
are made and no additional or supplementary disclosure is provided.

Provisions are recognised at the value representing the best estimate of the amount the entity would pay 
to settle the obligation, or to transfer it to third parties, at the reporting date. If the time value of money 
is material, provisions are calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate 
reflecting the market’s current evaluation of the cost of money over time. When discounting to present 
value is performed, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as financial 
expense.

The funds are entered at the current value of expected financial resources, to be used in relation to the obligation. 
The provisions are periodically updated to reflect changes in cost estimates, realisation timing and any discount-
ed value. Estimate reviews of provisions are charged to the same item in the Income Statement that previously 
included the allocation and in the Income Statement for the year in which the change occurred.

The Company establishes restructuring provisions if there exists an implicit restructuring obligation and a formal 
plan for restructuring that created in interested third parties the reasonable expectation that the company will 
carry out the restructuring, or because it has begun its realisation or because it has already communicated its 
main aspects to interested third parties.

Share-based payments - Equity-settled transactions
Some employees of the Company and the Group receive a portion of their compensation under the form of share-
based payments. Therefore employees render their services against shares (“equity-settled transactions”). 
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date of the assignment, by using an 
adequate measurement method.
As regards the Company’s employees, this cost is recognised under labour cost for the period in which terms 
and conditions related to the achievement of targets and/or the performance of the services are fulfilled. The 
counter entry is a corresponding increase in Shareholders’ Equity. However, as regards other Group companies 
that are directly and indirectly controlled, this cost increases the carrying value of equity investments. Cumu-
lative expenses and increases of related equity investments, recognised in relation to these transactions at the 
reporting date of each financial year and until the maturity term, are proportionate to the maturity date and the 
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will effectively accrue. 
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Service or performance conditions are not taken into account when the fair value of the plan is defined at the 
grant date. The probability that these conditions be satisfied is however taken in to account while defining the best 
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will be held to maturity. Arm’s length conditions are reflected 
in the fair value at the grant date. Any other term and condition related to the plan and that would not entail a 
performance obligation shall not be considered as a vesting condition. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the 
fair value of the plan and entail the prompt accounting of the expense related to the plan, unless there are also 
service or performance conditions.

No expense or increase in equity investments will be recognised in relation to rights that have not accrued by 
reason of the non-satisfaction of performance and/or service obligations. When the rights include a market con-
dition, or a non-vesting condition, these rights are considered to be accrued regardless of the fact that market 
conditions or other non-vesting conditions have been fulfilled or not. It is understood that all other performance 
and/or service obligations must be satisfied.

If the conditions of the plan are modified, the minimum expense to be recognised is measured at fair value at the 
grant date, in the absence of the amendment of the plan itself, provided that the original conditions of the plan 
be fulfilled. Moreover, an expense for each change is recognised if it entails the increase in total fair value of the 
payment plan, or if this change is in any case favourable for employees. This expense is measured with reference 
to the change date. When a plan is cancelled by the entity or the counterpart, any remaining fair value element in 
the plan is immediately charged to Income Statement.

Income taxes
Income taxes include current and deferred taxes. Income taxes are generally recognised in the income statement, 
except when they relate to items entered directly in equity, in which case the tax effect is recognised directly in 
equity.
Current income taxes are calculated by applying to taxable income the tax rate in force at the reporting date and 
adjustments to taxes related to prior periods.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method applied to temporary differences between the amount of 
assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding amounts recognised for tax purposes, 
except as follows:

 � deferred tax liabilities derive from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, when the transaction itself occurs, does not affect the balance sheet 
profits or the profits or losses calculated for tax purposes;

 � the reversal of taxable temporary differences may be controlled and will probably not occur in the foreseeable 
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and tax credits and losses which were 
not used and can be brought forward, to the extent that the existence of adequate future taxable profits will exist 
against which the usage of the deductible temporary differences and the tax credits and losses brought forward 
can be used, except in cases where:

 � the deferred tax assets connected to the deductible temporary differences arise from initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction itself, 
does not affect the balance sheet result or the profit or loss for tax purposes;
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 � there are taxable temporary differences associated with equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures and deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the deductible temporary diffe-
rences will be reversed in the foreseeable future and that there are adequate taxable profits against which the 
temporary differences can be used.

Deferred taxes are calculated at the tax rate expected to be in force at the time when the asset is sold or the lia-
bility is redeemed.

Datalogic S.p.A. participates in the “national tax consolidation programme” of Hydra S.p.A., which makes it possi-
ble to transfer the net aggregate income or tax loss of the individual participating companies owned by the parent 
company, which will result in a single taxable income for the Company or a single tax loss that can be carried 
forward, as the algebraic sum of income and/or losses, and will thus enter a single payable to or receivable from 
Tax Authorities.

Revenues recognition 
Revenues are measured at fair value of the amount collected or collectable from the rendering of services within 
the scope of the Company’s characteristic business activity. Revenues are shown net of VAT, discounts and al-
lowances.
Pursuant to IFRS 15, the Company recognises revenues after identifying the contracts with its customers, as 
well as performance obligations to be fulfilled, determining the consideration to which it expects to be entitled 
in exchange for the services, and after evaluating the ways to satisfy such performance obligations (satisfaction 
at point in time or over the time). 

Pursuant to provisions set out by IFRS 15, the Company recognises revenues only when the following obligations 
have been satisfied: 

 � the parties in a contract have approved the contract and have undertook themselves to satisfy the related 
performance obligations;

 � the rights of either party can be defined as regards goods and services to be transferred;
 � payment terms of transferable goods and services can be defined;
 � the contract is of a commercial type;
 � the consideration in exchange of services transferred will be received.

If the aforesaid requirements are fulfilled, the Company recognises the revenues by applying the following rules.   

Rendering of services
The Company renders services to its subsidiaries. The Company recognises revenues from services when it has 
fulfilled its obligation to do so by transferring the promised service (i.e. asset) to the customer. The asset is trans-
ferred when the customer acquires its control.

Government grants 
Government grants are recognised, regardless of the existence of a formal grant resolution, when there is rea-
sonable certainty that the company will comply with any conditions attached to the grant and therefore that the 
grant will be received.
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Government grants receivable as compensation for costs already incurred, or to provide immediate financial 
support to the recipient company with no future related costs, are recognised as income in the year in which they 
become receivable.

Revenues relating to dividends and interest
Revenues relating to dividends and interest is respectively recognised as follows:

 � dividends, when the right is established to receive dividend payment (with a receivable recognised in the sta-
tement of financial position when distribution is resolved);

 � interest, with application of the effective interest rate method.

Dividends paid out 
Dividends are recognised when shareholders have the right to receive payment. This normally corresponds to the 
date of the annual General Shareholders’ Meeting that approves dividend distribution.
The dividends distributable to Shareholders are recognised as an equity movement in the year when they are 
approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting.

Treatment of foreign currency items 

Functional presentation currency
The items shown in the Company’s Financial Statements are shown in the currency of the economic environment 
in which the entity operates, i.e. in its functional currency. These Financial Statements are disclosed in thousands 
of Euro, which is the Company’s “functional” and “presentation” currency.

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are initially translated in the functional currency by 
using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. At the reporting date of the reference year, non functional- 
currency monetary assets and liabilities are converted in the functional currency at the exchange rate in force on 
that date. The resulting exchange differences are reported in the Income Statement. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities, denominated in a non-functional currency and measured at cost, are translated at the exchange rate 
effective on the date of transaction, while transactions measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate 
on the date in which such value is determined.

4) New accounting standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Company as at 
1 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases 
The IFRS 16 standard was issued in January 2016 and supersedes the following standards: IAS 17 - Leases, 
IFRIC 4 - Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives e SIC-27 
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. 
IFRS 16 sets forth principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The standard 
requires lessees to recognise financial and operating lease contracts in the financial statements according to one 
single accounting model, similar to the one used to recognise financial leases, pursuant to IAS 17.
This standard envisages two exemptions: lessees may elect not to recognise leases for low value assets and 
short-term leases (i.e. leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the inception of the lease, the lessee 
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shall measure a liability related to lease costs (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset representing the right of use 
of the underlying asset for the duration of the lease (i.e. the right-of-use asset). Moreover, interest payable on 
liabilities for leases and depreciation on the right-of-use assets shall be recognised separately.

The Company elected to apply this standard retrospectively on 1 January 2019, with the modified retrospective 
method, by recognising:

 � a financial liability, equal to the current value of future residual payments at the transition date, discounted by 
using the incremental borrowing rate for each single contract, applicable at the transition date and adjusted, 
for each subsidiary, according to the economic context in which the company operates;

 � a  right-of-use asset, equal to the value of the financial liability at the transition date, net of any accruals and 
deferrals related to the operating lease.

The impact as at 31 December 2019, resulting from the adoption of IFRS 16, was as follows:
 � the recognition of right-of-use assets, amounting to €649 thousand;
 � the recognition of financial liabilities for leases, amounting to €660 thousand;
 � the accounting of higher depreciation and lower costs for rents and leases of €191 thousand and €187 thou-

sand, respectively.

It should be noted that the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to financial liabilities, as per 
1 January 2019, was 1.35%.

While adopting IFRS 16, the Company availed itself of the exemption granted by the same standard: 5(a) con-
cerning short-term leases. The Company also availed itself of the exemption granted by IFRS 16: 5(b) concerning 
lease contracts, for which the underlying asset is a low-value asset (i.e. the value of the assets underlying the 
lease contract is not higher than €5 thousand, when new). Contracts for which the exemption was applied are 
primarily included within the following categories: computers, telephones and tablets, printers, other electronic 
devices. For these contracts, the introduction of IFRS 16 did not involve the recognition of financial liabilities re-
lated to leases and corresponding right of use. Leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line 
basis for the duration of the corresponding contracts.

Moreover, with reference to transition rules, the Company availed itself of the following practical expedients 
available in the event the modified retrospective transition method is adopted:

 � classification of contracts expiring within 12 months from the transition as short-term leases. For these con-
tracts, leases are recorded in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis;

 � exclusion of initial direct costs from the measurement of the right of use as from 1 January 2019;
 � use of information at the transition date to determine the lease term, with special reference to the exercise of 

extension and early termination options.

Other standards
As from 1 January 2019, some standards and/or amendments and interpretations entered in force (IFRS 9 – 
 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensations; IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments; IAS 19 
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement; IAS 28 Long Term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures; Annual 
Improvements IFRSs 2015-2017). These have already been described in the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 
31 December 2018, to which reference is made, and had no effect on the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2019.
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5) IFRS and IFRIC accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that, as at 
31 December 2019, were endorsed by the European Union but whose application was not yet 
mandatory and early application was not adopted by the Company

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 - 
 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors in order to align the definition of “relevant” 
in the standards and clarify some aspects of the definition. The new standard clarifies that any information is 
relevant (material) if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions 
that the primary users of financial statements make on the basis of financial information provided therein. The 
amendments made to the definition of relevant are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s 
Financial Statements.

On 29 March 2018, the IASB issued an amendment to “References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Stand-
ards”. The amendment is applicable to the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Earlier 
application is permitted. The Conceptual Framework sets out the fundamental concepts for financial reporting 
that guide the Board in developing IFRS Standards. This document helps to ensure that the standards are concep-
tually consistent and that similar transactions are treated the same way, so as to provide useful information for 
investors, lenders and other creditors. The Conceptual Framework assists companies in developing accounting 
policies when no IFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction, and more broadly, helps stakeholders to un-
derstand and interpret the standards. 

On 26 September 2019, the IASB issued the amendment entitled “Amendments to IFRS 9, AIS 39 and IFRS 7: 
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform”. This document amends IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments and IAS 39 - Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, as well as IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Specifically, 
the amendment modifies some requirements for the application of hedge accounting. Temporary relieves are 
provided in order to mitigate the impact due to the uncertainty of the IBOR reform (still underway) on future cash 
flows in the period preceding its completion. Moreover, the amendment sets out that, in their financial state-
ments, entities should disclose information on their hedging relationships that are directly affected by uncertainty 
generated by the reform and to whom these relieves apply. The amendments will enter into force on 1 January 
2020. Early application is permitted. Directors do not expect any impact on the Company’s Financial Statements 
due to the adoption of this amendment.
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6) IFRS accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are still not endorsed by 
the European Union

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
In May 2017, the IASB issued the IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a new and comprehensive standard 
on insurance contracts which covers recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure issues. The IFRS 
17 standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and requires the disclosure of 
comparison accounts. 
Directors do not expect any impact on the Company’s Financial Statements due to the adoption of this standard.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business
In October 2018, in IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business, the IASB issued amendments to the definition of a busi-
ness in order to assist entities in determining whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business. 
The amendments clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether market 
participants are capable of replacing any missing elements, add guidance to help entities assess whether an 
acquired process is substantive, narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs and introduce an optional 
fair value concentration test. New examples to illustrate the application of the guidance were published with the 
amendments.
By reason of the fact that amendments are applied prospectively to transactions or other events that occur upon 
or after the first-time application, the Company is not affected by these amendments at the first-time application 
date.

7) Use of estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the IFRS-compliant Financial Statements requires Directors to apply accounting standards and 
methodologies that, in some cases, are based on valuations and estimates, which in turn refer to historic experi-
ence and assumptions based on specific circumstances at any given time. The application of such estimates and 
assumptions affects the amounts related to revenues, costs, assets and liabilities, as well as contingent liabilities 
disclosed and any relevant information. The actual amounts of accounting items, for which these estimates and 
assumptions have been used, might be different from those reported due to the uncertainty characterising the 
assumptions and conditions on which estimates are based.

Following are the assumptions concerning the future, as well as the other main causes of uncertainty related to 
estimates which, at the reporting date, show a significant risk to generate remarkable adjustments in the carry-
ing values of assets and liabilities within the following financial year. The Company has based its assumptions and 
estimates on parameters which were available when preparing the Financial Statements. The current circum-
stances and assumptions on future developments might however change upon occurrence of market changes 
or events beyond the Company’s control. Upon their occurrence, these changes are reflected in the assumptions.

Taxes 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against 
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Relevant estimates performed by the Management 
are required to determine the amount of tax assets that can be recognised based on the level of future taxable 
income, the timing of their occurrence and tax planning strategies. Deferred tax liabilities for taxes on retained 
earnings are not recognised to the extent that they are likely to remain undistributed in the foreseeable future. 
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Estimates performed by the Management are therefore required to determine the amount of tax assets that can 
be recognised and the amount of tax liabilities, whose recognition can be omitted, based on the level of future 
taxable income, the timing of their occurrence and tax planning strategies. The long-term nature, as well as the 
complexity of regulations in force in the various jurisdictions, the differences resulting from actual results and 
assumptions made, or future changes in such assumptions might require future adjustments to income taxes 
and already recorded costs and benefits.

Fair value of financial assets
When the fair value of a financial asset or liability, which is recognised in the statement of financial position, 
cannot be measured based on quotations in an active market, fair value is determined by using various measure-
ment techniques. Inputs included in this model are taken from observable markets, whenever possible, but when 
it is not possible, a certain level of estimates is required to determine fair values. 

Employee benefits
The cost of defined-benefit plans and other post-employment healthcare benefits and the current value of the 
defined-benefit obligations are determined based on actuarial measurements. Actuarial measurement requires 
the elaboration of various assumptions, which might differ from the effects of future developments. These hy-
potheses concern the determination of discount rates, future wage increases, the mortality rates and pension 
increases.

Share-based payments - Equity-settled transactions
Some employees of the Company and the Group receive a portion of their compensation under the form of share-
based payments. The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of instruments at the 
date of the assignment. Cumulative expenses, recognised in relation to these transactions at the reporting date 
of each financial year and until the maturity term, are proportionate to the maturity date and the best estimate 
of the number of equity instruments that will effectively accrue. Evaluation processes and modalities, as well as 
the determination of the above-mentioned estimates, are based on assumptions that, for their nature, involve 
the evaluation of Directors.

Provisions for risks and charges
Provisions for risks and charges are based on measurements and estimates relating to the historic data and hy-
potheses, which are, from time to time, deemed reasonable and realistic according to the related circumstances. 
Evaluation processes and modalities, as well as the determination of such estimates, are based on assumptions 
that, for their nature, involve the evaluation of Directors. 
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Financial risk management

Risk factors
The Company is exposed to various types of financial risks in the course of its business, including:

 � market risk, specifically:
a) foreign currency exchange risk, relating to operations in currency areas other than that of the functional currency;
b) interest rate risk, connected with the Company’s level of exposure to financial instruments, generating 

interest and recognised in the Statement of Financial Position;
 � credit risk, deriving from trade transactions or from financing activities;
 � liquidity risk, relating to availability of financial resources and access to the credit market.

The Company specifically monitors each of the aforementioned financial risks, taking prompt action in order to 
minimise such risks. The sensitivity analysis is subsequently used to indicate the potential impact on the final 
results deriving from hypothetical fluctuations in the reference parameters. As provided for by IFRS 7, the analy-
ses are based on simplified scenarios applied to the figures and, owing to their nature, they cannot be considered 
indicative of the actual effects of future changes.

Market risk

a) Foreign currency exchange risk 
The Company operates in an international environment and is exposed to transaction exchange risk.
Transaction risk relates to trade transactions (foreign currency receivables/payables) and financial transactions 
(foreign currency borrowings or loans) of the Company in currencies other than its functional presentation cur-
rency. The key currency is the US Dollar. 

To permit full understanding of the foreign currency exchange risk on the Company’s Financial Statements, we have 
analysed the sensitivity of foreign currency accounting items to changes in exchange rates. The variability param-
eters applied were identified among the foreign exchange-rate differences considered reasonably possible, with 
all other variables remaining equal. The following table shows the results of the analysis as at 31 December 2019:

USD Nominal value Portion exposed to 
exchange rate risk

5% -5%

Exchange rates 1.1234 1.1796 1.06723

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 106,930 48,152   (2,293)   2,534 

Financial assets and investments 31,200    

Trade and other receivables 105,333 371    (18)     20 

Loans 200,575 26,645   (1,269)   1,402 

Financial liabilities     

Loans     301,660        18,666    888    (983)

Trade and other payables      15,054    

Income Statement impact, net    (2,692) 2,973

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had no currency derivative transactions in place.



170         Datalogic Annual Report 2019

DATALOGIC ANNUAL REPORT 2019

b) Interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk associated both with the availability of cash and with current bor-
rowings. The aim of interest rate risk management is to limit and stabilise payable flows caused by interest 
paid mainly on medium-term debt in order to achieve a tight match between the underlying and the hedging 
instrument. With regard to medium/long-term loans, as at 31 December 2019, Datalogic had no interest rate 
derivatives in place.

In order to fully understand the potential effects of fluctuations in interest rates to which the Company is exposed, 
we analysed the accounting items most at risk, assuming a change of 10 basis points in the Euribor and of 10 
basis points in the USD Libor. The analysis was based on reasonable assumptions. Below we show the results as 
at 31 December 2019:

Euribor Nominal value Portion exposed to 
interest rate risk

10bp -10bp

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 106,930 58,778     59   (59)

Financial assets and loans 31,200 31,200 31   (31)

Loans 200,575 173,930 174   (174)

Financial liabilities     

Loans 301,660 125,246    (126)   126 

Income Statement impact, net      138   (138)

Libor Nominal value Portion exposed to 
interest rate risk

10bp -10bp

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 106,930 48,152     48   (48)

Financial assets and loans 31,200    

Loans 200,575 26,645 26   (26)

Financial liabilities     

Loans 301,660 18,666    (19)    19 

Income Statement impact, net       55   (55)

Credit risk
The Company, having no direct relations with customers but only with associates, is not significantly exposed to 
this risk.
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Liquidity risk
The Company’s liquidity risk is minimised by careful management by the Central Treasury Department. Bank 
indebtedness and the management of liquidity are handled via a series of instruments aimed at optimising the 
management of financial resources, including cash pooling. The Company manages and negotiates medium/
long-term financing and credit lines to meet the Group’s requirements. Specifically, Datalogic S.p.A., as Parent 
Company, has cash credit lines available for future requirements to the benefit of the Group. Centralised negoti-
ation of credit lines and loans, on the one hand, and centralised management of the Group’s cash resources, on 
the other hand, are functional to the optimisation of net indebtedness costs.

The following table details the financial liabilities settled on a net basis by the Company, grouping them accord-
ing to residual contractual maturity as at the reporting date. The amounts shown are contractual cash flows not 
discounted to present value. 

The following table shows financial liabilities by maturity:

 0 - 1 year 1 - 5 years Total

Loans 47,222 109,734 156,956

Lease financial payables 191 469 660

Financial payables to Group companies 144,044  144,044

Trade and other payables 15,054 - 15,054

Total 206,511 110,203 316,714
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INFORMATION ON THE STATUTORY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

ASSETS

Note 1. Tangible assets
Tangible assets are broken down as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Land 2,466 2,466 -

Buildings 15,333 15,478 (145)

Other assets 5,130 5,645 (515)

Assets in progress and payments on account - 9 (9)

Total 22,929 23,598 (669)

Details of movements as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are as follows: 

Land Buildings Other assets
Assets in progress 

and payments on 
account

Total

Historical cost 2,466 18,081 12,036 - 32,583

Accumulated depreciation - (2,379) (8,118) - (10,497)

Net book value as at 01.01.2018 2,466 15,702 3,918 - 22,086

Increases 31.12.2018

Investments - 8 2,700 9 2,717

Total - 8 2,700 9 2,717

Decreases 31.12.2018

Disposals, historical cost - - (64) - (64)

Disposals, accum. depreciation - - 62  - 62

Depreciation - (232) (971) - (1,203)

Total - (232) (973) - (1,205)

Other changes 31.12.2018

Total - - - - -

Historical cost 2,466 18,089 14,672 9 35,236

Accumulated depreciation - (2,611) (9,027) - (11,638)

Net book value as at 31.12.2018 2,466 15,478 5,645 9 23,598
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Land Buildings Other assets
Assets in progress 

and payments on 
account

31.12.2019

Historical cost 2,466 18,089 14,672 9 35,236

Accumulated depreciation - (2,611) (9,027) - (11,638)

Net book value as at 01.01.2019 2,466 15,478 5,645 9 23,598

Increases 31.12.2019  

Investments - 79 817 - 896

Total - 79 817 - 896

Decreases 31.12.2019  

Disposals, historical cost -  - (79) - (79)

Disposals, accum. depreciation - - 67 - 67

Depreciation - (233) (1,319) - (1,552)

Total - (233) (1,331) - (1,564)

Other changes 31.12.2019  

Transfers - 9 - (9) -

Total - 9 - (9) -

Historical cost 2,466 18,177 15,409 - 36,052

Accumulated depreciation - (2,844) (10,279) - (13,123)

Net book value as at 31.12.2019 2,466 15,333 5,130 - 22,929

Net investments were recognised, over the year, amounting to €883 thousand and depreciation amounting to 
€1,552 thousand. 

Investments are related to the normal replacement of goods and plants concerning the “Other goods” item, which 
includes mainly office furniture and machines (€4,308 thousand) and general plants related to buildings (€749 
thousand).

Note 2. Intangible assets
Intangible assets are broken down as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Software 5,701 4,514 1,187

Other 72 216 (144)

Assets in progress and payments on account 2,138 776 1,362

Total 7,911 5,506 2,405
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Details of movements as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Software Other
Assets in progress 

and payments on 
account

31.12.2018

Historical cost 9,209 641 287 10,137

Accumulated amortisation (6,047) (281) - (6,328)

Net book value as at 01.01.2018 3,162 360 287 3,809

Increases 31.12.2018  

Investments 2,064  - 708 2,772

Total 2,064 - 708 2,772

Decreases 31.12.2018  

Disposals, historical cost (211) - - (211)

Disposals, accum. amortisation 165 - - 165

Amortisation (885) (144)  - (1,029)

Total (931) (144) - (1,075)

Other changes 31.12.2018  

Transfers 219 - (219) -

Total 219 - (219) -

Historical cost 11,281 641 776 12,698

Accumulated amortisation (6,767) (425) - (7,192)

Net book value as at 31.12.2018 4,514 216 776 5,506
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Software Other
Assets in progress 

and payments on 
account

31.12.2019

Historical cost 11,281 641 776 12,698

Accumulated amortisation (6,767) (425) - (7,192)

Net book value as at 01.01.2019 4,514 216 776 5,506

Increases 31.12.2019  

Investments 2,185  - 1,532 3,717

Total 2,185 - 1,532 3,717

Decreases 31.12.2019  

Disposals, historical cost (5) - - (5)

Disposals, accum. amortisation 1 - - 1

Amortisation (1,164) (144) - (1,308)

Total (1,168) (144) - (1,312)

Other changes 31.12.2019

Incoming transfers 170 - (170) -

Total 170 - (170) - 

Historical cost 13,631 641 2,138 16,410

Accumulated amortisation (7,930) (569) - (8,499)

Net book value as at 31.12.2019 5,701 72 2,138 7,911

Net investments were recognised, over the year, amounting to €3,713 thousand and amortisation amounting to 
€1,308 thousand. 

Investments are represented by the implementation of a new IT architecture to support the control model.

Note 3. Right-of-use Assets
The adoption, as from 1 January 2019, of IFRS 16, involved the recognition of assets in right of use, equal to the 
value of the financial liabilities at the transition date, adjusted to take account of any accruals and deferrals. The 
following table shows recognised fixed assets, by asset class.

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Buildings 453 - 453

Vehicles 196 - 196

Total 649 - 649
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Buildings Vehicles Total

Net book value as at 01.01.2019 - - -

Increases 31.12.2019    

Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases 570 271 841

Total - - -

Decreases 31.12.2019    

Depreciation (117) (75) (192)

Total - - -

Historical cost 570 271 841

Accumulated depreciation (117) (75) (192)

Net book value as at 31.12.2019 453 196 649

Note 4. Equity investments 
Equity investments held by the Company as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

31.12.2018  Increases Decreases  Other changes 31.12.2019

Subsidiaries 183,393 10,424 (10,424) 1,063 184,455

Associates 700 - - - 700

Total 184,093 10,424 (10,424) 1,063 185,155

The change over the year is attributable to:
 � decreases, amounting to €10,424 thousand, following the mergers of Datalogic Real Estate GmbH into Soredi 

Touch Systems GmbH (€1,806 thousand) and of Soredi Touch Systems GmbH into Datalogic S.r.l. (€8,618 
thousand);

 � increase, amounting to €10,424 thousand, of the equity investment in the Company Datalogic S.r.l. following 
its merger with the companies Datalogic Real Estate GmbH and Soredi Touch Systems GmbH;

 � other positive changes (€1,063 thousand) following the recognition of the Stock Grant plan related to Data-
logic S.r.l..

Further information on equity investments in subsidiaries and associates are given in Annex 2. The negative 
differentials between the pro-rate Shareholders’ Equity and the carrying value of some equity investments are 
not deemed as impairment in relation to future revenue expectations of investees and their contribution to the 
Group’s business.
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Note 5. Financial Assets and Liabilities by category
The following table shows the breakdown of “Financial assets and liabilities”, according to provisions set out by 
IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019: 

Financial assets at 
amortised cost

Financial assets at FV 
through profit or loss

Financial assets at FV 
through OCI 31.12.2018

Non-current financial assets 185 - 7,224 7,409

Financial assets - Equity investments - - 7,224 7,224

Financial assets - Other - - - -

Other receivables 185 - - 185

Current financial assets 404,952 50,896 - 455,848

Trade receivables 9,884 - - 9,884

Other receivables 5,182  - - 5,182

Financial assets - Other - 50,896 - 50,896

Loans to subsidiaries 264,237 - - 264,237

Cash and cash equivalents 125,649 - - 125,649

Total 405,137 50,896 7,224 463,257

Financial assets at 
amortised cost

Financial assets at FV 
through profit or loss

Financial assets at FV 
through OCI 31.12.2019

Non-current financial assets 182 535 8,930 9,647

Financial assets - Equity investments - 535 8,930 9,465

Financial assets - Other - - - -

Other receivables 182 - - 182

Current financial assets 417,945 31,200 - 449,145

Trade receivables 9,495 - - 9,495

Other receivables 100,945 -  - 100,945

Financial assets - Other - 31,200 - 31,200

Loans to subsidiaries 200,575 - - 200,575

Cash and cash equivalents 106,930 - - 106,930

Total 418,127 31,735 8,390 458,792
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Derivatives Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost 31.12.2018

Non-current financial liabilities - 156,859 156,859

Financial payables - 156,859 156,859

Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments - - -

Other payables - - -

Current financial liabilities - 238,024 238,024

Trade payables  - 6,812 6,812

Other payables - 8,595 8,595

Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments -  - -

Short-term financial liabilities - 222,617 222,617

Total - 394,883 394,883

Derivatives Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost 31.12.2019

Non-current financial liabilities - 110,203 110,203

Financial payables - 110,203 110,203

Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments - - 0

Other payables  - 0 0

Current financial liabilities - 206,511 206,511

Trade payables  - 5,768 5,768

Other payables - 9,286 9,286

Financial liabilities - Derivative instruments - - 0

Short-term financial liabilities - 191,457 191,457

Total - 316,714 316,714

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined based on methods that can be classified under the 
various hierarchy levels of fair value, as set forth by IFRS 13. In particular, the Company has adopted internal 
valuation models that are generally used in finance and based on prices supplied by market operators, or prices 
taken from active markets.
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Fair value – hierarchy
All the financial instruments measured at fair value are classified in the three categories defined below:
Level 1: market prices;
Level 2: valuation techniques (based on observable market data);
Level 3: valuation techniques (not based on observable market data).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31.12.2019

Assets measured at fair value     

Financial assets - Equity investments 8,860 - 605 9,465

Financial assets - Non-current securities - - - -

Financial assets - Other non-current financial assets - - - -

Financial assets - Other 20,238 10,962 - 31,200

Financial assets - Loans - - - -

Financial assets - Derivative instruments - - - -

Total 29,098 10,962 605 40,665

Note 6. Financial assets 
The financial assets include the following:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Non-current financial assets 9,465 7,224 2,241

Current financial assets 31,200 50,896 (19,696)

Total 40,665 58,120 (17,455)

The “Non-current financial assets” item is composed of equity investments in other companies held by the Com-
pany, and is broken down as follows:

31.12.2018 Increases Decreases Fair value 
adjustment

Translation 
effects 31.12.2019

Listed equity investments 7,154 - - 1,431 275 8,860

Unlisted equity investments 70 535 - - - 605

Total 7,224 535 - 1,431 275 9,465

The amount of the “Listed equity investments” item is represented by the 1.2% investment in the share capital of 
the Japanese company Idec Corporation. The change over the year is attributable to the fair value adjustment of 
the investment and the effect of exchange rates.

The “Current financial assets” item consists of investments in corporate cash, represented by insurance policies 
and mutual investment funds. The change for the year refers to the redemption of some investments. 
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Note 7. Trade and other receivables
Details of trade and other receivables item as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Trade receivables 9,495 9,884 (389)

  of which from subsidiaries 9,480 9,859 (379)

Other receivables - accrued income and prepaid expenses 101,127 5,367 95,761

  of which from subsidiaries 98,744 841 97,903

Total trade and other receivables 110,622 15,251 95,371

Trade receivables
Trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 amounted to €9,495 thousand and include trade relationships for 
intercompany services rendered to subsidiaries at arm’s length.  As at 31 December 2019, the breakdown of the 
item by maturity terms, compared with the same period of the previous year, was as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Not yet due 9,072 9,562

Past due by 30 days - 27

Past due by 31 - 90 days - 3

Past due by more than 90 days 423 292

Total 9,495 9,884

The following table shows the breakdown of trade receivables by currency as at 31 December 2019 and 31 De-
cember 2018:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Euro 9,111 9,117

US Dollar (USD) 326 709

British Pound (GBP) 4 4

Japanese Yen (JPY) 55 53

Total 9,495 9,884
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Other receivables - accrued income and prepaid expenses
The detail of the “Other receivables - accrued income and prepaid expenses” item is shown below:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Other short-term receivables 99,078 1,152 97,926

  of which from subsidiaries 98,744 841 97,903

Other long-term receivables 182 185 (3)

VAT receivables 502 2,993 (2,491)

Accrued income and prepaid expenses 1,365 1,037 329

Total 101,127 5,367 95,761

The “Other short-term receivables” item comprises mainly receivables due to dividends to be received by the 
subsidiary Datalogic S.r.l., as resolved in 2019.

The “Accrued income and prepaid expenses” item is mainly composed of insurance, as well as hardware and 
software fees. 

Note 8. Tax payables and receivables

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Tax receivables 961 2,248 (1,287)

  of which from Parent Company - 767 (767)

Tax payables (3,191) (773) (2,418)

  of which to Parent Company (2,128) - (2,128)

Total (2,230) 1,475 (3,705)

As at 31 December 2019, “Tax receivables” amounted to €961 thousand, down €1,287 thousand compared to the 
end of 2018 (€2,248 thousand as at 31 December 2018). 

“Tax payables” amounted to €3,191 thousand as at 31 December 2019, up €2,418 thousand (€773 thousand as at 
31 December 2018). The payables for IRES tax to the Parent Company Hydra S.p.A., equal to €2,128 thousand, 
are classified under this item. This amount is part to the tax consolidation.



182         Datalogic Annual Report 2019

DATALOGIC ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Note 9. Current financial receivables to subsidiaries

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Loans 145,500 155,017 (9,517)

Financial receivables for cash pooling 55,075 109,221 (54,146)

Total 200,575 264,237 (63,662)

As at 31 December 2019, the “Current financial receivables to subsidiaries” item amounted to €200,575 thousand 
(€264,237 thousand as at 31 December 2018). 
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Note 10. Shareholders’ Equity
The detail of Equity accounts is shown below, while changes in Shareholders’ Equity are reported in the specific 
statement:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Share capital 30,392 30,392 - 

Share premium reserve 111,779 111,779 - 

Treasury shares held in portfolio (15,113) (10,810) (4,303)

Share capital and capital reserves 127,058 131,361 (4,303)

Other reserves 6,272 3,011 3,261 

Retained earnings 115,178 114,555 625 

Profit for the year 105,040 29,340 75,700 

Total 353,548 278,267 75,283 

Share Capital
Movements in share capital and reserves as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are reported below:

Number of 
shares

Share
capital

Extraordinary 
share-

cancellation 
reserve

Treasury 
shares held
in portfolio

Treasury 
share reserve

Share 
premium 

reserve
31.12.2018

01.01.2018 58,229,477 30,392 2,813 6,120 2,026 106,940 148,291

Purchase of treasury shares (890,327) - - (22,934) 18,422 (18,422) (22,934)

Sale of treasury shares 211,392 -  - 4,662 (151) 151 4,662

Gains/(losses) on treasury shares - - - 1,365 - - 1,365

Charges on treasury shares - - - (23) - - (23)

31.12.2018 57,550,542 30,392 2,813 (10,810) 20,297 88,669 131,361

Number of 
shares

Share
capital

Extraordinary 
share-

cancellation 
reserve

Treasury 
shares held
in portfolio

Treasury 
share reserve

Share 
premium 

reserve
31.12.2019

01.01.2019 57,550,542 30,392 2,813 (10,810) 20,297 88,669 131,361

Purchase of treasury shares (252,388) - - (4,298) 4,298 (4,298) (4,298)

Sale of treasury shares  - - - - -  - -

Gains/(losses) on treasury shares - - - - - - -

Charges on treasury shares - - - (5) -  - (5)

31.12.2019 57,298,154 30,392 2,813 (15,113) 24,595 84,371 127,058
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As at 31 December 2019, the share capital amounted to €30,392 thousand, representing the share capital, entire-
ly subscribed and paid. The share capital comprises a total number of ordinary shares of 58,446,491, including 
1,148,337 held as treasury shares, for a counter-value of €15,113 thousand, making the number of outstanding 
shares at that date 57,298,154. Moreover, 521,000 shares were assigned to a Stock Grant plan. The shares have 
a nominal unit value of €0.52. 

Other reserves
As at 31 December 2019, changes in other reserves are broken down as follows:

 � change in the cash flow hedge reserve, amounting to €250 thousand;
 � change in financial assets reserve, measured at FVOCI, amounting to €1,686 thousand;
 � decrease in the actuarial gains/(losses) reserve, amounting to €196 thousand;
 � change in the Stock Grant reserve, amounting to €1,521 thousand.

With reference to changes in the Stock Grant reserve, these changes were related to the recognition of the medi-
um/long-term share-based incentive plan, approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 30 April 2019. Should de-
fined performance targets be achieved, the rights to receive Company’s shares were assigned to the beneficiaries 
by the Directors on 25 June 2019 (grant date).
The above-mentioned increase in Shareholders’ Equity was recognised, for the portion pertaining to the year, 
based on the measurement at fair value of the entire plan, carried out by a primary expert.

Note 11. Financial payables 
Financial payables are broken down as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Borrowings from bank 156,956 203,980 (47,025)

Financial payables for cash pooling 144,044 174,996 (30,951)

Lease financial payables 660 - 660

Other loans - 500 (500)

Total 301,660 379,476 (77,816)

Financial payables are apportioned by maturity date as follows: 

Within 12 months After 12 months 31.12.2019

Financial payables for cash pooling 144,044 - 144,044

Borrowings from bank 47,222 109,734 156,956

Lease financial payables 191 469 660

Total 191,457 110,203 301,660
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The breakdown of changes in the “Borrowings from bank” item as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 
is shown below:

2019 2018

1 January 203,980 252,831

Increases - -

Decreases for borrowing repayments (47,637) (47,638)

Effects of amortised cost 613 (1,213)

31 December 156,956 203,980

The breakdown of the “Borrowings from bank” item by maturity is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Variable rate - -

Due < 1 year - -

Due > 1 year - -

Fixed rate 156,956 203,980

Due < 1 year 47,222 47,121

Due > 1 year 109,734 156,859

Due > 5 years -  -

Total 156,956 203,980

Covenants
Some borrowing contracts envisage the compliance with some financial covenants, measured on consolidated 
figures of the Datalogic Group every six months as at 30 June and as at 31 December, as summarised in the 
following table:

Bank Company Covenants Frequency Reference statements

Club Deal Datalogic S.p.A. NFP/EBITDA   2.75 Semi-annual Consolidated

E.I.B. Datalogic S.p.A. NFP/EBITDA   2.75 Semi-annual Consolidated

As at 31 December 2019, the above-mentioned covenants were fulfilled.
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Note 12. Net deferred taxes 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities result both from positive items already recognised in the Income Statement and 
subject to deferred taxation under current tax regulations and temporary differences between recorded assets 
and liabilities and their relevant taxable value.

Deferred tax assets are accounted for based on assumptions of the future recoverability of the temporary differ-
ences that originated them, that is based on economic and fiscal strategic plans.

Temporary differences that generate deferred tax assets and liabilities are mainly foreign exchange rate transla-
tions. The total of net deferred taxes is broken down as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Deferred tax assets 836 6,799 (5,963)

Deferred tax liabilities (3,148) (11,122) 7,974

Net deferred taxes (2,312) (4,323) 2,011

Changes in deferred taxes are mainly due to the release of deferred taxes related to exchange differences. Below 
we show the main items forming deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and changes occurred in them 
over the year:

31.12.2018 Accrued (released) 
to Income Statement

Accrued (released)
to Shareholders’ Equity 31.12.2019

Adjustment on exchange rates 6,390 (6,319) - 71

Amortisation 179 44 - 223

Provisions 24 239 - 263

Other 207 6 66 279

Total 6,799 289 66 836

31.12.2018 Accrued (released) 
to Income Statement

Accrued (released)
to Shareholders’ Equity 31.12.2019

Adjustment on exchange rates 9,675 (9,176) 20 519

Amortisation 1,392 (1) - 1,391

Provisions (109) - - (109)

Other 164 1,183 - 1,347

Total 11,122 (7,994) 20 3,148

The increase in the “Other” item refers to the effect related to uncollected dividends.
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Note 13. Post-employment benefits
The breakdown of changes in the “Post-employment benefits” item as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 
2018 is shown below:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

1 January 395 498 (103)

Accrual 286 270 15

Amount transferred for transfer of employment relationships - (37) 37

Payments (166) (235) 70

Social security receivables for post-employment benefits (159) (100) (59)

Discounting 277 - 277

31 December 633 395 238

Change during the year is attributable primarily to the effects of discounting in application of IAS 19.

Note 14. Provisions for risks and charges
The “Provisions for risks and charges” is zero compared to the previous year, due to the release to Income State-
ment of amounts that were previously set aside (€60 thousand). Some irrelevant disputes related to the Company 
are currently in place. Their risk is assessed by experts and no allocations were made in relation to them, as 
provided for by IAS 37.

Note 15. Trade and other payables
The breakdown of trade and other payables is summarised in the following table:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Trade payables 5,768 6,812 (1,044)

  of which to subsidiaries 189 404 (215)

  of which to related parties 2 2 -

Other short-term payables 8,868 8,160 708

  of which to subsidiaries 5,366 4,369 997

Accrued income and prepaid expenses 418 435 (17)

Trade payables amounted to €5,768 thousand, down by €1,044 thousand compared to the previous year. 

The item “Other short-term payables” to subsidiaries comprises €5,289 thousand related to the VAT payables to 
Datalogic S.r.l. (€813 thousand) and IP Tech S.r.l. (€4,476 thousand), companies adhering to the Group VAT tax 
consolidation regime.
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Other payables – accrued liabilities and deferred income
The detailed breakdown of this item is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Other short-term payables: 8,868 8,160 708

 Payables to employees 1,465 1,762 (297)

 Payables to pension and social security agencies 1,125 1,091 34

 Other payables 6,278 5,307 971

Current accrued liabilities and deferred income 418 435 (17)

Total 9,286 8,595 691

Payables to employees represents the amount due for salaries and vacations accrued by employees as at 31 
December 2019.

Note 16. Net Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019, the Net Financial Debt/(Net Financial Position) is broken down as follows:

(€/000) 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

A. Cash and bank deposits 106,930 125,649

B. Other cash equivalents - - 

C. Securities held for trading - -

D. Cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) 106,930 125,649

E. Current financial receivables 231,775 315,133

  e.1 loans to subsidiaries 200,575 264,237

  e.2 other current financial receivables 31,200 50,896

F. Bank overdrafts -  -

G. Current portion of non-current debt 191,266 222,617

H. Other current financial liabilities 191 - 

  h.1 leasing payables 191 -

I. Current financial debt (F) + (G) +(H) 191,457 222,617

J. Current Net Financial Debt/(Current Net Financial Position) (I) - (D) - (E) (147,249) (218,165)

K. Non-current bank borrowing 109,734 156,859

L. Other non-current financial assets - - 

M. Other non-current financial liabilities 469 - 

  m.1 leasing payables 469 -

N. Non-current Financial Debt (K) - (L) + (M) 110,203 156,859

O. Net Financial Debt/(Net Financial Position) (J) + (N) (37,046) (61,306)
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The Net Financial Position, as at 31 December 2019, was positive by €37,046 thousand, down by €24,260 thou-
sand compared to 31 December 2018 (positive by €61,306 thousand). Cash flows, which brought about the change 
in the Company’s Net Financial Position as at 31 December 2019, are summarised as follows:

 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Net Financial Position/(Net Financial Debt) at the beginning of the period 61,306 49,860 11,446

EBITDA 7,680 7,876 (196)

Changes in working capital 2,748 25,132 (22,384)

Net investments (5,150) (4,428) (722)

Change in taxes 13 64 (51)

Financial Incomes/(Expenses) 2,420 3,572 (1,152)

Dividends collected 163 21,484 (21,321)

Dividends paid (28,716) (28,914) 198

Treasury shares (4,303) (16,930) 12,627

Other changes 1,546 3,590 (2,044)

Change in Net financial position (NFP) before IFRS 16 (23,600) 11,446 (35,046)

Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (660) - (660)

Change in Net financial position (24,260) 11,446 (35,706)

Net Financial Position/(Net Financial Debt) at the end of the period 37,046 61,306 (24,260)

Lower cash flow for the year is due primarily to lower dividends collected from investees.
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INFORMATION ON THE INCOME STATEMENT

Note 17. Revenues
Revenues divided by type are shown in the following table:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Revenues from royalties 15,503 16,304 (801)

Revenues from services 15,242 12,755 2,487

Total 30,745 29,059 1,686

The performance is substantially in line with the previous year. The Company’s revenues are represented by active 
royalties debited to subsidiaries for the use of the Datalogic trademark and invoicing of intercompany services.

Note 18. Cost of goods sold and operating costs

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Cost of goods sold 1,579 1,438 141

Operating costs 26,446 23,092 3,354

Research and Development expenses 558 861 (303)

Distribution expenses 896 932 (36)

General and administrative expenses 24,624 22,776 1,848

Other expenses 368 (1,477) 1,845

Total 28,025 24,529 3,496

The cost of goods sold amounted to €1,579 thousand, in line compared to the previous year. Operating costs 
increased by €3,354 thousand, from €23,092 to €26,446 thousand, following higher general and administrative 
expenses and other expenses, as described hereunder.

The breakdown of “Other expenses” is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1 0 1

Non-income taxes 419 271 148

Release of provision for management incentive scheme 0 (1,748) 1,748

Others (53) 0 (53)

Total 368 (1,477) 1,845
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Breakdown of costs by type
The following table provides the details of total costs (cost of goods sold and total operating costs) by type:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Labour cost 13,269 10,797 2,472

Software maintenance and assistance 3,433 3,049 384

Amortisation and depreciation 3,035 2,215 820

Technical, legal and tax advisory consultancies 2,146 1,746 400

Directors’ remuneration 1,978 1,913 65

Utilities and telephone subscriptions 1,406 1,099 307

Service costs rendered by subsidiary 429 406 23

Stock exchange costs and membership fees 382 413 (31)

Travel and lodging 333 515 (182)

Audit Fees 221 277 (56)

Rental and building maintenance 206 387 (181)

Advertising and Marketing 172 280 (108)

Vehicle leasing and maintenance 110 111 (1)

Entertainment expenses 102 159 (57)

Insurance expenses 78 121 (43)

Board of Statutory Auditors’ remuneration 70 69 1

Patents 40 37 3

Meeting expenses 36 100 (64)

Expenses for personnel training 31 178 (147)

Other costs 548 656 (108)

Total 28,025 24,529 3,496
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Labour cost amounted to €13,269 thousand (€10,797 thousand in the same period of 2018) and reported an in-
crease of €2,472 thousand compared to the previous year. The change is determined by the lower benefit reported 
in 2018 and related to a release of the provision for management incentive scheme. The detailed breakdown of 
labour cost is as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Wages and salaries 8,989 6,302 2,687

Social security charges 2,316 2,134 182

Employee severance indemnities 282 265 17

Retirement and similar benefits 300 274 26

Other costs 1,382 1,822 (440)

Total 13,269 10,797 2,472

The increase in the “Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs” item, amounting to €820 thousand, is mainly 
due to the adoption of the new IFRS 16 standard - Leases (€191 thousand) and higher investments in software 
(€279 thousand) and office machines (€363 thousand).
              
Costs related to “Software maintenance and assistance” increased by €384 thousand due to new licenses.

Note 19. Other revenues 

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Rents 525 519 6

Gains from sale of fixed assets 4 13 (9)

Others 95 103 (8)

Total 624 635 (11)

The “Other revenues” item reported no significant changes compared to the previous year.
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Note 20. Financial Income/(Expenses)

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Financial Income/(Expenses) 2,610 3,717 (1,107)

Foreign exchange gains/losses 2,039 (174) 2,213

Bank expenses (171) (145) (26)

Dividends 98,788 21,484 77,304

Others (29) - (29)

Total 103,237 24,882 78,355

Net Financial Income is positive by €103,237 thousand. The change is determined by higher dividends paid by 
investees (€77,304 thousand), as well as by the favourable performance of foreign exchange differences. 

Note 21. Taxes

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 Change

Profit (loss) before taxes 106,581 30,047 76,534

Income taxes 3,509 (642) 4,151

Deferred taxes (1,968) 1,349 (3,317)

Total 1,541 707 834

Tax rate 1.4% 2.4% -0.9%

The average tax rate comes to 1.4% (2.4% as at 31 December 2018). The reconciliation for 2019 of the nominal 
tax rate and the effective rate is shown in the following table:

2019 2018

Profit (loss) before taxes 106,581  30,047  

Nominal tax rate (25,579) -24.0% (7,211) -24.0%

Effects of local taxes (346) -0.3% (275) -0.9%

Tax effect on intercompany dividends 22,524 21.1% 4,898 16.3%

Tax benefits 1,806 1.7% 1,734 5.8%

Tax effects - previous years 7 0.0% 207 0.7%

Other effects 47 0.0% (59) -0.2%

Effective tax rate (1,541) -1.4% (707) -2.4%
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The effective impact of total taxes on the 2019 profit for the year was 1.4% (2.4% in 2018), against the theoretical 
tax impact which resulted by applying the 24% tax rate envisaged by the Italian legislation for the IRES tax.
An effect of €22,524 thousand, related to dividends paid by investees, is to be reported among the most relevant 
effects that impacted the effective tax rate in 2019.

Note 22. Audit fees
Pursuant to article 149-duodecis of the Issuer Regulation, implementing Legislative Decree 58 of 24 February 
1998, the following is the summary schedule of fees pertaining to the year 2019 provided by the Auditing Firm 
and divided in auditing and other services.

2019

Datalogic S.p.A. – audit fees 130

Total audit fees 130

Non-audit fees 20

Total 150

The Non-audit fees item refers to the limited evaluation of the consolidated non-financial statement, related to 
the year ended 31 December 2019. 

Note 23. Remuneration paid to Directors and Statutory Auditors
For this information, please refer to the report on remuneration which will be published pursuant to article 123-ter 
of the T.U.F. and will be available on the website www.datalogic.com.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
For the definition of “Related parties”, see both IAS 24, approved by EC Regulation no. 1725/2003, and the Pro-
cedure for Transactions with Related Parties approved by the Board of Directors on 4 November 2010 (most re-
cently amended on 24 July 2015), available on the Company’s website www.datalogic.com. The Parent Company 
of the Company is Hydra S.p.A. Transactions with related parties are executed as part of the ordinary operations 
and at arm’s length conditions. Furthermore, there are other relationships with related parties, always carried 
out as part of ordinary operations and at arm’s length conditions, of an immaterial amount and in accordance 
with the “OPC Procedure”, chiefly with Hydra S.p.A. or entities under joint control (with Datalogic S.p.A.), or with 
individuals that carry out the coordination and management of Datalogic S.p.A. (including entities controlled by 
the same and close relatives).
Related-party transactions refer chiefly to commercial and real estate transactions (instrumental and non-in-
strumental premises for the Company under lease or leased) and advisory activities as well as to companies 
joining the scope of tax consolidation. None of these assumes particular economic or strategic importance for 
the Company since receivables, payables, revenues and costs referred to the related parties are not a significant 
proportion of the total amount of the Financial Statements.
Pursuant to article 5, par. 8, of the Consob Regulations, it should be noted that, over the year 2019, the Company’s 
Board of Directors did not approve any relevant transaction, as set out by article 3, par. 1, lett. b) of the Consob 
Regulations, or any transaction with minority related parties that had a significant impact on the Company’s eq-
uity position or profit/(loss).

http://www.datalogic.com/
http://www.datalogic.com/
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  Hydra S.p.A.
Hydra 

Immobiliare 
S.n.c.

Datalogic 
S.r.l.

Subsidiaries 
of Datalogic 

S.r.l.

Group 
Company 

Real Estate

Informatics 
Holdings 

Inc.

Datalogic Ip 
Tech S.r.l. 31.12.2019

Receivables - - 285,015 12,517 28 931 10,307 308,799

Trade receivables - - 8,489 744 28 12 206 9,480

Receivables pursuant to 
tax consolidation

- - - - - - - 0

Other receivables - - 98,744  -  - - - 98,744

Financial receivables for 
cash pooling

- - 32,283 11,772 - 919 10,101 55,075

Loans to subsidiaries - - 145,500 - - - - 145,500

Payables 2,128 2 119,911 22,542 2,671 - 4,476 151,729

Payables pursuant to 
tax consolidation

2,128 - - - - - - 2,128

Payables pursuant to VAT 
tax consolidation

- - 813 - - - 4,476 5,289

Other payables - - 77 -  -  - - 77

Trade payables - 2 157 31 1 - - 191

Financial payables for 
cash pooling

- - 118,864 22,510 2,670 - - 144,044

Financial payables - - - - - - - -

Costs - 74 133 (340) 5 (3) (23) (153)

Operating costs -      72 440 1 -  - - 512

Other operating expenses - 3 (428) (706)  - (3) (23) (1,158)

Financial expenses - - 121 366 5 - - 492

Revenues - - 131,681 880 80 51 855 133,548

Revenues and other 
operating revenues

- - 29,850 58 80 - 757 30,745

Other revenues  - - 460 5 - - 53 519

Financial income - - 101,371 816 - 51 45 102,284
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ALLOCATION OF THE YEAR’S EARNINGS

To our Shareholders,

since the Financial Statements of Datalogic S.p.A. show a net profit for the year of €105,039,893, and since the 
legal reserve has reached one fifth of the share capital, pursuant to art. 2430 of the Italian Civil Code, the Board 
of Directors proposes:

 � to distribute to Shareholders an ordinary unit dividend, gross of legal withholdings, of 30 cents per share with 
coupon detachment on 15 June 2020 (record date 16 June 2020) and payment from 17 June 2020, for a ma-
ximum amount of €17,533,947. The remaining amount of the profit for the year will be allocated to reserves 
available.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Mr. Romano Volta)



Annexes
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Annex 1

Consolidation area

The Consolidated Financial Statements include interim reports of the Parent Company and the companies that 
are directly and/or indirectly controlled by the Parent Company or on which the latter has a significant influence. 
Reports of subsidiaries were duly adjusted, as necessary, to render them consistent with the accounting criteria 
of the Parent Company. The companies included in the scope of consolidation as at 31 December 2019, consoli-
dated on a line-by-line basis, are disclosed hereunder:

Company Registered office Share capital
Total 

Shareholders’ 
Equity (€/000)

Profit/loss 
for the period 

(€/000)
% Ownership

Datalogic S.p.A. Bologna - Italy Euro 30,392,175 353,548 105,040  

Datalogic Real Estate France Sas Paris - France Euro 2,227,500 3,697 63 100%

Datalogic Real Estate UK Ltd. Redbourn - England GBP 3,500,000 5,640 791 100%

Datalogic IP Tech S.r.l. Bologna - Italy Euro 65,677 22,597 7,394 100%

Informatics Holdings, Inc. Plano, Texas - USA USD 1,568 15,130 403 100%

Wasp Barcode Technologies Ltd. Redbourn - England GBP 0 231 45 100%

Datalogic (Shenzhen) Industrial Automation Co. Ltd. Shenzhen - China CNY 2,136,696 2,895 704 100%

Datalogic Hungary Kft Fonyod - Hungary HUF 3,000,000 5,005 1,249 100%

Solution Net Systems, Inc. Quakertown, PA - USA USD  5,904 1,583 100%

Datalogic S.r.l. Bologna - Italy Euro 10,000,000 156,973 15,854 100%

Datalogic Slovakia S.r.o. Trnava - Slovakia Euro 66,388 6,429 6,352 100%

Datalogic USA Inc. Eugene, OR - USA USD 100 224,164 9,803 100%

Datalogic do Brazil Comercio de Equipamentos e 
Automacao Ltda. Sao Paulo - Brazil BRL 20,257,000 502 (702) 100%

Datalogic Technologia de Mexico S.r.l. Colonia Cuauhtemoc 
- Mexico MXN 0 (277) (84) 100%

Datalogic Scanning Eastern Europe GmbH Darmstadt - Germany Euro 25,000 3,790 35 100%

Datalogic Australia Pty Ltd. Mount Waverley 
(Melbourne) - Australia AUD 3,188,120 970 161 100%

Datalogic Vietnam LLC Vietnam USD 3,000,000 26,478 10,448 100%

Datalogic Singapore Asia Pacific Pte Ltd. Singapore SGD 3 3,060 870 100%

Suzhou Mobydata Smart System Co. Ltd. Suzhou, 
JiangSu - China CNY 161,224 3,782 433 51%
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The following companies were consolidated at cost as at 31 December 2019:

Company Registered office  Share capital
Total 

Shareholders’ 
Equity (€/000)

Profit/loss 
for the period 

(€/000)
% Ownership

Specialvideo S.r.l. (*) Imola - Italy Euro 10,000 840 205 40%

Datasensor GmbH (*) Otterfing - Germany Euro 150,000 29 29 30%

CAEN RFID S.r.l. (*) Viareggio (LU) - Italy Euro 150,000 1,233 49 20%

R4I S.r.l. (*) Benevento - Italy Euro 131,250 403 (43) 20%

Datalogic Automation AB (**) Malmö, Sweden SEK 100,000 807 368 20%

(*) Data as at 31 December 2018.
(**) Data as at 30 June 2018.
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Annex 2

List of equity investments in subsidiaries and affiliates as at 31 December 2019

Company Registered office
Share capital 

in local 
currency

Shareholders’ 
Equity

Pro-rata 
Shareholders’ 

Equity

Profit/loss 
for the 
period

% Owned Carrying 
value Difference

Informatics Holdings, Inc. Plano (Texas) - USA USD 1,568,000 15,130 15,130 403 100% 11,011 4,119

Datalogic S.r.l. Bologna - Italy EUR 10,000,000 156,973 156,973 15,854 100% 150,775 6,198

Datalogic Real Estate France Sas Paris - France EUR 2,227,500 3,697 3,697 63 100% 3,919 (222)

Datalogic Real Estate UK Ltd. Redbourn - UK GBP 3,500,000 5,640 5,640 791 100% 3,668 1,972

Datalogic IP Tech S.r.l. Bologna - Italy EUR 65,677 22,597 10,417 7,394 46.1% 15,082 (4,665)

Total subsidiaries        184,455 7,402

CAEN RFID S.r.l.(*) Viareggio (Lu) - Italy EUR 150,000 1,233 247 49 20% 550 (303)

R4I S.r.l.(*) Benevento - Italy EUR 131,250 403 81 (43) 20% 150 (69)

Total associates        700 (373)

Nomisma S.p.A.(*) Bologna - Italy EUR 6,963,500 8,512 7 668 0% 7 (0)

Conai        0 n.a.

Caaf Ind. Emilia Romagna(**) Bologna - Italy EUR 377,884 670 6 2 1% 4 3

Consorzio T3 LAB        7 (7)

Crit S.r.l.(*) Bologna - Italy EUR 413,800 758 0 89 0% 52 (52)

IDEC Corporation(***) Osaka - Japan YEN 10,056,605,173    1% 8,860  

Mandarin III Luxembourg EUR   0 0 1% 535 n.a.

Total other companies        9,465 (56)

 (*) as at 31.12.2018
 (**) as at 31.08.2018
 (***) as at 31.03.2019
^ amounts in thousands of Euro as at 31.12.2019



Datalogic Annual Report 2019         201

Annex 3a

Certification for the Consolidated Financial Statements, pursuant to art. 81-ter of Consob Regulation 
no. 11971 of 14 May 1999 and following amendments and supplements

1. The undersigned Ms. Valentina Volta, as CEO, and Ms. Laura Bernardelli, as Manager in charge of drawing up 
Datalogic S.p.A. ’s accounting statements, hereby certify the following, also taking account of provisions set forth 
by art. 154-bis, par. 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998:

 � the adequacy of the information on Company operations and

 � the actual application

of the administrative and accounting procedures for the formation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
during the year 2019.

2. The assessment on the adequacy of the administrative and accounting procedures for the formation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2019 is based on a procedure defined by Datalogic S.p.A. 
in compliance with the Internal Control – Integrated Framework model, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission, which is the reference framework generally accepted at internation-
al level.

3. Moreover, the following is certified:

3.1 the Consolidated Financial Statements:
a. were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IFRS), recognised in the European 

Union pursuant to Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council of 19 July 2002;
b. correspond to the accounting records;
c. provide a true and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows of the 

issuer and of the other companies in the scope of consolidation;

3.2 the Report on Operations includes a reliable analysis of the Group’s state of affairs, as well as of the position 
of the issuer, together with the description of the main risks and uncertainties to which the Group is exposed.

Lippo di Calderara di Reno (BO), 19 March 2020

 CEO Manager in charge of drawing up the Group’s 
  accounting statements
 Valentina Volta Laura Bernardelli
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Annex 3b

Certification for the Financial Statements, pursuant to art. 81-ter of Consob Regulation no. 11971 of 
14 May 1999 and following amendments and supplements

1. The undersigned Ms. Valentina Volta, as CEO, and Ms. Laura Bernardelli, as Manager in charge of drawing up 
Datalogic S.p.A. ’s accounting statements, hereby certify the following, also taking account of provisions set forth 
by art. 154-bis, par. 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998:

 � the adequacy of the information on Company operations and

 � the actual application

of the administrative and accounting procedures for the formation of the Financial Statements, during the year 
2019.

2. The assessment on the adequacy of the administrative and accounting procedures for the formation of the 
Financial Statements as at 31 December 2019 is based on a procedure defined by Datalogic S.p.A. in compliance 
with the Internal Control – Integrated Framework model, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission, which is the reference framework generally accepted at international level.

3. Moreover, the following is certified:

3.1 the Financial Statements:
a. were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IFRS), recognised in the European 

Union pursuant to Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council of 19 July 2002;
b. correspond to the accounting records;
c. provide a true and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows of the 

issuer;

3.2 the Report on Operations includes a reliable analysis of the Company’s state of affairs, as well as of the po-
sition of the issuer, together with the description of the main risks and uncertainties to which the Company is 
exposed.

Lippo di Calderara di Reno (BO), 19 March 2020

 CEO Manager in charge of drawing up the Group’s 
  accounting statements
 Valentina Volta Laura Bernardelli
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 14 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE No. 39 OF JANUARY 27, 2010  

AND ARTICLE 10 OF THE EU REGULATION 537/2014 
 
 
 
To the Shareholders of  
Datalogic S.p.A. 
 
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Datalogic S.p.A. and its subsidiaries (“Datalogic 
Group” or the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
2019, the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in consolidated Shareholders’ equity and the statement of consolidated cash flow for 
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at December 31, 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by the European Union and the requirements of national regulations issued pursuant 
to art. 9 of Italian Legislative Decree no. 38/05. 
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Datalogic S.p.A. (the 
“Company”) in accordance with the ethical requirements applicable under Italian law to the audit of the 
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 

Estimate of revenue adjustments for discounts and returns 

 
Description of the 
key audit matter 

 
Datalogic Group grants to its customers commercial discounts and accepts 
returns from them, in accordance with the existing contractual agreements; 
these adjustments are accounted for against revenues. 
 

Annex 4a

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 2019
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The processes and methodologies to evaluate and determine the estimated 
portion of discounts to be granted and returns to be received after year-end 
are based on the terms agreed with the customers as well as on accounting 
and operating data both prepared internally by Group companies and received 
by the sales network.  
 
Since the computation of the above adjustments to revenues requires 
significant judgments by the Management, both with reference to when they 
should be accounted for and the estimate of their amounts, we considered the 
accounting of these adjustments as a key audit matter of the Group's 
consolidated financial statements. 
The disclosures related to this matter are included in the note "Use of 
estimates and assumptions" and in the note "Consolidation standards and 
policies" at the paragraph "Revenues recognition". 
 

 
Audit procedures 
performed 
 

 
With reference to the identified key audit matter, we performed the following 
audit procedures: 
 
• identification and understanding of key controls implemented by 

Management over the computation of the above adjustments to revenue 
and test of the related operating effectiveness; 

 
• analysis of the reasonableness of Managements’ main assumptions used to 

estimate the adjustments to revenues;  
 

• performance of analytical and substantive procedures in order to verify the 
accuracy and completeness of the data used by Management; 
 

• analysis of the main sales agreements in place, in order to ascertain that 
the relevant terms and clauses have been taken into account by 
Management in determining the adjustments to revenues; 
 

• performance of analytical review procedures comparing historical data 
related to actual returns and discounts and the estimates made by 
Management; 

 
• review of the sensitivity analysis prepared by Management with reference 

to their estimates. 
 
Other Aspects 
 
The consolidated financial statements of Datalogic Group as of December 31, 2018 were audited by another 
auditor, which issued an unmodified audit report on March 29, 2019. 
 
Responsibilities of the Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
 
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union 
and the requirements of national regulations issued pursuant to art. 9 of Italian Legislative Decree no. 
38/05, and, within the terms established by law, for such internal control as the Directors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless they have identified the existence of the conditions for the 
liquidation of the Company or the termination of the business or have no realistic alternatives to such 
choices. 
 
The Board of Statutory Auditors is responsible for overseeing, within the terms established by law, the 
Group’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance, identified at an appropriate level as required by ISA 
Italia, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence applicable in Italy and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where 
applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report. 
 
Other information communicated pursuant to art. 10 of the EU Regulation 537/2014 
 
The Shareholders' Meeting of Datalogic S.p.A. has appointed us on April 30, 2019 as auditors of the 
Company for the years from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2027. 
 
We declare that we have not provided prohibited non-audit services referred to in art. 5 (1) of EU 
Regulation 537/2014 and that we have remained independent of the Company in conducting the audit. 
 
We confirm that the opinion on the financial statements expressed in this report is consistent with the 
additional report to the Board of Statutory Auditors, in its role of Audit Committee, referred to in art. 11 of 
the said Regulation. 
 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS  
 
Opinion pursuant to art. 14 paragraph 2 (e) of Legislative Decree 39/10 and art. 123-bis, 
paragraph 4, of Legislative Decree 58/98 
 
The Directors of Datalogic S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the report on operations and the 
report on corporate governance and the ownership structure of Datalogic Group as at December 31, 2019, 
including their consistency with the related consolidated financial statements and their compliance with the 
law. 
 
We have carried out the procedures set forth in the Auditing Standard (SA Italia) n. 720B in order to 
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations and some specific information contained 
in the report on corporate governance and the ownership structure set forth in art. 123-bis, n. 4 of 
Legislative Decree 58/98, with the consolidated financial statements of Datalogic Group as at December 31, 
2019 and on their compliance with the law, as well as to make a statement about any material 
misstatement. 
 
In our opinion, the above-mentioned report on operations and some specific information contained in the 
report on corporate governance and the ownership structure are consistent with the consolidated financial 
statements of Datalogic Group as at December 31, 2019 and are prepared in accordance with the law. 
 
With reference to the statement referred to in art. 14, paragraph 2 (e), of Legislative Decree 39/10, made 
on the basis of the knowledge and understanding of the entity and of the related context acquired during 
the audit, we have nothing to report. 
 
Statement pursuant to art. 4 of the Consob Regulation for the implementation of Legislative 
Decree 30 December 2016, no. 254 
 
The Directors of Datalogic S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the non-financial statement 
pursuant to Legislative Decree 30 December 2016, no. 254. 
 
We verified the approval by the Directors of the non-financial statement. 
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Pursuant to art. 3, paragraph 10 of Legislative Decree 30 December 2016, no. 254, this statement is 
subject of a separate attestation issued by us. 
 
 
DELOITTE & TOUCHE S.p.A. 
 
Signed by 
Alberto Guerzoni 
Partner 
 
 
Bologna, Italy  
March 30, 2020 
 
 
 
This report has been translated into the English language solely for the convenience of international readers. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 14 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE No. 39 OF JANUARY 27, 2010 

AND ARTICLE 10 OF THE EU REGULATION 537/2014 
 
 
 
To the Shareholders of  
Datalogic S.p.A. 
 
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the financial statements of Datalogic S.p.A. (the “Company”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, the income statement and the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the cash flow statement for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as 
at December 31, 2019 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the 
requirements of national regulations issued pursuant to art. 9 of Italian Legislative Decree no. 38/05. 
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
ethical requirements applicable under Italian law to the audit of the financial statements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
There are not key audit matters to be communicated in the hereby report. 
 
Other Aspects 
 
The financial statements of Datalogic S.p.A. as of December 31, 2018 were audited by another auditor, 
which issued an unmodified audit report on March 29, 2019. 
 
Responsibilities of the Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Statements 
 
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the 
requirements of national regulations issued pursuant to art. 9 of Italian Legislative Decree no. 38/05 and, 
within the terms established by law, for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

 Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 
Piazza Malpighi, 4/2 
40123 Bologna 
Italia 
 
Tel: +39 051 65811 
Fax: +39 051 230874 
www.deloitte.it 

Annex 4b

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 2019
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In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless they have identified the existence of the conditions for the liquidation of 
the Company or for the termination of the operations or have no realistic alternative to such choices.  
 
The Board of Statutory Auditors is responsible for overseeing, within the terms established by law, the 
Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance, identified at an appropriate level as required by ISA 
Italia, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence applicable in Italy and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where 
applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report.  
 
Other information communicated pursuant to art. 10 of the EU Regulation 537/2014 
 
The Shareholders' Meeting of Datalogic S.p.A. has appointed us on April 30, 2019 as auditors of the 
Company for the years from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2027. 
 
We declare that we have not provided prohibited non-audit services referred to in art. 5 (1) of EU 
Regulation 537/2014 and that we have remained independent of the Company in conducting the audit. 
 
We confirm that the opinion on the financial statements expressed in this report is consistent with the 
additional report to the Board of Statutory Auditors, in its role of Audit Committee, referred to in art. 11 of 
the said Regulation. 
 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS  
 
Opinion pursuant to art. 14, paragraph 2 (e), of Legislative Decree 39/10 and art. 123-bis, 
paragraph 4, of Legislative Decree 58/98 
 
The Directors of Datalogic S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the report on operations and the 
report on corporate governance and ownership structure of Datalogic S.p.A. as at December 31, 2019, 
including their consistency with the related financial statements and their compliance with the law. 
 
We have carried out the procedures set forth in the Auditing Standard (SA Italia) n. 720B in order to 
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations and some specific information contained 
in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure set forth in art. 123-bis, n. 4 of Legislative 
Decree 58/98 with the financial statements of Datalogic S.p.A. as at December 31, 2019 and on their 
compliance with the law, as well as to make a statement about any material misstatement. 
 
In our opinion, the above-mentioned report on operations and information contained in the report on 
corporate governance and ownership structure are consistent with the financial statements of Datalogic 
S.p.A. as at December 31, 2019 and are prepared in accordance with the law. 
 
 
With reference to the statement referred to in art. 14, paragraph 2 (e), of Legislative Decree 39/10, made 
on the basis of the knowledge and understanding of the entity and of the related context acquired during 
the audit, we have nothing to report. 
 
 
DELOITTE & TOUCHE S.p.A. 
 
Signed by 
Alberto Guerzoni 
Partner 
 
 
Bologna, Italy  
March 30, 2020 
 
 
 
This report has been translated into the English language solely for the convenience of international readers. 
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THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING OF 
DATALOGIC S.P.A. PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 153 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/1998 AND 
ARTICLE 2429, PARAGRAPH 2 OF THE ITALIAN CIVIL CODE 

 
To our Shareholders, 

during the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Board of Statutory Auditors of  

Datalogic S.p.a. (“Datalogic” or the “Company”) carried out the supervisory activities 

envisaged by law. The Board’s activities were also governed by the principles of 

conduct recommended by the National Council of Chartered Accountants and 

Accounting Experts and CONSOB communications concerning corporate controls 

and activities pertaining to the Board of Statutory Auditors. This report was prepared 

in compliance with recommendations and guidelines supplied by CONSOB with 

communication no. DEM/1025564 of 6 April 2001, amended and supplemented by 

communication no. DEM/3021582 of 4 April 2003 and communication no. 

DEM/6031329 of 7 April 2006. 

 
Introduction 

The Board of Statutory Auditors currently in office was appointed by the Shareholders’ 

Meeting held on 30 April 2019 and will remain in office until the approval of the 

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. 

The Board of Directors currently in office was appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting 

held on 23 May 2018 and will remain in office until the approval of the financial 

statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. 

 
Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. was appointed Independent Auditor in compliance with 

Legislative Decree no. 58/1998 and Legislative Decree no. 39/2010, for the nine-year 

period from 2019 to 2027, by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 30 April 2019. The 

Independent Auditor will therefore remain in office until the approval of the financial 

statements as at 31 December 2027. 

 
During 2019, the following meetings were held: 

− 7 meetings of the Board of Statutory Auditors, of which 3 related to the previous 
mandate; 

− 6 meetings of the Board of Directors; 

− 8 meetings of the Audit and Risk Management, Remuneration and 

Appointments Committee (within the Board of Directors), of which 2 meetings 

as Committee for Transactions with Minority Related Parties. 

Annex 5

The Board of Statutory Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders’ Meeting of Datalogic S.p.A. 
pursuant to article 153 of Legislative Decree 58/1998 and article 2429, paragraph 2 of 
the Italian Civil Code
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During 2020, until the date of this report, the following meetings were held: 

− 4 meetings of the Board of Statutory Auditors; 

− 2 meetings of the Board of Directors; 

− 3 meetings of the Audit and Risk Management, Remuneration and 

Appointments Committee. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors attended all the aforementioned meetings of the 

Board of Directors and the Committee. 

Pursuant to regulations in force, the Board of Statutory Auditors is assigned the task to 

supervise the following: 

− compliance with the law and the Articles of Association, as well as with the 

principles of sound administration in the course of corporate business; 

− adequacy of the organisational system and, to the extent of its responsibilities, 

of the internal control and accounting system, as well as the reliability of the 

latter in fairly representing operational facts; 

− modalities of actual implementation of corporate governance rules, as 

provided for by the Code of Conduct that Datalogic has claimed to abide by; 

− adequacy of instructions given to subsidiaries with respect to mandatory 

communications on “price sensitive” information. 

Moreover, pursuant to and by the effects of Legislative Decree 39/2010, the Board of 

Statutory Auditors: 

a) informs the Board of Directors of the audited entity on the outcome of the 

independent audit and transmits to such Body the additional report as per 

article 11 of the European Regulation 537/2014, accompanied by any possible 

remarks; 

b) monitors the financial reporting process and submits recommendations or 

proposals aimed at ensuring its integrity; 

c) controls the Company’s efficacy of internal audit and control processes, as well 

as risk management, without infringement on the independence of the entity; 

d) supervises the independent audit of the financial statements for the year and 

the consolidated financial statements; 

e) assesses and monitors the independence of the independent auditing 

company, pursuant to articles 10, 10-bis, 10-ter, 10-quater and 17 of Legislative 

Decree 39/2010, as well as article 6 of the European Regulation 537/2014, 

especially with regard to the adequacy of services, other than audit, rendered 

to the audited entity, pursuant to article 5 thereof; 
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f) is responsible of the selection procedure of the independent auditing 

companies and recommends the Independent Auditors to be assigned as per 

article 16 of the European Regulation. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors also supervises compliance with obligations relating to 

non-financial information pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 254/2016. 

 
With reference to the activities for which it is responsible, during the 2019 financial year 

and until approval of the 2019 Annual Financial Report by the Board of Directors, the 

Board of Statutory Auditors hereby declares that it has: 

− obtained adequate information from Directors, especially executive Directors, 

on the general performance of operations and on the business outlook, as well 

as on the more significant strategic, equity and financial transactions 

performed by the Company and its subsidiaries, also through the attendance 

at the meetings of the Board of Directors; 

− obtained the necessary elements to assess compliance with the law, the 

Articles of Association, the principles of correct administration and the 

adequacy of the organisational system of the Company and the Group under 

its control, through direct investigations, acquisition of documents and 

information from the heads of the various functions involved, periodic 

exchanges of information with the independent auditors of the annual and 

consolidated accounts; 

− supervised the functionality and effectiveness of internal control systems, as 

well as the adequacy of the administration and accounting system, especially 

in terms of reliability of the latter in fairly representing operational facts; 

− performed the supervisory activities, pursuant to article 9 of Legislative Decree 

no. 39/2010; 

− carried out the periodical exchange of information with the representatives of 

the Independent Auditors, as regards activities performed during the various 

meetings occurred on the occasion of the meetings of the Board of Statutory 

Auditors, as well as through the appraisal of the outcome of audits and the 

reception of reports, as envisaged by Legislative Decree no. 39/2010; 

− received the declaration confirming possession of the independence 

requirements established for the Independent Auditors, in which no situations 

that have affected their independence or no causes of incompatibility are 

reported; 
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− received the Additional Report from the Independent Auditors, as per article 

11 of the European Regulation 537/2014 (which will be transmitted to the Board 

of Directors). The examination of this Report has not revealed any aspects that 

should be highlighted herein; 

− monitored the functionality of the control system on Group companies, as well 

as the adequacy of provisions set forth for them, also pursuant to article 114, 

paragraph 2, of Legislative Decree no. 58/1998; 

− monitored the implementation of corporate governance rules adopted by the 

Company in compliance with the Code of Conduct of Borsa Italiana, to which 

Datalogic conforms; 

− supervised the compliance with the Procedure for transactions with related 

parties adopted by the Company pursuant to provisions set forth in the related 

CONSOB Regulation, adopted with resolution no. 17221 of 12 March 2010 and 

following amendments, as well as the compliance with the Regulation itself; 

− supervised the Company’s financial disclosures, while assessing compliance by 

Directors with law provisions regarding the preparation, approval and issue of 

the Annual Financial Report; 

− assessed the adequacy and consistency of procedures used, as well as of 

impairment tests performed for the approval of both the 2019 Annual Financial 

Report and the method used. Consistency has also been assessed in relation to 

the CONSOB recommendations regarding procedures; 

− analysed the 2019 Annual Financial Report, the Report on corporate 

governance and ownership structure, pursuant to and by the effects of article 

123-bis of the Italian Consolidated Law on Finance (TUF). These reports were 

found consistent with regulations in force; 

− supervised the compliance with provisions set out by Legislative Decree 

254/2016 and examined the Consolidated Non-financial Reporting, while 

assessing the compliance with provisions in force.  

 
During its supervisory activities, performed based on information and data acquired, 

no elements were reported from which failure to comply with provisions by law and 

the Memorandum of Association can be inferred, and no infringements emerged that 

would justify reporting to Supervisory Authorities or mention herein. 



216         Datalogic Annual Report 2019

DATALOGIC ANNUAL REPORT 2019

 
 5  

**** 
 
 

Report 
 
 

Further guidelines are provided hereunder, as envisaged in CONSOB Communication 

no. DEM/1025564 of 6 April 2001, and following amendments. 

1. With reference to transactions that were relevant under the economic, financial 

and equity point of view and carried out during the year based on information 

supplied by the Company and data acquired on the above-mentioned 

transactions, the Board of Statutory Auditors assessed compliance of the above 

with the law, the Memorandum of Association and the principles of sound 

administration. It also assessed that these actions were not overtly imprudent, risky 

or in potential conflict of interest or could not have jeopardised the integrity of 

company equity. 

2. During 2019 and after year end, the Board of Statutory Auditors reported no 

atypical and/or unusual operations carried out with third parties or with related 

parties (including Group companies). 

3. Intercompany transactions and transactions with related parties are executed as 

part of the ordinary operations and at arm's length conditions. 

Related-party transactions refer chiefly to commercial and real estate 

transactions, advisory activities as well as to companies joining the scope of tax 

consolidation. To this purpose, it should be noted that the supervisory body, also 

thanks to the attendance at the meetings of the Committee for transaction with 

minority related parties, supervised the correct application, by the Company, of 

the Procedure for Transactions with Related Parties, within a real estate transaction 

that is considered, as per the aforementioned procedure, a transaction with 

minority related parties. 

4. The Board of Statutory Auditors deems that the information given by Directors in 

the 2019 Annual Financial Report was adequate in relation to intercompany 

transactions and with related parties. 

5. On 30 March 2020, the Independent Auditors Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. issued the 

report, pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree 39/2010, certifying that the 

statutory and consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2019 (i) 

comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the 

European Union, as well as with provisions issued in implementation of article 9 of 

Legislative Decree no. 38 of 2005, 
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(ii) have been drawn up clearly and give a true and fair view of the financial 

position and results of operations of the statutory and consolidated financial 

statements of the Company and the Group. 

6. Moreover, the Independent Auditors deem that the Directors’ Report and 

disclosures as per paragraph 1, letters c), d), f) l) and m) and paragraph 2, letter 

b) of article 123-bis of the TUF, included in the Report on corporate governance 

and ownership structure, are consistent with the Company financial statements 

and the Group consolidated financial statements. 

The Independent Auditors have also assessed that the Report on corporate 

governance and ownership structure includes disclosures as per paragraph 2, 

letters a), c), d) and d-bis) of article 123-bis of the TUF. 

7. The Independent Auditors stated that, pursuant to article 14, paragraph 2, letter 

e) of Legislative Decree 39/2010, no material errors were identified in the Directors’ 

Report and therefore, based on the knowledge and understanding of the 

company and the related context acquired during the audit, nothing is to be 

reported. 

8. On 30 March 2020, the Independent Auditors also issued the Consolidated Non-

Financial Report, prepared pursuant to article 3, paragraph 10, of Legislative 

Decree 254/2016 and article 5 of the CONSOB Regulation no. 20267/2018, in which 

it is certified that no issues were highlighted to render the Consolidated Non-

financial Reporting of the Datalogic Group, concerning the financial year ending 

31 December 2019, not compliant, in all significant aspects, with provisions set out 

by articles 3 and 4 thereof and by the GRI Standards, with reference to the list of 

GRI Standards indicated in section “Methodological Note” thereof. 

9. During 2019, the Board of Statutory Auditors received no notifications as per article 

2408 of the Italian Civil Code. 

10. During 2019, no claims were received by the Board of Statutory Auditors. 
11. In addition to the audit of the statutory and consolidated financial statements, the 

limited audit of the half-yearly report, the activity of verifying that the accounts 

are properly kept and that the operating events are correctly recorded in the 

accounting records and the certification relating to the non-financial 

consolidated statement (whose assignment was given jointly with the audit of the 

financial statements), in 2019 no additional tasks were assigned to the company 

Deloitte & Touche S.p.A.. 
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12. During the 2019 financial year and after the ending of the same, until the date of 

this report, the Company did not assign any tasks to companies belonging to the 

network linked to the Independent Auditors Deloitte & Touche S.p.A.. 

13. During 2019, until the date of this report, the Board of Statutory Auditors: 

(i) expressed the reasoned proposal to the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 30 

April 2019, for the assignment of the audit of accounts, pursuant to article 13 

of Legislative Decree no. 39/2010; 

(ii) in accordance with legislation (including regulations and self-regulations), 

issued the following opinions on: 

− the proposal to allocate the maximum overall remuneration of the 

members of the Board of Directors approved by the Shareholders' 

Meeting of 30 April 2019; 

− the variable compensation of the Chairman and the Chief Executive 

Officer, also pursuant to Article 2389 of the Italian Civil Code; 

− the remuneration of the Head of Internal Audit and the adequacy of the 

resources allocated to fulfil his duties; 

− the adoption of Datalogic’s remuneration policy;  

− the correct application of the assessment criteria and procedures 

adopted by the Board of Directors to ascertain the independence of 

Directors, as qualified upon their appointment; 

− also according to criteria envisaged by the Code of Conduct concerning 

Directors, possession of the independence requirements of Statutory 

Auditors appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 30 April 2019, 

verified with positive results also during the self-assessment; 

− consistency and adequacy of impairment procedures used by the 

Company; 

− correct use of accounting standards and their homogeneity for the 

purposes of preparing the consolidated financial statements; 

− approval of the Audit Plan; 

− appointment of Mrs Laura Bernardelli as Manager in charge of drawing 

up the Company’s accounting statements, as from 8 August 2019; 
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(iii) informed the Board of Directors on the results issued by the Independent 

Auditors EY S.p.A., expressed in the Independent Auditors’ Report, as per 

article 11 of Regulation 537/2014 concerning audit activities carried out on 

the Financial Report as at 31 December 2018; 

(iv) carried out its own self-assessment for the 2019 financial year, pursuant to the 

"Rules of conduct of the Board of Statutory Auditors of listed companies" by 

the National Council of Chartered Accountants and Accounting Experts 

(CNDCEC) and in accordance with the guidelines set out in the document 

"The self-assessment of the Board of Statutory Auditors" published in May 2019 

by the same CNDCEC. On the basis of the process conducted, a good 

assessment of the Board as a whole has emerged. 

14. As regards the frequency and number of meetings of corporate bodies, reference 

is made to the introduction. 

15. The Board of Statutory Auditors became acquainted with and supervised the 

compliance with the principles of a correct administration, to the extent of its 

responsibility, based on direct observation, collection of information from the 

heads of corporate business units and from the Director in charge of the internal 

control and risk management system, as well as meetings with the Audit and Risk 

Management, Remuneration and Appointments Committee and the 

Independent Auditors for the purposes of an exchange of data and relevant 

information. In particular, with regard to the Board of Directors' decision-making 

processes, also through direct attendance at the meetings of the Board of 

Directors, the Board of Statutory Auditors verified the compliance with the law and 

the Articles of Association of the management decisions made by Directors. It also 

checked that the related resolutions were supported by analyses and opinions - 

conducted either internally or, when necessary, by external professionals - 

concerning above all the economic and financial fairness of transactions and 

their consequent consistency with the Company's interests. 

16. The Board of Statutory Auditors became acquainted with and supervised the 

suitability and operation of the organisational structure of the Company and its 

operations, also by collecting information from structures involved, meetings with 

the managers of corporate business units and those in charge of internal and 

external audits, and to this regard the Board has no particular comments to report. 
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17. The Board of Statutory Auditors assessed and supervised the adequacy of the 

Company’s internal control and risk management system and detected no 

special critical issues and/or remarks to be brought to the attention of 

Shareholders. 

18. Coordination between the parties involved in the internal control and risk 

management system is ensured through constant dialogue and continuous 

exchange of information (also during meetings of corporate bodies) between all 

the parties involved in this "system" and in particular: 

− the Committee in charge of internal control and risk management 

system; 

− the Director in charge of the internal control and risk management 

system; 

− the Manager in charge of Internal Audit; 

− the Manager in charge of drawing up the Company’s accounting 
statements; 

− the Board of Statutory Auditors; 

− the Independent Auditing Company; 

− the Supervisory Body. 

19. As part of the assessment of the adequacy of the internal control system with 

respect to Legislative Decree no. 231/2001, which regulates the liability of entities 

for administrative offences resulting from crimes, the Board of Statutory Auditors 

notes that the Company has adopted an Organisational Model aimed at 

preventing crimes that may give rise to liability of the Company. The 

Organisational Model undergoes periodic reviews both to take account of 

experience and to consider regulatory changes envisaging the extension to 

further criminal offences such as predicate offences. 

20. The Supervisory Body, which supervises operations and compliance with the 

Organisational Model, met 6 times in 2019. 

21. The Board of Statutory Auditors assessed and monitored the adequacy of the 

financial information process and accounting system, as well as their reliability in 

fairly representing operational facts by obtaining information from the competent 

function managers (including the Manager in charge of drawing up the 

Company’s accounting statements and the Manager in charge of Internal Audit), 

by examining corporate documents and analysing the outcome of the audit 

performed by the independent auditing company Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. 
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22. The Board of Statutory Auditors has also acknowledged the certifications issued - 

pursuant to and by the effects of article 154-bis, paragraph 5 of the TUF - by the 

Chief Executive Officer and the Manager in charge of drawing up the Group’s 

accounting statements on the adequacy and effective application, during 2019, 

of the administrative and accounting procedures for the preparation of the 

statutory and consolidated financial statements. 

23. The Board of Statutory Auditors was also able to verify the certification - pursuant 

to and by the effects of Article 154-bis, paragraph 2 of the TUF - of the acts and 

communications of the Company, disclosed to the market, relating to accounting 

information, including interim information. 

24. The Board of Statutory Auditors supervised the adequacy of the general 

instructions given by the Company to its subsidiaries, pursuant to article 114, 

paragraph 2, of Legislative Decree 58/98, deeming them suited to fulfil disclosure 

obligations set out by law. 

25. Through direct checks and information obtained from the Independent Auditors 

Deloitte & Touche S.p.A., the Board of Statutory Auditors assessed compliance 

with IAS/IFRS standards as well as with rules and laws concerning the preparation 

and layout of the statutory financial statements, the consolidated financial 

statements and the Report on Operations. 

26. The Company accepts the principles and recommendations included in the 

Code of Conduct of Borsa Italiana (2018 July edition). 

27. The Board of Directors has set up a single internal committee (Control, Risk, 

Remuneration and Appointments Committee), composed entirely of three non-

executive Directors, two of whom are independent. Always concerning the 

independent Directors, the Company has set up the position of “Lead 

Independent Director”, point of reference and coordination for the requests and 

contributions of the independent Directors, to guarantee the utmost judgement 

autonomy of the latter with respect to the Management’s actions. The "Lead 

Independent Director" is vested with the power, among others, to convene 

meetings for independent Directors only to examine issues relating to 

management activities or the running of the Board of Directors. 

28. The Board of Directors has also conducted the self-assessment process for 2019, 

entrusting the Board of Statutory Auditors with the management of the process, 

and he issue of a report, which was submitted to the Board on 14 February 2020. 

All Directors positively evaluated the extent, composition and running of the 



222         Datalogic Annual Report 2019

DATALOGIC ANNUAL REPORT 2019

 
 11  

Board, as well as the Group governance structure. 

29. The Board of Statutory Auditors carried out the so-called “self-assessment” on the 

independence of its members and determined that all standing members of the 

Board have the requirements of independence as per article 148, paragraph 3, 

of the TUF and according to criteria set out by the Code of Conduct. 

30. Pursuant to article 144-quinquiesdecies of the Issuers’ Regulation, the list of 

directorship or audit-related offices, held with other companies by the members 

of the Board of Statutory Auditors at the issue date of this Report, is published by 

CONSOB and made available on the website by the CONSOB itself within the limits 

set out by article 144-quaterdecies of the Issuers’ Regulation. 

31. The Board of Statutory Auditors expresses a positive opinion on the Company's 

Corporate Governance. 

32. During the course of supervision and control activities, no significant events 

emerged that would require reporting to Supervisory and Control bodies or 

mention in this Report. 

33. After acknowledging the results of the financial statements ended 31 December 

2019, the Board of Statutory Auditors has no objections to raise regarding the 

proposed resolution by the Board of Directors on the allocation of the profits for 

the year. 

 
Lippo di Calderara, 30 March 2020 

 

For the Board of Statutory Auditors 

The Chairman 

Mr. Salvatore Marco Fiorenza 
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